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* Details of the re-designation of Mr. Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Jiang Deqing are disclosed
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

B Mr. Yu Yong Hua was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company on 15 January 2014.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHMES

Annual Profit

| am pleased to announce that Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$8,881,723,000 (2012: approximately HK$7,787,502,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”). The audited profit attributable
to the owners of the Company and earnings per share amounted to
approximately HK$785,499,000 (2012: approximately HK$640,256,000)
and HK27.70 cents (2012: HK22.69 cents) respectively, representing a
profit growth of 23% compared with the same period last year. Our gross
profit margin for year 2013 was approximately 16.0% (2012: approximately
15.7%).

Business Overview

In 2013, the renewed global economic growth, coupled with a decrease in
debt deficit, eased the worry about further deterioration of the debt crisis
in developed countries. Developed economies showed an obvious trend
of recovery but still lacked of growth momentum. A period of high growth
came to an end in China, with its import and export recording a fairly
flat performance as a result of adverse factors including rising costs, the
appreciation of Renminbi and a shift of purchase orders to other countries.
The continued transformation and upgrading of the electrical household
appliances industry led to further concentration of industry leaders. The
growth momentum derived from the property industry has weakened
moderately, while the momentum from urbanisation has increased. The
termination of stimulus policies including the Subsidy for Energy-Efficient
Household Appliances during the year dampened to a certain degree the
growth rate of the electrical household appliances industry in the first half of
the year, but it restored normal market conditions. In the second half of the
year, the industry witnessed accelerated growth on the back of recovery
of the global economy and the unusually hot weather. During the year as a
whole, the conditions of the industry improved compared with 2012.

The Group continued to record a steady growth and achieved high results
for the Year, with its turnover rising by 14% and the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company growing by 23%. Committed to generating
satisfactory and stable returns to our shareholders, the Board is pleased to
recommend the upward adjustment of the dividend payout ratio from 21%
to 31% and the payment of a final dividend of HK8.5 cents per share.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHMES

Adhering to the strategic direction “being customer-centred and making
quality products”, the Group continued to drive its transformation in
operation. On the basis of group-wide common understanding, we have
taken a series of operational measures to achieve strategic focus. In doing
s0, we have dedicated our resources and energy to our core products, with
a focus on the quality of business growth, which eventually led to record
high operating profit.

For customer development, we continued to enhance the development
of strategic products with a focus on improving the competitiveness of
our products. In respect of traditional core products, we have accelerated
the development and supply of products for strategic customers at
their overseas bases, while enhancing the cooperation with the existing
customers in alternating current motors for air-conditioners. Our operating
revenue from strategic customers has risen sharply as a result. We have
made a breakthrough in motors for washing machines by entering into
formal cooperation with top manufacturers in Europe.

With regard to technological innovation, we have fully integrated
our research and development (“R&D”) resources, emphasising the
understanding of customer needs. By accelerating the development of new
products, in particular, direct current products, now we have substantially
completed the development of direct current technical platform, covering
all series of motors for white goods. In the meantime, we have enhanced
the management of and input in intellectual property. During the year, the
Group filed 102 applications for patents, of which 44 applications were for
invention patents. Currently, the Group employs a total of nearly 200 R&D
professionals, of whom Ph.D. degree holders and master’s degree holders
account for 25%.

In respect of product quality and manufacturing technology, we continued
to hire experts specialised in quality control and lean production process
from Japan, Korea, Hong Kong and Taiwan, as well as external advisory
companies, with a view to enhancing the motor manufacturing technologies
and product quality management standard. Based on an operating
principle of professional product manufacturing at production bases, we
have combined the resources of our production bases with peripheral
supporting facilities to capitalise on the advantage of specialisation of each
production base in certain product lines. We have made adjustments to our
deployment of manufacturing bases across the board. By implementing a
number of lean production plans, we have significantly improved our site
management, manufacturing technology and standardisation management.
The Group continued to educate all employees about lean production
and the culture of rigid quality control, while implementing quality control
throughout the value chain, thereby improving production efficiency and
product quality continuously.
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In investment management, we have increased our input in solutions
to improve manufacturing technology and automation solutions. The
commercial motors production base in Changzhou has been completed at
the end of 2013 and has commenced full operation in 2014.

As a whole, the Group has been facing adverse conditions including rising
wages and the continuous increase in raw material costs and other costs.
The continued appreciation of Renminbi against foreign currencies has
been another headache. These two major problems have further reduced
price competitiveness of the Group’s products in overseas markets. These
difficulties have posed more severe challenges and higher requirements to
the transformation of the Group. The Group had to further accelerate the
improvement of internal management and control costs in all processes
including purchasing and production, while stepping up its efforts in
technological transformation and innovation. Only with these measures
would the Group be able to increase its profit margin, enhance its overall
profitability and create value for customers constantly. Through a range
of effective measures to achieve further transformation and strategic
focus, the Group has identified its future development path, improved its
profitability and management, and reinforced the market position of its
principal products in 2013. The Group has also substantially completed
the development of strategic products and consolidated the continuous
transformation and foundation of growth.

Prospects

The year 2014 marks the beginning of a new round of reform in China.
It is also an important year in which the Group will continue to drive
its transformation and establish a management system of delicacy
management. The global economy has generally bottomed out and
begun to show moderate improvement. Periodic movement is likely to be
replaced by substantial and simultaneous recovery. However, the global
economy is still far from a boom given two major risk factors including
the termination of the third round of quantitative easing (QE3) by the
United States, the heavy debts of developed economies and the debt
restructuring in Europe. China’s economy is still at a stage of gathering
momentum, with economic and social adjustment and improvement as
the main theme. In the meantime, the growth of export is expected to
moderate due to factors including the appreciation of Renminbi, rapid rise
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of labour cost and a slowdown in the improvement of labour productivity.
As the electrical household appliances industry continues its transformation
and upgrading, energy saving and environmental protection, which was
an ultimate goal, has become a prerequisite. The new goals of the industry
are smart features, green design and automated production. We are fully
aware that while acting in line with the overall trend, we must be customer-
centred at all times and enhance the competitive edge of our products. We
must also speed up the development of product technologies and drive the
promotion of new products. Only through these efforts can we reinforce the
market position of our principal products and increase the competitiveness
of our strategic products quickly.

In 2014, the Group will maintain its strategic focus, drive its operational
transformation and implement delicacy management across the board.
With an aim to create value for customers, we will provide customers with
new products that help them reduce system costs and new solutions
beneficial to them, meeting their requirements. We will continue to focus on
our core products and accelerate the R&D and promotion of new products,
with a view to reinforcing the market position of our principal products,
and increase the market shares of our strategic products. We will continue
to enhance the competitive edge of direct current motors, increase our
promotional efforts to achieve full coverage and sales growth. We will
refine our customer relationship management and offer better products
and services to existing major customers with which we have established
strong partnership. Meanwhile, we will expand our cooperation with
customers and make efforts to expedite the penetration of other related
products. In relation to new markets, we will try to explore and develop
new customers with significant potentials, while focusing on professional
central air-conditioner manufacturers and industry giants of air-conditioners
and washing machines. We will further integrate our R&D resources and
increase the input in R&D, while improving our portfolio of talents, so
as to drive the research on core technologies and standardisation. We
will enhance the core competitive edge of our products by catering for
customer needs. Our lean production will focus on improving our ability
to meet lead times and saving of production site. While accelerating
automation and the innovation in manufacturing technologies, we will focus
on return on assets and strict risk control. We will continue to enhance
the rigid implementation of quality standards and monitor the whole value
chain, with a view to enhancing product quality.
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Looking ahead, the global economy has shown signs of improvement,
and the electrical household appliances industry in China has returned
to rational competition. The Group will adjust its strategy in light of the
structure of market demand and customers’ needs for upgrading in a
timely manner. Meanwhile, we will enhance forward-looking research
based on the technological development trends of the industry and product
features, and capitalise on market opportunities to maintain our leading
position in the industry. We are committed to becoming one of the world’s
best suppliers of motors for electrical household appliances, efficient and
energy-saving motors and related solutions, providing sustainable returns
for shareholders, sound career development opportunities for employees
and greater value for the community.

Acknowledgement

Last but not least, | would like to thank our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their support, and the members of the Board, the
management and all employees for their efforts in and contributions to the
Group’s business development over the past year. We are confident that
the management and all employees will continue their concerted efforts to
meet any future challenges and deliver substantial growth for the coming

year.

Zhou Xiangyang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
10 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmED N

Business Review

Financial Results

The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company and
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
approximately HK$785,499,000 (2012: approximately HK$640,256,000)
and HK27.70 cents (2012: HK22.69 cents) respectively, representing a
profit growth of 23% compared with the same period last year.

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately HK$8,881,723,000 (2012: approximately
HK$7,787,502,000), representing a year-on-year growth of 14%. The
Group’s gross profit margin was 16.0% (2012: 15.7%). Net asset value
per share of the Group as at 31 December 2013 was HK$1.34 (2012:
HK$1.08).

Analysis of Major Business Operations

In 2013, the global economy experienced a slow recovery but lacked of
growth momentum. The economy in the United States continued to recover
at a moderate pace; European economy continued to rebound, and the
Japanese economy saw a moderate growth. Emerging economies showed
a slowdown in growth as a whole, with China’s economy recording a fairly
flat performance. In the first half of 2013, China continued to see a set back
in its economic growth, with a downturn in export and domestic demand.
The performance in the second half of the year remained sluggish despite
a rebound in the middle of the year, bringing the full-year growth rate to a
fourteen-year low of approximately 7.7%.
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The air-conditioner sector and the washing machine sector in China
showed strong growth since the middle of 2013 despite weakness at
the beginning of the year, with the overall conditions improved compared
with 2012. At the beginning of 2013, the electrical household appliances
industry in China faced a challenging environment. A combination of
adverse factors, including the gloomy domestic and global economy, the
depressed demand in the overseas electrical household appliances market,
the appreciation of Renminbi and the concurrent depreciation of foreign
currencies, as well as the imminent termination of favourable energy-
saving subsidy policies in China, gave rise to widespread pessimism in the
industry. Whereas, the domestic and export sales of the air-conditioner
sector has improved significantly since July on the back of continuous
recovery in the United States, European Union and Japan, the extremely
hot weather resulted from global warming, coupled with a turnaround in
China’s property market. The domestic sales of China’s washing machine
sector bottomed out in 2013, but was offset by sluggish export sales,
resulting in a fairly flat overall performance compared with 2012.

Inverter air-conditioners maintained a strong growth momentum and high-
speed growth all through 2013. The new energy efficiency standards which
took effect in the second half of the year, and the “energy efficiency leader”
system which was being drafted, pave the way for the continuous growth
of inverter air-conditioners in China.

1. Motor Business

In 2013, the air-conditioner sector and the washing machine sector
were at a stage of correction at the high level. Both tier-1 and tier-
2 markets of air-conditioners and washing machines have been
basically saturated. Considerable potential is observed in tier-3
and tier-4 markets, but is unlikely to be released in the short term.
The trend of energy-saving, healthful, smart and artistic features for
electrical household appliances will become increasingly evident
in the next few years. In 2013, the total domestic and export sales
volume of household air-conditioners in China increased by 7%
year on year, and the total domestic and export sales of central air-
conditioners increased by 11% year on year. The total domestic and
export sales volume of washing machines increased slightly by 0.5%
year on year, while that of refrigerator compressors increased by 5%
year on year. (Source: www.chinalOL.com)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s motor business
recorded a domestic sales of approximately 95,755,000 units and an
export sales of approximately 30,514,000 units, with the aggregate
sales volume increasing by 20% compared with the same period
last year. (Of these, the domestic sales and export sales of motors
for air-conditioners was 67,334,000 units and 15,840,000 units
respectively, with the aggregate sales volume increasing by 32%
compared with the same period last year. The domestic sales and
export sales of motors for washing machines was 11,961,000 units
and 12,831,000 units respectively, with the aggregate sales volume
decreasing by 4% compared with the same period last year.) The
Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$8,881,723,000
(including HK$4,979,943,000 from motors for air-conditioners and
HK$2,391,176,000 from motors for washing machines) for 2013,
representing a rise of 14% compared with the turnover for 2012 of
approximately HK$7,787,502,000 (including HK$3,881,386,000
from motors for air-conditioners and HK$2,277,617,000 from motors
for washing machines). The profit of the Group for 2013 amounted
to approximately HK$785,499,000, representing a growth of
approximately 23% compared with approximately HK$640,256,000
for the same period in 2012. The growth of motors for air-
conditioners was mainly driven by an increase in purchase orders
which benefited from the growth in the air-conditioner market and
the growth of sales of major customers. Against the backdrop of the
industry, the business of motors for washing machines achieved fairly
flat sales through its internal efforts and enhancement of customer
relations. The profit growth was driven by the improvement in internal
management, the adjustment of product sales mix and the growth of
aggregate sales volume.
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1.1

1.2

Motors for Air-Conditioners

By expanding our cooperation with major customers, we
capitalised on market opportunities promptly. During the period
of unusually hot weather in the second half of the year, we
were able to ramp up our production capacity quickly to meet
customer demands. Therefore, the sales volume of motors for
air-conditioners rose sharply compared with the same period
last year. The Group’s proactive development of brushless
direct current motor produced remarkable results in 2013,
with a substantial growth of 97% in sales volume compared
with the same period last year. The rapid growth is expected
to continue in the future. With regard to commercial motors,
we expanded our cooperation with professional central air-
conditioner manufacturers, driving up the sales volume by 39%
compared with the same period last year.

The sales volume of alternating current motors for air-
conditioners grew by 24% compared with the same period
last year. The growth of alternating current motors for air-
conditioners was mainly driven by an increase in purchase
orders which benefited from the growth in the air-conditioner
market and the growth of sales of major customers.

Motors for Washing Machines

As consumers shift to the newer generation of washing
machines, the demand for drum washing machines has
been rising gradually, and the growth of wave-wheel washing
machines will slow down. Affected by the end market, series
motors will maintain moderate growth. The existence of rigid
demand for wave-wheel motors means that it is unlikely to
decline in the short term.

We made critical breakthroughs in terms of customers and
new products. We have entered into formal cooperation with
top manufacturers in Europe for series motors. In addition, a
growth of purchase orders brought by the growth of existing
customers also contributed to a solid year-on-year increase in
the sales volume of series motors.

The sales volume of wave-wheel motors dropped by 15% year
on year, mainly due to the impact of a reduction in purchase
orders from South America. The reduction was a result of
rising tariffs in Brazil and the appreciation of Renminbi.

Welling Holding Limited | B ZEZRER AR

1.1

1.2

LA

BAMKEAEPEENRENMEE
BHIEETSEE  TEFEESA
RS - RIRERERCYE  mERP
AERR  ERAEMEBHEEERESF
FEHIRRERIG & o ANEBR A DAY R
BERBHRAE013FHEEL - HEEE
BABIGR @ RAFREALBRIT% - B
SHEENBRESRIERAEES - A
B E R R R FREH S BRI
HESRAFREIERI% o

REFZE iiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%éﬁziﬁﬂﬁi
’24%  EHEXABERNEREEZE

Wuﬂmiﬁi‘ﬁﬂj(%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁi‘émx
BT EBIER o

IR E

BAXXKETSEXEEEEBIRY
& OREAREOTRESIEN - K
MR IE IR - SRETIHF
B BHERSER/MRIEN  KRE
WERNMERKIFE - BEEHALERT
BRATBE

HREERERPNTERFAYEE
R » BRI A L BN TE 4 R P i A
FREERAR - ItH - BBRFPIEETS

RAGTEEN - IS BHERIBRAL
5 -

AE RIS AL T 15% - HE
THTESMETBUAVE  THE
SR REAEEMBA SARAR
FHEEH -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmED N

We commenced supply of direct current motors for
washing machines to industry leaders in China, making new
breakthroughs in high-end products.

With regard to other products, after years of development of
electrical tool motors, we have made critical breakthroughs in
2013, entering into formal cooperation with top international
brand manufacturers, and have commenced supply in 2014.

In 2013, the Group focused on the essence of operation. We have taken
a series of operational measures to achieve strategic focus, including
the integration of technical platforms, the alignment of quality standards,
the planning of manufacturing resources and the deployment of human
resources. By dedicating our advantageous resources and efforts to our
core products, we have enhanced our comprehensive competitiveness
significantly and increased the Group’s profitability continuously. This
was eventually reflected in our operating results, with record high
operating profit for 2013. In respect of R&D, we have fully integrated our
R&D resources and continued to accelerate the development of new
products. We have substantially completed the development of direct
current technical platform, covering all series of motors for white goods. In
respect of manufacturing technology, we have coordinated and optimised
the manufacturing resources across the Group to achieve professional
manufacturing at our production bases. By implementing a number of lean
production plans, we have improved our site management, manufacturing
technology and standardisation management significantly, laying a solid
foundation for building lean factories. To enhance quality control, we have
reinforced the rigid implementation of quality standards and implemented
quality control throughout the value chain, enhancing product quality
continuously.

In 2013, the Group conducted a number of reviews on operation,
identifying the path for corporate development in the future and setting our
strategic direction and focus, paving the way for building “a responsive and
customer-centred manufacturing enterprise”.
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Business of Associate

Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Huaxiang”, an associate
owned as to 49% by the Group) focused on adjusting its product
mix of counterweight casting parts for engineering machinery and
continued to implement its product strategy. Despite the depression
in the overall market of engineering machinery, Shanxi Huaxiang
recorded an impressive growth, with its sales volume rising 20%
compared with the same period last year. Given the transformation
of the household appliances industry, casting parts for air-conditioner
compressors and refrigerator compressors experienced fluctuations.
With the strong support from customers, Shanxi Huaxiang recorded
a solid growth. In the meantime, Shanxi Huaxiang continued to
enhance the development of strategic products, increase its input in
casting parts for vehicles and improve its product mix.

In response to customers’ strategic demands and the future
development, Shanxi Huaxiang has made substantial investment
in automatic casting, material recycling, solution to the bottleneck
in the production of engineering machinery, customer designated
mechanical processing projects, process innovation and the R&D of
new products.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Shanxi Huaxiang recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$1,409,240,000 (2012: approximately
HK$1,210,708,000), representing a year-on-year growth of 16%.
The Group’s share of profit of Shanxi Huaxiang was approximately
HK$22,405,000 (2012: approximately HK$17,322,000), representing
a year-on-year growth of 29%. The increase in turnover and profit
was mainly driven by higher gross margin brought by the adjustment
to the product mix of casting parts, the marginal effect of substantial
increase in the production of its industrial park, as well as the cost
reduction brought by the reform of its purchasing system and the
implementation of horizontal organisational structure.
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To recap the Group’s performance for the year, the sales volume in the
domestic market rose 29% year on year on the back of transformation and
increasing concentration of the electrical household appliances industry,
as well as stronger demand of motors for electrical household appliances
because of the unusually hot weather in the second half of the year. In
overseas markets, sales volume for the year showed a slight decrease of
2% year on year, partly due to the impact of the continued appreciation
of Renminbi, the fluctuations in exchange rates of Euro and US dollar and
trade barriers in emerging markets such as South America. In an effort to
achieve strategic focus, the Group took a series of operational measures
to drive transformation, thereby increasing its profitability significantly,
with critical breakthroughs in some key products. As domestic electrical
household appliances industry restored normal market conditions, along
with the gradual recovery of the global economy, the requirements of
the market on the capabilities of enterprises will become increasingly
demanding. The Group will continue to keep a close eye on national
policies and industry developments, while enhancing forward-looking
research and capitalising on market opportunities. The Group will adjust
its strategy in a timely manner in light of market demand and customers’
needs for upgrading, and enhance the core competitiveness of its
products. Meanwhile, the Group will drive its transformation to maintain its
leading position in the industry.

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity position with a
current ratio of 152% as at 31 December 2013 (2012: 140%).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was in a net cash position of
HK$1,555,657,000 (2012: HK$529,413,000), representing cash
and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,939,294,000 less total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$383,637,000 (comprising approximately HK$340,554,000 would be
due within one year and approximately HK$43,083,000 would be due over
one year).
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Financial Ratios

The following are certain financial ratios of the Group as at the consolidated
statement of financial position date:

iy s

TREFIAEERGAMBRRE DB BTG
Ho

2013 2012
Inventories turnover (Note 1) FEREER (M) 39 daysH 37 daysH
Trade receivables turnover (Note 2) Z 2 MR EE B (i zE2) 69 days H 77 daysH
Trade payables turnover (Note 3) B S S EE A (M7E3) 67 daysH 72 daysH

Current ratio (Note 4) BN L F (Pi3E4)
Notes:
1. Inventories turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening inventories

and closing inventories divided by the cost of goods sold of the year, and multiplied
by the total number of days of the year.

2. Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening
and closing of trade receivables of third parties and related parties, divided by the
revenue of the year, and multiplied by the total number of days of the year.

3. Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening and
closing of trade payables of third parties and related parties, divided by the cost of
goods sold of the year, and multiplied by the total number of days of the year.

4, Current ratio is calculated based on the year-end current assets divided by the year-
end current liabilities.

Pledge of Assets

No leasehold land and land use rights (2012: net book value of
HK$44,937,000) and property, plant and equipment (2012: net book value
of HK$53,126,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s banking
facilities as at 31 December 2013.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as the financial guarantees as disclosed below, as at 31 December
2013 and 2012, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has given guarantee to banks in
respect of the banking facilities extended to the associates of the Group of
approximately HK$942,508,000 (2012: approximately HK$719,571,000).
As at 31 December 2013, bank loans of approximately HK$613,076,000
(2012: approximately HK$540,141,000) being guaranteed by the Group to
associates have been drawn down.
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Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the capital expenditure of
the Group was approximately HK$182,053,000 (2012: approximately
HK$331,116,000) related to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s outstanding derivative financial
instrument assets and liabilities under various copper and aluminium
future contracts and foreign exchange forward contracts amounted to
approximately HK$26,128,000 and HK$3,017,000 respectively (2012:
derivative financial instrument assets and liabilities of approximately
HK$14,997,000 and HK$8,913,000 respectively).

Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

During the Year, approximately 31% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from export trading settled in Euro and US dollars. In the meantime, the
Group has also imported raw materials from the suppliers which were
paid in Euro and US dollars for settlement. As a result, foreign exchange
risks associated with these currencies were partially offset. On the other
hand, the Group has made arrangements to purchase foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposure arising from
export trading. The Group has stringent control over the risk of exchange
rate fluctuation, and will review from time to time the sufficiency and
appropriateness of the financial instruments which were currently used to
hedge significant foreign currency risks.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has contracted capital commitments
in respect of the purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$98,268,000 (2012: approximately HK$120,267,000).
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Human Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 12,489
full time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. While the Group was
supported by a team of young and competent staff, it does not ignore the
importance of the development, management and future planning of its
human resources. With the use of open recruitment, job rotation, internal
promotion and professional training for the recruitment, deployment and
nurture of employees, it is intended to ensure the selection and deployment
of employees to be carried out in an open, fair and equitable manner.
Besides, it could also provide staff with a platform for their promotion
and development. Through the implementation of comprehensive human
resources management, it is aimed at achieving the objectives of enhancing
employees contributions to the Group and shaping the Group’s strategic
advantages in human resources.

The Group has granted share options to employees as an incentive to
motivate its employees by linking their interests to the future development
and expansion of the Group. The Group currently provides employees with
competitive remuneration packages (comprising salary, bonus and benefits
in kind), adequate insurance cover (including pension, medical insurance,
unemployment compensation insurance, work injury compensation
insurance and maternity insurance) and housing provident fund. In addition,
the Group also provides its employees with other benefits including on-
the-job academic education, meal subsidy, housing subsidy, cooperative
medical scheme services, support fund and recreational activities etc.
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Business Prospects

Looking ahead to 2014, the global economy is expected to continue a
moderate growth. The pick-up in the recovery of developed economies
including the United States and Europe will provide a favourable
environment for China’s economic reform. China’s economic growth is
not expected to accelerate significantly in the short term, but the shift
from an investment-driven economy to a consumption-driven economy
will benefit the electrical household appliances industry. The transition
from administrative control to market liberalisation means that the supply
of housing will be on the rise, leading to higher demand for electrical
household appliances. Given the implementation of the new energy
efficiency standards and the experimental implementation of the “energy
efficiency leader” system, coupled with the rising trend of energy-saving,
smart, healthful and artistic features, the air-conditioner sector and washing
machine sector will accelerate the pace of product mix improvement.
The competitive edges of large integrated electrical household appliances
manufacturers in technology and marketing will become increasingly
prominent. The Group will increase its efforts in technological development
and market expansion in response to the development trends of
downstream industries. We will make deployments in the domestic and
overseas markets with a customer-centred approach, with a view to
increasing our market shares continuously and fuffilling our predetermined
profit target.

For our motor business, we intend to maintain our focus on core products,
while continuing our efforts to increase our market share. We will improve
delicacy management in relation to customers, offering better products
and services to major customers with which we have established strong
partnership. It is also our aim to expand our cooperation with these
customers and make efforts to expedite the penetration of other related
products. Meanwhile, we will try to develop new customers with significant
potentials in new markets by addressing their needs.
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Motor Business

1.1

1.2

Motors for Air-Conditioners

We aim at reinforcing our leading market position by striving
to provide customers with better products, speeding up our
responses and continuing to operate alternating current motors
effectively. We will continue to increase the competitive edge
of our alternating current motors and step up our promotional
efforts. We will also shorten the development cycles of new
products, especially the matching process in respect of
product development for Japanese and Korean customers,
driving full coverage. We will further accelerate the development
of commercial motors and enhance the cooperation with
professional central air-conditioner manufacturers. In 2014, our
production base in Changzhou has commenced full operation
to meet the future needs of customers of commercial motors
for lean production.

Motors for Washing Machines

Overseas washing machine markets are expected to remain
steady or increase moderately as a result of the positive effect
of the economic recovery in Europe and the United States
coupled with the growth in emerging markets. However,
brand concentration will further increase, and the proportion
of consumption of high-end washing machines will rise. The
application of direct current motors will accelerate in developed
economies, and the demand for series motors is expected
to remain steady or drop moderately. The demand for wave-
wheel motors will continue to grow steadily given positive
momentum in emerging markets including Southeast Asia and
Brazil as a result of improvement in living standard.

By enhancing technological research and process innovation,
the Group has improved the competitive edge of our series
motors and wave-wheel motors substantially. The Group will
drive our strategic cooperation with major customers. In the
meantime, we will further expand into Southeast Asia and
South America for wave-wheel motors, maintain our market
shares for series motors and wave-wheel motors and reinforce
our market position. In respect of direct current motors for
washing machines, we will ensure normal supply of products,
improve our manufacturing standards and enhance our ability
to ensure timely delivery. We will also accelerate the matching
process for interested potential customers and continue to
expand our customer base.

Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR

1.2

EFi

&

#

RBEBRBARFPRHEFOMNER - MR
RIERE - BELETRREHE  ZE
TISLEEMN - HERABRERNR
Fh o MAHMENE  EREFGHEEE
H - BRIRABREAREFHNFAEICARR
o HESMESZ  E—FNREASE
HEIRE - DR ok 22 S R R A
S1F 20145 - EMEM P ER AR
A R EAERE PR ERbE
EFEKe

IR HE T 35 52 BR S 48 775 18 B 0 37 B
MISNEMIERFE - FREFHRHA
Tt ERmEETERE- SRS S
MRHEBBGL IR - BELERR

HIEFTERICBE IR - At RAE
FREBPNETEE - MRRERTRE

T BEEHETIS A EK R IE
A - FRFERERT

S EEB MM FE AN T &5 - #E
RERTTRAERIL R BRAOERS
Fh o EEBEENAEERTERS
MBS AME - R INARBEMEE
5K B AR - HER B ERAM
RERBRA TSN - RICTHIHIAL -
MAEREERERRECHEERNLS
e RBAREKT - R EREE
N WIREAEFHNFEECEEE
BEREARP@E -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmED N

2. Business of Associate

Shanxi Huaxiang will drive its reform, promote delicacy management
and continue to implement its product strategy through R&D and
innovation. While enhancing the competitive edge of its casting
parts for air-conditioner compressors and refrigerator compressors,
Shanxi Huaxiang will roll out its market strategy for casting parts for
vehicles and speed up the progress in the automation of mechanical
processing. In 2014, Shanxi Huaxiang will complete the relocation
of its subsidiary and make full deployment of green production of
casting parts in Huaxiang Industrial Park, laying a solid foundation for
future competition.

The Group will maintain its strategic focus, monitor the essence of
operation and continue to enhance its profitability. We will remain customer-
centred and increase the competitive edge of our products. With top
priority given to product quality, we will enhance the rigid implementation
of quality standards while improving the whole-process management
and enhancement of product quality. We will continue to streamline our
internal workflows to increase operational efficiency and optimise the
allocation of resources, with a focus on the return on assets. We will also
continue to introduce core strategies and technical talents to improve our
portfolio of talents, providing continuous momentum to drive the Group’s
transformation.
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Corporate Business Strategies

In line with its mission “creating value for customers”, the Group will
continue to drive its transformation and promote delicacy management. We
will keep optimising our product mix to increase our profitability. Keeping
customer needs in mind, we will respond to customers’ needs for upgrading
in a timely manner. We will continue to improve customer satisfaction by
improving our systems, enhancing our ability to ensure timely delivery and
providing prompt responses. We intend to accelerate R&D and promotion,
enhance the research on core technologies, promote standardisation
management and continue to enhance the management of and input in
intellectual property, with an aim to increase the core competitive edge of
our products and improve our ability of technical innovation. With a view to
increasing our manufacturing efficiency, we will hire experts specialised in
manufacturing process to promote the standardisation of manufacturing.
Meanwhile, we will increase the level of automation swiftly to improve lean
production. In an effort to improve product quality on an ongoing basis, we
will improve the quality control system for the whole value chain, implement
quality control at the source by improving the quality level of our suppliers
and enhance rigid implementation and process control. We will also gear
up the improvement of our customer complaint platform and the closed-
loop problem management. Taking into account various dimensions
of business operation, we aim to establish a comprehensive delicacy
management system. We will seek to hire middle to high level talents
specialised in strategy, R&D and process to improve our portfolio of talents,
S0 as to ensure sustainable and favourable corporate development.
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The Company has always endeavoured to achieve a high standard
of corporate governance so as to enhance the transparency and
accountability to the shareholders of the Company. The board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance
will contribute to maximise the corporate value of the Company to its
shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its
corporate governance policies and practices.

The Executive Committee of the Company was entrusted by the Board
with delegated authority to review the Company’s compliance with the
corporate governance practices. Having considered the review presented
by the Executive Committee, the Board confirmed that, save as disclosed
below, the Company had complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
during the Year.

In respect of code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, an Independent Non-
executive Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting and
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company both held on 30 May
2013 due to other important business engagement.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.
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The Board

The Board is responsible for laying down the Group’s future development
direction, overall strategies and policies, the evaluation of the performance
of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of
material and substantial in nature. Senior management of the Company
was delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group.
Senior management of each division is responsible for different businesses
and functions of the Group in accordance with its particular area of
expertise. The Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Details of these Board committees are set out below in
this report.

The Board regularly reviewed the contribution required from a Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and whether he/she
is spending sufficient time performing his/her duties. Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) are active in participating regular
Board meetings and other Board meetings for discussing and approving
significant issues of the Group so as to make an effective Board for a
timely strategic decision and to ensure the operations of the Group in line
with such strategies. Independent Non-executive Directors perform their
monitoring role and devote their time and effort to make contribution to the
development of strategies and internal control and risk management of the
Group.

For each of the Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2013, each Director had been consulted beforehand and served with
prior notice to enable him/her to include matters in the agenda of the
forthcoming Board meeting.

The Board will hold four regular meetings every year at approximately
quarterly intervals. The Company generally gives at least 14 days notice
in advance for regular Board meetings and gives reasonable notice for all
other Board meetings in order to give all Directors opportunity to attend the
meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had
complied with the said notice requirements for Board meetings by giving
all Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend. All Directors
are active in participating the regular Board meetings, whether in person
or through telephone conference or video conference, to make an effort to
contribute to the affairs to be dealt with by Directors at the Board meetings.

24

Welling Holding Limited | B ZEZRER AR

Exg

EESRAMUAERZARRERA M - EREBE
RBE  FHEAKBEZ FERR - WREE RILE
’|"$f£§7<2$ﬁ ° §$@T§$%$QEZ%%& EIEA
CRAETEAEEZAR CITHREE - &
’n‘% %%&%I@)\E?ﬁzﬁ?ﬁ%éﬂﬂi%%lei&lzx\

‘[]II

REBLBE BEFSTREKEEZZEGRER
ERE - ZFEFRBEZHABEHNARE T

EESTHIRNESETEEEMBENER - AR
HELAHEAEEETERE - EF(BREELF
WITER)ORB2ETHETS R MM TwR
HWEAREEZFTENESTSE R 28
RARIIELREORTE - YHERAEEN2ENTS
ZERE - BUFRTEERITRED -%‘3%@'
REBEREB R BESER - QARSI K& E
BIELHER °

/\Alg

REZE2013F12A31 Bt FERIT B RESS
THER  SETHRSIESERITERZAR

T EETRBERTNEEE SRR NATH
FHE-

EFXeEFRTARENMESR BT K - ARF
—REIM4BRREEHESSTHERBE -
YA RMEFTE SRR LAEAS
EEREHFEREEE -

FE ARREATLAEESSZRERTE &
PREFATMBEFLEE LR S %‘%ﬁ*

s i =
’ uﬁ%E‘

HZE2013F12 531 EIJJ:

ExPER2ETHESEER(TRRG SRS
BELREZIREER)  BNHESFEEFES
FEIENEHELER ©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

All Directors could have accessed to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures are complied with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations and corporate governance practices
and policies.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings which shall record in sufficient detail the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed at the meetings. For each of the Board meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2013, draft and final versions of the
minutes of Board meetings were sent to all Directors within reasonable time
(generally within 14 days for both cases) after the Board meeting had been
held for their comments and records respectively. All Board minutes are
kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection by all Directors at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

The Company’s corporate governance guidelines give all Directors the
rights, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, and in such
circumstances, the Board shall resolve to provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by a physical Board meeting but not a written resolution. Subject
to the exceptions set out in the Listing Rules, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material
interest nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum present at the relevant
Board meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors was arranged. The Board
will review regularly to ensure there is adequate insurance cover for the
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are performed by separate individuals so as to enhance the division of
responsibilities between them and to ensure a balance of power and
authority. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Zhou Xiangyang
and Mr. Jiang Deqing respectively.
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The role of the Chairman is to be responsible for taking the lead of the
Board in determining the strategic direction of the Group, ensuring that all
Directors are properly briefed on business contemplated at Board meetings
and receive timely, adequate, complete and reliable information, good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established as well
as managing a good relationship and communication with shareholders.
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company with the support of other
Executive Directors is responsible for implementation of strategic planning
of different business functions and day-to-day management of business
and operations of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Chairman held a meeting
with all Independent Non-executive Directors without the Executive
Directors present.

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised of nine Directors, including
six Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (Chairman), Mr. Jiang
Deqing (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Lu Xiaoji, Mr. Li Yang, Ms. Yuan Liqun
and Mr. Li Feide and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao. Throughout
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has complied with Rules
3.10(1), 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the board) including at least one independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Ms. Cao Zhoutao was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 21 October 2013 in place of Ms. Chen Chunhua who resigned as
an Independent Non-executive Director on the same date.

The biographies of each of the Directors are set out in pages 46 to 51
in this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Directors are advised to inform the Company
of any change to the number and nature of offices they held in public
companies or organisations and their other significant commitments in a
timely manner.

The Directors, including the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, have
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships with
each other.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
other qualities of Directors) of the Board and confirmed that the Company
has maintained a balanced composition with a strong independent element
on the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are active in participating in
Board meetings to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. They will take the lead where potential conflicts
of interests of other Directors arise. They serve as members of various
Board committees and will scrutinise the performance of the Group in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives and monitor performance
reporting.

Mr. Lam Ming Yung has served the Board as an Independent Non-
executive Director for more than nine years. Given his professional
knowledge and experience and no connection with any Director or
substantial shareholder of the Company and their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules), the Board considered that Mr. Lam is
independent despite of his long term service with the Company.

The annual confirmation of independence made by each of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules were received by the Company and reviewed by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has assessed their
independence and confirmed that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are considered independent within the definitions of the Listing
Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”)
require that (i) every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and (i) the Managing Director of the Company (if any) shall whilst holding
office as such be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and shall be taken into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire by rotation in each year.
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The Articles of Association provide that at every annual general meeting of
the Company, and notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
a Director may be appointed or engaged, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that, notwithstanding anything therein, every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code,
any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company. The Board
is of the view that such mechanism helps to ensure orderly succession to
the appointments to the Board and that changes to its composition can be
managed without undue disruption.

On 30 May 2013, the Company entered into letters of appointment with
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua, each an
Independent Non-executive Directors, for a term commencing on 30
May 2013 and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general
meeting.

On 21 October 2013, the Company entered into a letter of appointment
with Ms. Cao Zhoutao, an Independent Non-executive Director (in place
of Ms. Chen Chunhua who resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director on the same date) for a term commencing on 21 October 2013
and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general meeting.

All these letters of appointment shall be terminable by either party upon one
month’s written notice to the other party or the payment to other party of a
sum equal to the relevant Director’s monthly remuneration.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the nomination of new
Directors for appointment by the Board. Any nomination of Director will be
reviewed and discussed by the Nomination Committee on the nominee’s
qualifications, experience and ability relevant to the requirements of the
Company'’s business.

According to the Articles of Association, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall be eligible for re-election but shall not be taken into
account in determining the number of Directors to retire by rotation at such

meeting.

28

Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR

ARERANRERAARBERRBFAE L
THEERZTHEEZEMNE OERRIEM MG
K BR=ZDZ —2EE(AMEEARLIF=21
o AASEOIENPR =0 2 — 2 ABURYE) /Al
FRE - HETHREPAEANR  SRER(BERE
EEHEZ I EF)ARIBIFHFERE R -
RIBEEERTRINENR - EHEREAR DB
BOFH B FNTESE - TNENZERBFTAR
AIRRABIORAEMNE - EEERRE KRN AE
PERESE L REFERF2EE  EMAER
HAKEE @ @ TNEE TE -

201358308 * ANARIEENEE « MAHE
EAERRELEL T (FEAERBAIFNTEE)FIL
ZAZE - FHR2013F5 A0 M EA R A N E
RREAF RS BEALE -

2013F10A21H » AAREEMNEL LRI LET
E ZEEABMIFRITEEZ(BEENFR—BEHIE
SIERITESNRELL L) - FHH2013F 104
1HFABREARR A TEREBAFAE AL -

MBEZEZEENHERN—TAS—FEE—EA
EEARARA S I XNEENERESS A M
ZEET AR -

REZESEERANTEEFUHEFSERME -
MEFRLEHRERZ BRI R ARKRRZE
BERBANER - KB RENERERN MR -

REBABEEAR  EESHRTBHANEMRER
ZEEMALREFTNERBR TRKFEFTEE
SNEE EAUEHEEFEZECESTEHEET
ERRBFAER/IL  XRERER  BFFFHA
NEFERZ R tWERTZESARA -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

The Nomination Committee has examined the terms of appointment
of Directors, and also reviewed and assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and made recommendation to the
Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Directors Continuous Training and Development
Programme

To ensure that every newly appointed Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities as a Director of the Company under statue
and common law, each of the newly appointed Director will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction and also the orientation
package containing the information with regard to the duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances
and relevant regulatory requirements and the business and corporate
governance policies of the Company.

Subsequently, updated information and continuous professional
development training will also be provided to all the Directors when
necessary to keep them abreast of the latest changes and development
in legal, regulatory and corporate governance requirements and develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. In addition, the Company through dissemination of monthly
updates in respect of the financial and operational review provides to the
Directors with information in relation to the latest development of the Group’s
business. Besides of arranging formal training seminars for the Directors,
the Company Secretary will forward the latest news and information about
the Company published in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the requirements of the code provision set out in the CG Code,
all Directors have to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has put
in place on-going training and professional development programme for
Directors to help them discharge their duties. Directors are also required to
provide to the Company records of other training they received to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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During the Year, the Company organised an in-house seminar for the
Directors and senior management and invited the auditor of the Company
as the speaker to present to the Directors and senior management the
information with regard to the recent trends in corporate governance,
case studies relating to risk management and compliance, and the
development of environmental, social and governance reporting issues. Ms.
Cao Zhoutao, the newly appointed Independent Non-executive Director
has attended a director induction seminar organised by the solicitor of
distinguished law firm.

Supply of and Access to Information

In connection with the convening of regular Board meetings and any
meeting of the Board committees, agenda of the meeting accompanying
with the relevant documents will be sent to all Directors or members of the
Board committee at least three days before the date of the Board meeting
or Board committee meeting.

Management has an obligation to supply the Board and the Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
members of the Board and the Board committees to make informed
decisions. Where any Director requires more information than is volunteered
by management, each Director may contact senior management
through individual and independent channel(s) to make further enquires if
necessary and such enquiries will be responded to by management within
a reasonable time with sufficient details. Furthermore, minutes of Board
meetings or meetings of Board committees are open for inspection by
Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice given.

During the Year, all Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with
the updated management and financial information of the Group, giving
them an opportunity to have a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s latest performance, position, recent developments and
prospects in sufficient detail and facilitating them to discharge their duties
under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established four Board committees with defined scope of
duties in written form. These Board committees are the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee.
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A nomination policy concerning the nomination of Directors and diversity
of perspectives for the Board’s consideration and a revised set of terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee in compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code were adopted and approved by the Board on 18
October 2013 and are available on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the website of the
Company at http://www.welling.com.cn.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to obtain independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the expense of the
Company if they consider necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 5 August 1999.
All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors, at least one of whom has possessed professional qualifications
and accounting and financial management related expertise.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman of Audit Committee), Mr.
Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao Zhoutao (appointed on 21 October 2013 in
place of Ms. Chen Chunhua).

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing
and monitoring the integrity of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
and risk management of the Group, reviewing the findings from the works
carried out by internal audit department and monitoring the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor and approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor. Before commencement of annual
audit, the Audit Committee will discuss with the external auditor the nature
and scope of audit, the significant risk analysis and the impact of the
change in accounting policies on the financial statements of the Group. The
Audit Committee is required to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards.

The Audit Committee will liaise with the Board and senior management
regularly and meet at least twice a year with the Company’s external
auditor.
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Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
who also serves as secretary of the Audit Committee. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of Audit Committee meetings are sent to all
members of the Committee for their comments and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting (usually within 14 days after the meeting).

The Audit Committee had performed the following works during the year
ended 31 December 2013 and up to 10 March 2014:

(i) reviewed the Company’s 2012 annual report and the preliminary
announcement of final results;

(ii) reviewed the Company’s 2013 interim report and the preliminary
announcement of interim results;

(i)  approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor for 2013 audit and other matters;

(iv)  reviewed the 2013 internal control report prepared by the internal
audit department and reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system and risk management of the Group;

(v)  reviewed the connected and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year;

(v)  acted as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor and reviewed and monitored the
external auditor’s independence and the non-audit services provided
by the external auditor;

(vi)  reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes;

(viii) advised on significant events of the Company and highlighted the
related risks to the management;

(ix)  reviewed arrangements for employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters and confirmed that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation of
these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

(x)  reviewed the Company’s 2013 annual report and the preliminary
announcement of final results.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2013 consolidated
financial statements, including the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor
and recommended to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for the re-
appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
external auditor for the year 2014. The recommendation will be put forward
for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is set out as follows:

EZZEGCHRAANARINEZEMENAER
2013F A HHRE - REARERAZ g5 RA
RBUR - WMEEEEZRIEEZE2013F12A318
I FEZIRAMTERE

SFRARERERYRAEN EERRANER
SHETE TSR 87K 2 FA2014% 7 SN IRBED - 3
AEHARF 2 EERTAFAS RS FRE
£ o

HZE2013F12A31 B IEFE - MARRINERBZ
YRR TR E S BRI 2B &M T

Fee paid/payable

e EBNER

HK$’000

BT

Audit services and review of continuing connected transactions ZERTS KBRS ERER S 2,559

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 22
September 2005. Chairman and majority of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Cao Zhoutao (chairman of Remuneration
Committee) (appointed on 21 October 2013 in place of Ms. Chen
Chunhua), Mr. Tan Jinsong and Mr. Lam Ming Yung and two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Jiang Deging. The Company
adopted the model set out in code provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code
as its Remuneration Committee model under which the Remuneration
Committee shall determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the followings:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

FMWEES

FESHN2005F9A22HKY HFMEE S - FME
BeEFENAIADKEBBILIENITES -

FNEE SRR HIBBUERTETEMNE LT
(FHMZEETE)(R2013F10F21BEE T » A
BEEMELLT) ENREERMBABLE - LR
2EHTESE RIS EREEB LA AR BREP
D EEATRIST RIS EB.1.20)0) EFrEiH i R e
REFHZESHER BUHTHEZESERES
EETENATEZ RS REBAENTIEFS -

YFMZES 2 T 2REBRE

) FARREFRSREEABZBEHFMBER
KIEE - BRI IERMAERE 22 FHIRT
I EHIRE - MEESRLEBER

33

Annual Report 3 2013



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

(iii)

)

(V)

(vii)

to review and determine, with delegated responsibilities and
authorisation by the Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Independent Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss of termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensative arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Directors or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee had performed the following works during
the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to 10 March 2014:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

34

reviewed the remuneration proposals for Executive Directors and
senior management with reference to the achievement of corporate
goals and objectives set by the Board;

approved the remuneration packages of Executive Directors (except
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and senior management
after consultations with the Chairman;

reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in a committee meeting at which
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer abstained from voting
in respect of the resolutions approving their own remuneration
packages; and

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration and terms of appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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The Company’s remuneration policy for Executive Directors and senior
management are set on the basis that the remuneration level of Executive
Directors and senior management will be linked with their responsibilities
and contributions to the achievement of corporate performance target of
the Company as resolved by the Board from time to time. For the purpose
of determining the level of remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management, appraisal of the work performance of the Executive Directors
and senior management will be conducted annually at the end of each year.
Such work performance of Executive Directors and senior management
will be judged by the extent to which the Group’s budget target is met
and the financial performance of the Group in terms of sales revenue and
net profits as disclosed in the audited financial statements is achieved.
Proposals for remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management
will be prepared by the Human Resources Department based on the
relevant remuneration data and prevailing market conditions and submitted
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and approval. Director’s
fee payable to Independent Non-executive Directors shall be reviewed
annually by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the fees paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and determined by the Board
after taking into account the recommendation made by the Remuneration
Committee. No Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:
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REMEESRZILE - FHEESRZEREAR
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201312 A31 B 1L FE L H B4 5 2 71| &9 % Bl a0
—F :

Number of

individuals
Remuneration band (HK$) A B (B E) AB
Nil to 3,000,000 £ 23,000,000 5
Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12 431 BILFE - EFME ZFFBER

are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 9 March
2012 with majority of its members being Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee shall be responsible mainly for
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises five members including two
Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (chairman of Nomination
Committee) and Mr. Jiang Deqing and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Cao
Zhoutao (appointed on 21 October 2013 in place of Ms. Chen Chunhua).

Minutes of the Nomination Committee meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary who also serves as secretary of the Nomination Committee.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of Nomination Committee meetings
are sent to all members of the Committee for their comments and records
within a reasonable time after the meeting (usually within 14 days after the
meeting).

The Nomination Committee had performed the following works during the
year ended 31 December 2013 and up to 10 March 2014

(i) considered and approved the recommendation to the Board of
the appointment of an Independent Non-executive Director and
an Executive Director to fill the casual vacancies arisen from the
resignation of an Independent Non-executive Director and an
Executive Director;

(i) formulated the nomination policy for appointment of Directors to be
submitted to the Board for approval;

(i)  reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities of
Directors) of the Board, the competences of Directors and the
balance between Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors, and is of the view that there is an appropriate and diverse
mix of skills and experience;

(iv)  reviewed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and confirmed that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
considered independent; and

(v)  reviewed the profile and performance of Directors who will be subject
to re-election by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and recommended
to the Board the re-appointment of those retiring Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board on 18 April
2006. As at 31 December 2013, the Executive Committee comprised of
all the Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (chairman of the
Executive Committee), Mr. Jiang Deqing, Mr. Lu Xiaoji, Mr. Li Yang, Ms.
Yuan Liqun and Mr. Li Feide. Under its term of reference, the Executive
Committee shall be responsible for determining matters relating to the
Group’s day-to-day operations management and administration.

In addition to the daily management and administration functions, the
Executive Committee was delegated with the duties and responsibilities to
monitor and oversee the corporate governance functions of the Group.

The Executive Committee had performed the works relating to the
corporate governance functions of the Group as follows during the year
ended 31 December 2013 and up to 10 March 2014:

(i) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(i) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  reviewed and monitored the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the “Corporate
Governance Code” contained in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

The attendance record of each of the Directors at the Board meetings,

Audit Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination

Committee meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the

year ended 31 December 2013 and the tenure of office of each individual

Director are set out in the following table:

EEHESRLE

REEHFEARARTEHE2013F12A31B L FERE
EREEETHHANBTHNESESSH  EXEE
eeR  FHZEeen  RAZESEHERE

A& ZRHFFBEN TR

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meetings
ERZES yFMzEg REZEE

Bz EE ez g3 a3 RRAE

(Note 1) (Note 2)

Cia)) (Ws2)
Number of Meetings held SRBITRH 10 3 1 2 2
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang (Chairman) BErGEE(£E) 10110 - 11 - 2/2
Mr. Jiang Deqing (Chief Executive Officer) ~ ZE&E 54 (BRHITE) 10/10 - n - 2/2
Mr. Lu Xiaoji REMLE 10/10 - - - 2/2
Mr. Li Yang FiHEE 10/10 - - - 2/2
Ms. Yuan Ligun RABLL 8/10 - - - 2/2
Mr. Li Feide FRERE 910 - - - 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. Tan Jinsong BN E 10/10 3/3 il 2/2 2/2
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEARLE 10/10 3/3 11 2/2 2/2
Ms. Chen Chunhua (Note 3) REELT(FiFs) 8/9 2/2 - 2/2 0/2
Ms. Cao Zhoutao (Note 4) BB (Fi7E4) 1/1 il il - -
Notes: BieE
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board held four regular meetings and six
additional meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company held two general meetings,
including the annual general meeting and the extraordinary general meeting both held on
30 May 2013.

Ms. Chen Chunhua resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 21 October 2013. She was unable to attend a
meeting of the Board, the annual general meeting and the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company all held on 30 May 2013 due to other important business engagement.

Ms. Cao Zhoutao was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 21 October 2013. She attended all the
meetings of the Board and relevant Board committees held during her tenure of office for
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, namely, Ms. Tang Wai Ying, Tracy, is also the
Financial Controller of the Company. She has the day-to-day knowledge of
the affairs of the Company. Ms. Tang is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board
by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the Board
policies and procedures are duly followed. She also acts as the secretary
of the Board committees to ensure that all records of meeting proceedings,
discussion and decision of such Board committees and Directors’ training
are properly kept. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of
the Board and is responsible for facilitating the induction to be provided
to newly appointed Directors and continuous professional development
training to be provided to existing Directors and advising the Board through
the Chairman on corporate governance matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company Secretary
has completed at least 15 hours’ professional training by attending the
continuing professional development programmes as well as seminars
covering regulatory updates and professional knowledge about company
secretarial duties launched by professional bodies.

All Directors could have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statements of the Directors and the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 69 to 70
of this annual report.
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Disclosure of Long Term Basis for Generating
or Preserving Business Value

An analysis of the Group’s corporate strategy and long term business
model adopted for delivering the objectives of the Company is set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective internal
control system in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
fraud or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objective.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Company’s assets;
(b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

Management and internal audit department regularly review the Group’s
internal control system which covers financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions to ensure that it remains
efficient and effective.

The Company has a full set of Internal Control System Manual (the “Manual”)
which was approved by the Board. The Manual contains a comprehensive
overview and description of the objectives, content, methods and duties
of the internal control system, and facilitates the ongoing examination and
evaluation of the Company’s compliance with existing rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. During the year ended 31
December 2013 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
consistently applied the full set of Manual which covers the control of
high-risk areas of operations, suppliers, sales, finance and personnel
management. The Board has, through the Audit Committee, carried out
ongoing examination and monitoring of the Group’s internal control system.

During the Year, the Group based on the internal audit findings and
improvement plans submitted by the internal audit department to the Audit
Committee continued to enhance and improve the internal control system
of the Group.
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The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are properly
authorised and proper accounting records are maintained. The Board
has reviewed and considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function are adequate.

Shareholders’s Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all holders of the ordinary
shares in the issued share capital of the Company shall have the same
rights.

1. Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”):

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right
to vote on the resolution at general meetings of the Company can
request the Board to convene an EGM pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”). The written requisition must state the objects of the
EGM and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office at Suite 3904, 39/F,
Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary in
hard copy form or in electronic form.

Upon receipt of the notice of requisition to convene an EGM, the
share registrar of the Company will first verify the validity of the
requisition. If the requisition is confirmed in order, the Company
Secretary will promptly arrange with the Board to convene an EGM
by serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders of the
Company in accordance with the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. Otherwise, if the requisition is verified not in order,
the requisitionists will be advised accordingly and no EGM will be
convened as requested.
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If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM for a
day not more than twenty-eight (28) days after the date on which the
notice convening the EGM is given, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from the date
of requisition. Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists
by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene an EGM shall
be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

Rights and procedures for shareholders to
make proposals at an annual general meeting:

Shareholders may make any proposals relating to the business of
the Company by sending such proposals to the Board through the
Company Secretary. For the requisition of a proposed resolution
to be moved or business to be dealt with at the annual general
meeting, shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance as below.

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders can submit
a written requisition to request the Company to (a) give to the
shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the
shareholders entitled to have notice of the annual general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting if they representing

(i) at least one-fortieth (2.5%) of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having a right to vote on the resolution at the

annual general meeting of the Company; or

(i) at least fifty (50) shareholders having a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company.
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Such a requisition must

(@  be signed by the requisitionists (which may be contained in
one document or in several documents in like form); and

(b)  be deposited at the Company’s registered office at Suite 3904,
39/F, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form
not less than six (6) weeks before the annual general meeting
in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or if
later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director:

Pursuant to Article 89 of the Articles of Association, no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been given to the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notices are given, shall be at least seven (7) days. The
period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Shareholder(s) who wish(es) to nominate a person for election as
a Director at a general meeting should deposit to the Company
Secretary (i) a notice in writing stating your intention to propose
a person to be elected as a Director at the general meeting; (ii)
the notice in writing of the willingness of the nominated person
to be elected as a Director; and (i) the biographical details of the
nominated person as set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
within seven (7) days after the date of despatch of the notice of the
general meeting by the Company to all shareholders (or such other
period, being a period of not less than seven (7) days, as may be
determined and announced by the Directors of the Company from
time to time) to enable shareholders to make an informed decision
on their election.

HEMENRBA :

@ HWABKALERZB(RZIUHN MK
B RIERMANXHA) + &

(b)  BARDARARE FHNERI AR BT
=R - it AT BN ELDEER
BOSRIE B U B K [E 55 6 BE 39183904
= - WHRARGFABARMNE - EE
BHBARRARRNER  ZEMEXK
BIEZR R B RGRITAITDRINE)
B2 xE  WEHR - BIAEHZ
AR ER A R g i an 2 B o

BRREREALTSRESNERF

RBEGERMAIEE - BRE EHRY
BRI BHREERREET  FAALHT
BRMERREAE EEEPTES - RIEFE
REABAT2HRESERMAAREEHHE
FBA - EEZEIRA AL RARA R RS
FEE2EMNEMBA - KIAREANERR -
BRXEMBAs&EHRARLENX M
ERZEMA T BET SRR TR TR R
EEoREASBEEZA - KTABERZKR
AERITHIRE7)XK -

BEREARRRRRS LIREEAALLES
ENPRREEARRRAZEBRRTERHERE
REHBEBBMREOARAN(KARAEEA
REFRIE R A E A A RE (T 2 RE@7)
REHIRED) MR BWERRORPITERBR
RELRE-BATSEREENERBRA
(ERBATHEBEERESTNEDR &
(i) EFRAIFE13 51 ERFE IR S ALHE
FE - AERRAEESR—F HERABAIRE °

43

Annual Report 3 2013



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

4. Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries
to the Board:

Shareholders and other stakeholders may, at any time, send their
enquiries or concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary in writing by mail to the Company’s registered
address at Suite 3904, 39/F, Tower 6 The Gateway, 9 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary will
forward the enquiries or concerns to the Chairman of the Board or
the chairman of the Board committees or senior management as

appropriate within their area of responsibilities for handling.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes that general meeting can provide an open forum
for communication between the Board and the shareholders of the
Company. Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings of
the Company and give valuable advice to the Company through this direct
communication platform. The Company will convene an annual general
meeting every year and convene any other general meetings as required.
Sufficient notice for annual general meeting and other general meetings will
be given to the shareholders in compliance with the requirements of the
Articles of Association, the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
The Chairman of the Board will attend annual general meeting and invite
the chairman of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and other Board Committees, in their absence, other members
of these Board Committees, to attend annual general meeting. They will
be available to answer questions raised by shareholders at annual general
meeting. The chairman or other members of the independent board
committee (if any) will be available to answer questions at any general
meeting to approve connected transaction or any other transaction that
requires independent shareholders’ approval. External auditors will be
invited to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, accounting policies and auditor’s independence.
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To facilitate enforcement of shareholders’ rights, substantially different
issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general meetings of the
Company.

Annual and interim reports and any significant events of the Company fall
to be disclosed in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements will be published
in a timely manner through the Company’s website so as to safeguard the
shareholders’ rights of information.

The Company’s website at http://www.welling.com.cn provides timely and
updated information on investor relations, corporate governance and other
latest news of the Company to enable shareholders and investors to have
timely access to information about the Group.

The investor relations department of the Company is responsible for
handling the communications with our investors, it will regularly organise
road shows and one-on-one meetings with institutional investors and
financial analyst to promote better understanding of the Company and
keep continuous dialogues with professional investors.

The Company has established the shareholders communication policy
which is available on the website of the Company.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the Year.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
the Executive Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since 12 December 2012. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in
July 1996. Mr. Zhou is the General Manager of the Group. He has held
various senior management positions in the Group and has considerable
experience in sales, marketing and management of the business operations
of the Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering from Harbin
Institute of Technology and an Executive Master of Business Administration
Degree (EMBA) from the Guanghua School of Management of Peking
University.

On 15 January 2014, Mr. Zhou was also appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. JIANG Deqing, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 31 August 2008. Mr. Jiang
is @ member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Group in May
1995. He was the Deputy General Manager of the Group. He has held
various senior management positions in the Group and has over 18 years
of experience in the motor industry and years of managerial experience.
Mr. Jiang holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration (Industrial
Trade) from Chongging University and an Executive Master of Business
Administration Degree (EMBA) from the Guanghua School of Management
of Peking University.

On 15 January 2014, Mr. Jiang resigned as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company but remains as an Executive Director, a member of the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee of the Company.
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Mr. LU Xiaoji, aged 36, was appointed as an Executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer, a member of the Executive Committee and an authorised
representative of the Company on 12 December 2012. Mr. Lu joined the
Group in July 1999. Mr. Lu was the Financial Controller of the Group and
served various senior and middle management positions in the Group. He
had considerable experience in the Group’s business financial planning,
accounting and auditing, costing management and fund management. Mr.
Lu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics with a major in Accounting
from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics and a Master of
Business Administration Degree from the South China University of
Technology. He is a certified public accountant of China.

On 15 January 2014, Mr. Lu resigned as an Executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer, a member of the Executive Committee and an authorised
representative of the Company due to the new work deployment made by
Midea Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. LI Yang, aged 35, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company since 12 December
2012. Mr. Li joined the Group in July 2001. Mr. Li is the director of
operations and human resources department of the Group and has
extensive experience in operations, human resources and strategic
management. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from the
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics.

Ms. YUAN Liqun, aged 44, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an Executive
Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. Ms. Yuan is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She is also a director of a subsidiary
of the Group. She joined the Midea Group in 1992. She has held various
senior management positions in the Midea Group and has considerable
experience in finance, audit and overall management. Ms. Yuan is a director
and senior vice-president of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), the chief financial officer of Midea Group
and the chairman of Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd. She was a director and
the supervisor of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of which were
de-listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 18 September 2013 and
this company was de-registered on 19 December 2013). Ms. Yuan holds
a Master of International Management Degree from The Australian National
University.
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Mr. LI Feide, aged 36, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company since 12 December
2012. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Li joined the
Midea Group in July 1999. Mr. Li is a director and the chief officer of the
strategic business development unit of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Li was the manager of
planning and investment department and the associate director of strategic
development department of Midea Group. He was also a director and the
board secretary of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of which were
de-listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 18 September 2013 and this
company was de-registered on 19 December 2013) and a director of Wuxi
Little Swan Holding Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Mechanical Engineering
and Automation from Huazhong University of Science and Technology and
an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree (EMBA) from the
Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. TAN Jinsong, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1 August 2009. Mr. Tan is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Tan is a
non-practicing member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He was approved as a PRC registered accountant in
June 1995 and has become a non-practicing member of the Guangdong
Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2003. He
possesses over 28 years of experience in the profession of accounting and
financial management. Mr. Tan is currently a professor of the School of
Management of Sun Yat-sen University and was the Head of Department
of the Faculty of Accountancy and the Vice Dean of the School of
Management of Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. Tan is an independent director of Sundiro Holding Co., Ltd. (@ company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), Grandhope Biotech Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), Poly
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) and China Southern Airlines Company Limited (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and
the New York Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Tan was an independent director of a number of PRC listed companies,
including Huafa Industrial Share Co., Ltd., Guangdong Guanhao High-
Tech Co., Ltd. and Cosco Shipping Co., Ltd., all of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, and Guangdong Ronsen Super Mirco-Wire Co.,
Ltd., Foshan Huaxin Packaging Co., Ltd. and Yihua Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
which companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He was
also an independent director of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of
which were de-listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 18 September
2013 and this company was de-registered on 19 December 2013).

Mr. LAM Ming Yung, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1 December 1999. Mr. Lam is
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He graduated from the School
of Law of Shanghai Eastern Chinese College of Politics and Jurisprudence
with a Bachelor of Law Degree in 1986. Mr. Lam started practicing law
in 1987 in the province of Fujian in the PRC, and moved to Hong Kong in
mid-1998. He was registered as a foreign lawyer with The Law Society of
Hong Kong in July 1995, and is now practicing as Chief PRC Consultant,
Corporate Finance, and Foreign Legal Consultant (PRC), in the Hong Kong
office of Sidley Austin LLP. Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive
director of China Agrotech Holdings Limited and a non-executive director
of China Mining Resources Group Limited, both companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam was also an independent non-
executive director of China Lifestyle Food & Beverages Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore.

Ms. CAO Zhoutao, aged 42, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company since 21 October 2013. Ms. Cao is an associate
professor of School of Business Administration of South China University
of Technology. She is also an independent director of Guangzhou Zhujiang
Brewery Co., Ltd. and Vtron Technologies Ltd. (both companies are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). She has extensive experience in human
resources, organisation behavior, financial management and accounting.
She holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in Management Engineering
from Chongaging Industrial Management School, a Master of Engineering
Degree in Management Engineering and a Doctor of Management Degree
in Management Science and Engineering from South China University of
Technology. She is a certified public accountant of China.
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Updated Information on Directors Pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Save as otherwise set out below, there is no change in the information
of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. YU Yong Hua, aged 35, was appointed as an Executive Director,
the Chief Financial Officer, a member of the Executive Committee and an
authorised representative of the Company since 15 January 2014. Mr.
Yu joined Midea Group in 2002. He has held various senior and middle
management positions in Midea Group and has extensive experience in
financial planning, accounting and auditing, costing management and fund
management. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Yu holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Sichuan
University. He is an accountant accredited by the Ministry of Personnel
People’s Republic of China.

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. LI Xianlu, aged 34, joined the Group in July 2001. Mr. Li is the director
of production centre of the Group. He has held various senior management
positions in the Group and has extensive experience in the production
management, planned logistics management, engineering and technology
management of the Group’s business. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Electrical Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. XIONG Jun, aged 36, joined the Group in June 2004. Mr. Xiong is
the director of supply chain management department of the Group. He
has held various senior management positions in the Group including the
general manager of marketing company, the general manager of home
appliances motors, the director of production centre and the director of
supply chain management. Mr. Xiong has extensive experience in marketing
management, production management and supply chain management. Mr.
Xiong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Automotive Engineering from Wuhan
Automotive Polytechnic University and a Master of Business Administration
Degree from Wuhan University.
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Mr. WANG Hongxiao, aged 39, joined the Group in September 1999. Mr.
Wang is the officer of research and development centre of the Group. He
has held various senior and middle management positions in the Group and
is familiar with the production process and integrated management of the
Group’s principal motor business. He has been in charge of various jobs
relating to the development of new products. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Electrical Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology.

Mr. HUANG Li Jun, aged 39, joined the Group in March 2005. Mr. Huang is
the director of quality control department of the Group. Mr. Huang served
in various senior and middle management positions in the Group’s research
and development and production management. He has considerable
experience in the research and development, production process,
engineering technique and quality control of the Group’s principal motor
products. Mr. Huang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Design,
Manufacturing and Automation from Ningxia University.
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The Directors hereby present this report of the Directors and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Final Results

The final results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 74.

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.5
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK4.8 cents). Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 30 May 2014
(the “AGM”), the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 17 June
2014 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 10 June 2014.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders’ rights of attending and
voting at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 27 May 2014 to 30 May 2014, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2014.
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For the purpose of determining the identity of shareholders who are entitled
to the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 9 June 2014 to 10 June 2014, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2014.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$246,984,000 (2012: HK$161,162,000).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, restated and reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 184. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

AR 2014F6 A9A E2014F6 A10H (21
BEMA)EEREROBPELTFE  UWEBRTEE
REWER s R AR S RIARER + BRI T8 2 A AR (D
EEREE c RS ERKIERRPKRE - AR
)5Y1¢@HEE‘§HXK/,\TLEA2OT4¢6H6E|T5F4
K0P REIARNR ZRNBFEELREEETRES
BRARAT @ I ABBEFERARNERI18HE
FARLA7I1712-1716F ©

it

ARBRIRAKBRAFEZFBEEDFBHNEGE
BT ERARMIE18

W% - BMERRE

KRB RAEBRAEEZME - BERE&
FIEE R A BT RRMIRET o

kR

IR

RRBRAFE 2 RAZBFHITHNEE

MEE17 o

BUb e e

Ak

2013F 12 A31 8 + KAR A D IR 2 BB E
246,984,0007T(20124F : 7&%161,162,0007T) ©

TEMBRE

AEMPBASEAN REELBE BN REFHEEY
¥Z$ ﬁF&ETE%XﬁF\\M 4E ° EZT%%%K*%
RISERGAPBBRERL —B5H -

RABEEEAMBERRRANFERERE -
FBOIAR B Z /I LHES

&

53

Annual Report 3 2013



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Share Option Scheme

During the Year, the share option scheme adopted on 27 June 2003 (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”) was terminated before its expiration on
26 June 2013 and a new share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 30 May 2013.

Details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme and the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Re-designated on 15 January 2014%)

Mr. JIANG Deging (Re-designated on 15 January 2014%)

Mr. LI Yang

Mr. YU Yong Hua (appointed on 15 January 2014)

Ms. YUAN Ligun

Mr. LI Feide

Mr. LU Xiagji (resigned on 15 January 2014)

*

Details of the re-designation of Mr. Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Jiang Deqing are disclosed
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAN Jinsong

Mr. LAM Ming Yung

Ms. CAO Zhoutao (appointed on 21 October 2013)
Ms. CHEN Chunhua (resigned on 21 October 2013)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Yu Yong Hua and Ms. Cao Zhoutao, who were appointed by the Board
to fill casual vacancies during the Year, will retire at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang, Ms. Yuan Liqun and Mr. Lam Ming Yung will retire by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.

54

Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR

BREE

FR - 2003466 A27 B R4 2 8 HE S
([20034F &R 58] 1) BERR20134F6 A26 A fEim Al
BRI METEE AR MERTEI(T2013F BT E D ER
2013 F5 A0 RITZ AR FIRERAFAE LEX
RNEIIRERERAN o

20034F B A M AT 8 M 201 3F B A 8 2 FHIB IR
B BRAMFEITHE -

B=
RAFERBEAFRAPECZESMT -
BITES

BAmEGEE(ERERERENTE)
(72201441 A15 A EAT)

EEE A (FA201451 A15BERATY)

FigkE

FOKEES A (FA20144F1 A15AERT)

BRI

B E

BB A (FA20144F1 A15HEH(T)

- BRARGEERERBAEFENFBIANEZT RSN
EEANBRE]—H -

BYFHTES

BN

MBS

ENE LT (R2013F10A21 BEZR(T)
BR&EEZ L (FA20135F10 A21 BEHT)

REBARBZABERARESTR AEESZ
EREHAFEREEZERORKELEREMNEL
T BRERBFASRE  XNAERABRER
BRBFAG LERSE -

REBARRZBABERMAEN G BRBEE
RMBRZ L EMRABLEESNRRBFASHER
£ XNEERBRENBIRBFAS LERBT -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Directors’ Service Contracts

On 30 May 2013, the Company entered into letters of appointment with
Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua, each an
Independent Non-executive Directors, for a term commencing on 30 May
2013 and ending on the date of the AGM.

On 21 October 2013, the Company entered into a letter of appointment
with Ms. Cao Zhoutao, an Independent Non-executive Director (in place
of Ms. Chen Chunhua who resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director on the same date) for a term commencing on 21 October 2013
and ending on the date of the AGM.

The above-mentioned letters of appointment provide that the remuneration
of the Directors shall be determined in accordance with the remuneration
policy as approved by the Board from time to time. Such letters of
appointment are terminable by either party upon one month’s written notice
given to the other party or the payment of a sum equal to the relevant
Director’s monthly remuneration made to the other party. These letters
of appointment are exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement
under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has submitted to the
Company the annual confirmation of independence for the year ended
31 December 2013. Nomination Committee has reviewed such annual
confirmation of independence and assessed the independence of each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors based on the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent. The Board adopted the view of
the Nomination Committee and confirmed that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the principles that the
remuneration packages of employees should be determined based on
the job duties, responsibilities, work performance, qualifications and
competence of each individual employee, performance of the Group and
the prevailing market and economic conditions in order to attract and retain
high-calibre employees needed to run the Company successfully.

The remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company are reviewed annually and determined by
the Remuneration Committee based on the duties, responsibilities of each
individual Executive Director and senior management staff, performance of
the Group and the remuneration packages paid by comparable companies
in the same industry based on the prevailing market conditions. No Director
or any of his associates will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.
Remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors will be reviewed
annually and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board
for final approval.

After the termination of the 2003 Share Option Scheme on 30 May 2013,
the Company has adopted the 2013 Share Option Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives to stimulate the Directors of the Company and
eligible employees of the Group.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are set out in Note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 46 to 51.
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Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code adopted by the Company contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were

as follows:
Interests in Share Options of the Company

Movements of the share options granted to the Directors under the 2003
Share Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:
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Balance Balance
asat Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Date of Exercise Exercisable 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant price period 2013 the Year the Year the Year 2013
H2013E R2013%
1A1A REREE REREE REREE 124318
#E RiLAH Ti%E L 28 BiTf BEUE BAM 28
HK$
A%
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(M) (FizE1) (Fizta)
Directors EE

Mr. Zhou Xiangyang R %4 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 7,200,000 - (1,800,000) - 5,400,000

31/03/2017

(Note 2)

(FzE2)
Mr. Jiang Degjing ZEELE 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 7,200,000 - (1,800,000) - 5,400,000

31/03/2017

(Note 2)

(fitzE2)
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Balance Balance
asat Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Date of  Exercise Exercisable 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant price period 2013 the Year the Year the Year 2013
1H2013E 20135
118 REFE REFE REEE 12A31H
#E R AH e 1T ek 5 BTfE BEUE BAH &8
HK$
ot
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(Hsszt) (FzE1) (Fzta)

Mr.LamMing Yung ~ HEELE 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 400,000 - - - 400,000

29/07/2017
09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000

31/03/2017

(Note 2)

(fzE2)
Ms. Chen Chunhua ~ BRETEZ T 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 400,000 - - - 400,000
29/07/2017 (Note 3)
(FitzE3)
09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - -

31/03/2017

(Note 2)

(fitzk2)

Notes: G

58

On 27 May 2011, the Company implemented a share consolidation on the basis that 1.
every five issued and unissued shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
were consolidated into one share of HK$0.5 each (“Share Consolidation”). As a result, the
exercise price and the number of outstanding share options granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme were adjusted to reflect the effect of the Share Consolidation.

The consideration for each of the grants above was HK$1. The share options granted on 2.
9 January 2009 shall be exercisable during the share option period subject to a vesting
scale in four tranches of 25% each and the achievement of the performance target of
the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company of the relevant period as set out

below:

a) the first 25% of the share options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable
within seven years after 31 March 2010 provided that the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 100%
of the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2008 (excluding the results from discontinued business) (“Net

Profit of 2008”);
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b) the second 25% of the share options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable
within six years after 31 March 2011 provided that the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 150%
of the Net Profit of 2008;

) the third 25% of the share options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable
within five years after 31 March 2012 provided that the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 200%
of the Net Profit of 2008; and

d) the fourth 25% of the share options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable
within four years after 31 March 2013 provided that the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 280%
of the Net Profit of 2008.

3. Ms. Chen Chunhua resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 21 October 2013. She is interested in 400,000 share options, which were granted
on 30 July 2007 under the 2003 Share Option Scheme of the Company, entitling her to
subscribe for 400,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$3.9 per share,
shall be lapsed on 21 April 2014.

4. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the
date on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.73.

Details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or subsidiary a party to any arrangements which enabled any Director to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or of any other body corporate.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2013, any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2013, shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BRERZEERRR

RARREMEERESTRAEMA © R2013F
12A31H - RARRBRM HERER D P HERIEE
H KB EPIEXVERE2 M3 BB IESURMAN R R4
B - HERAARRRARIEE 7 KB GDIF 33615
FEZECMzERRR ZBR (AR R EERK
BITBABRRINGT

Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the Shares of the FZERFRAKLGREG ZIHFE
Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding
BRMEE A =27 FREROHE RESBAEIL
Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited Beneficial owner 1,901,204,779 66.73%
(“Midea (Cayman lIslands)”) (Note 1)
EER(FA=2ES)ARAR EmEE A
(T (RS DG
Midea Investment Holding (BVI) Limited Interests of a controlled corporation 1,901,204,779 66.73%
(“Midea Holding (BVI)”) (Note 2)
EHZERBVNVER AR ([EE1EREBVI)]) R AE RS
(fF5E2)
Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) (Note 3) Interests of controlled corporations 1,965,702,779 68.99%
EEBEROARLA(EH ] (HHEE3) RiEE
Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (“Midea Holding”) Interests of controlled corporations 1,965,702,779 68.99%
(formerly known as Foshan Shunde Midea
Investment Holding Co., Ltd.) (Note 4)
EEERAR AR ([ a0k ) (ATEE LT IR R AE RS
ERENREERER AT (M)
Mr. He Xiangjian (Note 5) Interests of controlled corporations 1,965,702,779 68.99%
A/ =S A& (f7E5) RiEE
Notes: 5T -
1. These 1,901,204,779 shares of the Company were registered in the name of and 1. 251,901,204, 779 AR IR D AEN (REHS) 2 8%

beneficially owned by Midea (Cayman Islands).
2. Midea Holding (BVI) was deemed to be interested in the 1,901,204,779 shares of the

Company in which Midea (Cayman Islands) was interested by virtue of its holding 100%
equity interest in Midea (Cayman Islands).
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3. There were 64,498,000 shares of the Company registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Midea International Corporation Company Limited (“Midea International”) which
is a company owned as to 100% by Midea. Midea Holding (BVI) is also a company owned
as to 100% by Midea. Accordingly, Midea was deemed to be interested in the aggregate
of 1,965,702,779 shares of the Company including 64,498,000 shares in which Midea
International was interested and 1,901,204,779 shares in which Midea Holding (BVI)
was deemed to be interested by virtue of its holding 100% equity interest in both Midea
International and Midea Holding (BVI).

4. The registered capital of Midea is owned as to 35.49% by Midea Holding. Accordingly,
Midea Holding was deemed to be interested in the aggregate number of 1,965,702,779
shares of the Company in which Midea was deemed to be interested by virtue of its
holding 35.49% equity interest in Midea.

5. The registered capital of Midea Holding is owned as to 94.55% by Mr. He Xiangjian.
Accordingly, Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested in the aggregate number
of 1,965,702,779 shares of the Company in which Midea Holding was deemed to be
interested by virtue of his holding 94.55% equity interest in Midea Holding.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors was interested in any
business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total sales during the Year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchase during the Year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions which were disclosed by published announcements:

1. On 15 April 2011, the Company and Midea entered into a new Midea
framework agreement (the “New Midea Framework Agreement”)
to renew the previous Midea framework agreement dated 13 April
2010 for a term of three years ending 31 December 2013 and set
the revised and new annual caps in respect of () the sale of motors
and electronic and electrical components for electrical household
appliances and raw materials by the Group to Midea Group; and
(i) the purchase of raw materials, processed raw materials and
motor samples by the Group from Midea Group (together the
“Sales and Purchases CCTs”) for three years ended 31 December
2018. The New Midea Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the revised and new annual
caps of the Sales and Purchases CCTs) were approved by the
then independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2011.

On 29 April 2013, the Company and Midea entered into a renewed
Midea framework agreement (the “Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement”) to set out the terms, and the new annual caps for the
sale of motors and electronic and electrical components for electrical
household appliances and raw materials by the Group to Midea
Group and the purchase of raw materials, processed raw materials
and motor samples by the Group from Midea Group for the three
years ending 31 December 2016. Details of the transactions are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2013 and
circular dated 14 May 2013.

The Renewed Midea Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the new annual caps of the
aforesaid sale and purchase) were approved by the then independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general mesting of
the Company held on 30 May 2013.

2. On 19 April 2012, GD Welling entered into the financial services
framework (renewal) agreement (the “Financial Services Framework
(Renewal) Agreement”) with the Finance Company to (i) revise the
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2012 in respect of
the core financial services (including deposit, loan, bills discounting,
bills acceptance, guarantee and foreign exchange services) provided
under the previous financial services framework agreement dated 13
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April 2010 (the “Financial Services Framework Agreement”); and (ji)
extend the term of the Financial Services Framework Agreement for
two more years to 31 December 2014 and set the new annual caps
of the aforesaid core financial services for the two years ending 31
December 2014 in order to fulfill its business requirements. Details
of the transactions are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 19 April 2012 and circular dated 11 May 2012.

The Financial Services Framework (Renewal) Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the revised and new
annual caps of the aforesaid core financial services) were approved
by the then independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2012.

On 23 January 2013, the Company, GD Welling and the Finance
Company entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to amend the terms of the Financial Services
Framework (Renewal) Agreement by adding the subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in the PRC (other than those subsidiaries
of the Company held by GD Welling) as additional users to use the
financial services to be provided by the Finance Company under
the Financial Services Framework (Renewal) Agreement. Details
of the Supplemental Agreement are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement published on 23 January 2013.

On 11 January 2013, the Company and Annto Logistics Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as “Wuhu Annto Logistics Co., Ltd.”) (“Annto”, a
subsidiary of Midea) entered into the new logistic service agreement
(the “New Logistic Service Agreement”) to (i) further renew the
previous logistic service agreement dated 13 April 2010 which had
expired on 31 December 2012 in order to continue the use of logistic
services to be provided by Annto and/or its subsidiaries to the
Group for a three-year term; and (i) set out the new annual caps of
logistic service fees payable for the three years ending 31 December
2015. The New Logistic Service Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the New Logistic Service Agreement are disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 11 January 2013.
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On 29 April 2013, the Company entered into the purchase
framework agreement (the “ZS Framework Agreement”) with Zhejiang
Shangfeng Industrial Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Shangfeng”, a
company controlled by Mr. He Jianfeng who is the son of Mr. He
Xiangjian, the controlling shareholder of Midea) which set out the
basis for the purchase of raw materials by the Group from Zhejiang
Shangfeng, its subsidiaries and associates (“ZS Group”) and the
annual caps of transaction amount for the three years ending 31
December 2015. Details of the transactions are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2013 and circular dated
14 May 2013.

The ZS Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder (including the annual caps of the aforesaid purchase of
raw materials) were approved by the then independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 May 2013.

On 27 September 2013, the Company entered into an agreement
in relation to the intra group financial services (the “Intra Group
Financial Services Agreement”) with Midea International Corporation
Company Limited (“Midea International”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Midea) which set out the basis for the provision of deposit services
and settlement and similar services by Midea International to the
Company and its subsidiaries outside the PRC and the annual
caps of transaction amount for a fixed term commencing on 27
September 2013 and ending on 31 December 2015. The Intra Group
Financial Services Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of the Intra Group Financial Services Agreement are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement published on 27 September 2013.
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The following table sets out the transaction amount of each of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group during the Year and the

relevant approved annual caps for 2013:

Transaction

TREF LAAEFER AR FERFEFEZHHR
SEEN2013FERIENARFE LR

amount for
the year ended Annual caps
Transactions 31 December 2013 for 2013
EZ2013512A31AL 20135
R5 FENRZSH FELR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®T T
Sale of motors and electronic and electric components W%E’\JE BEHERTEHEN 2,893,708 11,000,000
for electrical household appliances and raw FERERAREMH
materials to Midea Group
Purchase of raw materials, processed raw materials MEMNEERBEME - &I 16,855 600,000
and motors samples from Midea Group G =Y e IEFN
Purchase of raw materials from ZS Group FT _EREBREREM 109,026 300,000
Financial services provided by the Finance Company BN AR LA B T IR TS
— Deposit (daily maximum outstanding balances —FR(BEEATERTFES 1,073,014 1,524,000
including accrued interest and handling fee) HWER&ESER)
— Loan (daily maximum outstanding balances - ER(pREEFAFERFER 281,581 1,109,000
including accrued interest and handling fee) HEBEREER)
— Bills discounting (aggregate face value of the bills SEUR(EARNRE 621,431 3,001,000
discounted) HEE)
- Bills acceptance (aggregate face value of the bills — EREE (AN EE 1,500,680 3,634,000
accepted) BEE)
- Foreign exchange — SN 197,990 1,464,000
- Guarantee — R - 1,500,000
Logistic services paid to Annto and/or its subsidiaries N&ER/SEMBA TR 5,659 10,000
E@%?/|uﬁ|§f%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision of deposit services by Midea International ER BRI RURE 17,940 80,000

(daily maximum outstanding balances including
accrued interest and handling fee)

(BRRREATME R
FEENBHRRER)
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Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by certain
members of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 pursuant
to the agreements mentioned above, which constituted continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the Year and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board of Directors engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of
the Company, to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to the Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. The auditor has confirmed to the Company that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 as
disclosed above:

(1)  have not received the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policy of the Company;

(8)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the amounts of annual caps as disclosed in the
previous announcements made by the Company on 15 April 2011,
19 April 2012, 11 January 2013, 23 January 2013, 29 April 2013 and
27 September 2013 in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.
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A copy of the auditor’s letter on continuing connected transactions of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange. The Company confirmed that it
has complied with the disclosure requirements with respect to the above
mentioned continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing
Rules

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of guarantees given for
the loan facilities granted to the associates by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$942,508,000 which exceeded 8% of the assets ratio
as defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2013,
bank loans of approximately HK$613,076,000 being guaranteed by the
Group to associates have been drawn down. A pro-forma combined
statement of financial position of the associates, in which the Group has a
49% equity interest, as at 31 December 2013 is presented below:

KRB AREBEHE2013F12 831 HILFEHE
BER 5 B IZ BRD B B AN X 2B 52T © R A
BIMERD T L XAy AR B ERERHET L
MRANE1IAT 2 HFERTE -

Bi5 LR AISE13. 22k E LK B

2013512 A31H » REE M E QA ERE R
E iRz EIRE HARFELE#942,508,0007T *
iR EMRANE14.07(OMEFTRE 2 BEELFEE8% ° 1Y
201312 A31H » AREBEFER 2 EEQRIRITE
A ¥E613,076,0007T B #E HRER © 720134F 12 A
31H  BAEEEBIONREZBERARZEES
HEBARR KR 250 -

Pro-forma

combined Group’s

statement of attributable

financial position interest (49%)

BEEH rEE

B AR R R FE{ERE2R(49%)

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Non-current assets IERBEE 855,005 418,952
Current assets MENEE 1,068,002 523,321
Current liabilities PiE=NE (1,075,315) (526,904)
Non-current liabilities FEREEaE (178,365) (87,398)
Non-controlling interest IEIE R (108,297) (53,066)
Net assets BEEFE 561,030 274,905
Fair value adjustments RN BERAR 20,185
Currency translation differences AN = RR 1,169
296,259

Non-Competition Deed

On 22 February 2008, Midea entered into a non-competition deed in favour
of the Company (“Non-Competition Deed”) to undertake that Midea and
other members of Midea Group (except the Group) will not engage in any
business of the manufacturing and distribution of motors and electronic
and electric components for all electrical household appliances and any
business activities carried on or proposed to be carried on by the Group
which would directly or indirectly compete with the business of the Group.

THFRE

200852 A22H « EMUARAR/ZHm A LT
BRZB([TEFRIE]) - FUARE - ZHORERN
KEZHMRBRR(ARERIN B TIERE—Y)
REERNETEREMIRERDHER - AR
IR AR E S AR B XS R TT 2 X5
BT EMERED -
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In compliance with the requirement of the Non-Competition Deed, Midea
has submitted to the Company the annual declaration confirming that
Midea and its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have complied
with all the provisions of the Non-Competition Deed throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013 (“Declaration”). The Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the Declaration and are satisfied with
the compliance by Midea and its associates with the provisions of the
Non-competition Deed and the enforcement of the Non-competition Deed
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Compliance with the Model Code and the
Corporate Governance Code

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 23 to
45 for the compliance with the Model Code and the Corporate Governance
Code.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained, during the Year, sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Group is to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Welling Holding Limited

ZHOU Xiangyang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERE

.

pwc

Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Shareholders of Welling Holding Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Welling Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 71 to 183, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 20183,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

P

BB R E
BHBEZERERABRR
(REBEMATHERR)

TAZEAD (AT ERI M) BB ERENE
183E A ELRBRARATHE N ERADARE
MBAR(FHE EEE])BNGEVIERE - ILEKRE
PEHER B IR 2013F12 531 B4R A MR BIE 5
MREEREZBILFENGERER REE2H
Wik  HReRREBRNGaRanER UKk
TEGFBORMIE R MM AR AR -

ESRARSMBHRRARENEE

ERREEARERBEESHMASRHNER
B SRS B R BB R AHEG ) R AR & BT B
R NLHEEVBRRIFLEEM A FORE - &
EREERRREGE VBRIV ENANELZES) -
VAE AR & B 5 ik N7 2 R BRRF S s T 8 30
BEAFRERAL -

B ERE

B EEERERFNETHZEREVHRE
EHER - WIRREB(RAEFDFE 1411 ER L
BORI|E - BRI ZINRRERIEEME & - ZFIT
ERARENARAEAEMA LB EFREER
BiE-

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

AT KB it FF 5 P 7F P RO 7 K

Mt : +852 2289 8888 » fHH : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR BRI R
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
M2013%12H31H

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE BET T BT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights TE T e+ A 6 221,288 219,722
Property, plant and equipment LE Y ] 7 1,212,254 1,242,984
Investment properties WA 8 55,582 -
Intangible assets mPEE 9 92,935 77,588
Investments accounted for using the AR AARR 2 IR E
equity method 11 296,259 271,669
Deferred income tax assets BIEFSHEE 23 38,392 39,567
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EEmEE 12 111,959 102,819
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment ~ FBS#1% - [RE K& B FUE 14 24,705 3,281
2,053,374 1,957,630
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE8 13 876,729 703,531
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MR 14 2,996,253 3,197,580
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMTA 22 26,128 14,997
Pledged bank deposits EHEHIRITIFR 114,284 139,598
Cash and cash equivalents REFRRSEEY 16 1,825,010 825,717
5,838,404 4,881,423
Total assets BEE 7,891,778 6,839,053
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to the owners of RATEEAELER
the Company
Share capital A& AR 17 1,424,603 1,410,856
Share premium AR A5 B 3,531,044 3,523,417
Other reserves HE iR 18 (2,635,843) (2,750,247)
Retained earnings REEF
— Proposed final dividend —EEARRE 31 242,183 135,442
— Others —Hf 1,250,099 729,336
3,812,086 3,048,804
Non-controlling interests RS 62,890 54,450
Total equity AR 3,874,976 3,103,254
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR BRI R
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
M2013%12H31H

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE BT T BT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 19 43,083 129,188
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFSHAE 23 110,690 94,402
Deferred government grants RIE U G 20 33,954 22,802
187,727 246,392
Current liabilities RBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMPERR 21 3,436,647 3,116,101
Derivative financial instruments PTESHMTA 22 3,017 8,913
Current income tax liabilities BNERF S B & 48,857 57,679
Borrowings (R 19 340,554 306,714
3,829,075 3,489,407
Total liabilities Py =Fi 4,016,802 3,735,799
Total equity and liabilities ExREmeE 7,891,778 6,839,053
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,009,329 1,392,016
Total assets less current liabilities BREERABARS 4,062,703 3,349,646

HNFE79E183E Z Wt AANERE BTG IRER 2 /K

financial statements. 28 o

The notes on pages 79 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

okt

EFEH2014F3A10BHERET1E183E 2474
BIISHhE WRERESSERE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 183 were approved
by the board of directors on 10 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.

Director Director
£ BF
ZHOU Xiangyang YU Yong Hua
AmkE RKE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI &R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
720135 12H31H

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BEET T BET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W KB 7 30 16
Interests in subsidiaries RHB R F R 10 5,667,613 5,475,618
5,667,643 5,475,634
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EMERGR 14 485 485
Dividend receivable RN B 250,000 155,000
Cash and cash equivalents R MRS EEY 16 10,173 3,097
260,658 158,582
Total assets wEE 5,928,301 5,634,216
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to the owners of AAREEAELER
the Company
Share capital &N 17 1,424,603 1,410,856
Share premium A= 1B 3,531,044 3,523,417
Other reserves H iR 18 715,176 536,496
Retained earnings REB AT
— Proposed final dividend —EERARE 31 242,183 135,442
— Others —HE 4,801 25,720
Total equity FERBE 5,917,807 5,631,931
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMPERR 21 10,494 2,285
Total liabilities HBaE 10,494 2,285
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHAR 5,928,301 5,634,216
Net current assets REBEEFE 250,164 156,297
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 5,917,807 5,631,931

The notes on pages 79 to 183 are an integral part of these financial ~ #HMNFE79E 1838 Z MisE A2 E I 153REK 2 4830
statements. Pkl

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 183 were approved ~ ZE&M2014FE3 10 #ERET1E183E V54
by the board of directors on 10 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.  BAI§RK - WRKREFEH

Director Director
EFE -
ZHOU Xiangyang YU Yong Hua
ArkE RKE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

melaEk
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
HZE2013F12A31HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B3E BETT BT T
Revenue WA 5 8,881,723 7,787,502
Cost of goods sold HEE MR (7,460,116) (6,563,651)
Gross profit EF 1,421,607 1,223,851
Other gains - net HAbYes — 558 24 68,872 71,548
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSHEERS (198,489) (164,619)
Administrative expenses TR (313,806) (336,435)
Operating profit KR 978,184 794,345
Finance expenses RERX 27 (50,322) (31,829)
Finance income A& WA 27 8,949 6,192
Finance expenses — net RVERY —F5 27 (41,373) (25,631)
Share of profit of associates accounted ARz E A BR 2 JE(G
for using the equity method R l/NCIRDE 11 22,405 17,322
Profit before income tax KT B8 AT )@ 959,216 786,036
Income tax expense FrS R 28 (167,086) (147,670)
Profit for the year FEFH 792,130 638,366
Profit attributable to: BUR AT PERFIE
Owners of the Company RATER A 785,499 640,256
Non-controlling interests EEalivg T 6,631 (1,890)
792,130 638,366
Earnings per share attributable to KAREEAELRSRER -
the owners of the Company, DEgREWSIR
expressed in HK cents per share
Basic HAK 30 27.70 22.69
Diluted e 30 27.63 22.57
The notes on pages 79 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ ERE79E 1838 2 Mt AALR A MFSRE 2 485K
financial statements. B o
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Proposed final dividend of HK8.5 cents AR AR B AR ARS8 5L
per ordinary share (2012: HK4.8 cents) (20124 + 4.87(L) 31 242,183 135,442
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e 32
SmETHEKRER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
HZE2013F12AG1HIEFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
Profit for the year FEFME 792,130 638,366
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2wk -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A[EH 2 EmrHA
Currency translation differences SNEITE ETE 91,031 1,121
Change in value of available-for-sale AL ESREENER
financial assets B 3,375 5,518
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEEMEEmKE
net of tax (FBRFRIE) 94,406 6,639
Total comprehensive income for the year FE>AEWREEE 886,536 645,005
Total comprehensive income for the year DTFTATEAFEFEZEKRAE !
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZE DN 878,096 646,915
Non-controlling interests SRR SR 8,440 (1,910
886,536 645,005

The notes on pages 79 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EHNE79E183

HZMERALR S M HRE 2 K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

HZE2013F12A31HLEFE
Attributable to the owners of the Company
RRAIHAEANEG
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
AR R AN HAf#E {RE & BE FEERER 3oyt
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R2012F1 B1H 245 1,410,806 3,523,395  (2,823,274) 384,887 2,495,814 56,360 2,552,174
Comprehensive income: 2EKE !
Profit for the year FEFHE - - - 640,256 640,256 (1,890) 638,366
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2K -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE - - 5518 - 5,518 - 5,518
Currency translation differences HNEEIT B 2R - - 1,141 - 1,141 (20) 1,121
Total comprehensive income 2HEHNREE - - 6,659 640,256 646,915 (1,910) 645,005
Transaction with owners: HEBAETHRS
Transfer to statutory reserves (note 18)  EE#Z= A E & (FiiF18) - - 47,500 (47,500) - - -
Share option scheme (note 17) RS B (MI3E17)
- value of services provided —FriRitiRig 2 BE - - 959 - 959 - 959
- option lapsed —BRMMEERE - - (1,514) - (1,514) - (1,514)
— proceeds from shares issued —BIIRIDFTIS A 50 25 - - 75 - 75
— share issuance expenses —BRIPEITRX - @) - - ©) - ©
Contribution by owners relating to BRAEE ARG RERE
share-based payment (note 18(b)) A E R (P EE18(0)) - - 19,423 - 19,423 - 19,423
Dividend relating to 2011 2011EERE - - - (112,865  (112,865) - (112,865)
Total transaction with owners REBANETZR A 50 22 66,368 (160,365) (93,925) - (93,925)
Balance at 31 December 2012 2012128318 2 &8 1,410,856 3,523,417  (2,750,247) 864,778 3,048,804 54,450 3,103,254
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

HZE2013F12A31HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RATEE AER
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
R BRAEE Hitf#E REBF B FERER ERan
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T BETT BT T BT T BT BT T
Balance at 1 January 2013 H2013FE1 A1 2 &8k 1,410,856 3,523,417  (2,750,247) 864,778 3,048,804 54,450 3,103,254
Comprehensive income: 2HEKE
Profit for the year FEFHE - - - 785,499 785,499 6,631 792,130
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wk -
Available-for-sale financial assets A HESREE - - 3,375 - 3,375 - 3,375
Currency translation differences SN =R - - 89,222 - 89,222 1,809 91,031
Total comprehensive income 2HEHNREE - - 92,597 785,499 878,096 8,440 886,536
Transaction with owners: HEBAETHRES !
Transfer to statutory reserves (note 18) #8138 5% 7E e & ([ 5E18) - - 21,660 (21,660) - - -
Share option scheme (note 17) PEARRERT B (BT EE17)
- value of services provided — iRt 2 BE - - 147 - 147 - 147
- proceeds from shares issued — BT F1SRUE 13,747 7,836 - - 21,583 - 21,583
— share issuance expenses — B D BT - (209) - - (209) - (209)
Dividend relating to 2012 (note 31) 2012F ERR B (FIE31) - - - (136,335)  (136,335) - (136,335)
Total transaction with owners HEEAETZRIEE 13,747 7,627 21,807 (157,995) (114,814 - (114,814)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31B 2 &8 1,424,603 3,531,044 (2,635,843) 1,492,282 3,812,086 62,890 3,874,976

The notes on pages 79 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Ayl — 1§
HERERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
HZE2013F12A31HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE BET T BT
Cash flows from operating activities BRETHZ2HERE
Cash generated from operations KEEEXZRE 32(a) 1,468,830 345,852
Interest paid BFLE (29,471) (15,046)
Interest received BRE 8,949 6,192
Income tax paid B ETSH (162,847) (107,192)
Net cash generated from operating activities BB ELE 2 RS FH 1,285,461 229,806
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELE&ME 7 (182,053) (278,337)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments for property, FE&N#1Z - ME &R EZIE
plant and equipment (), Ed 14 (21,424) 8,700
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEWE - BB R®
equipment FriSs08 32(b) 39,800 31,030
Purchases of leasehold land and land use rights B8 2 & + 1 & 1 10 5 FR & 6 - (52,779)
Development cost FEEAK A 9 (15,863) (15,629)
Proceeds from deferred government grants RIEEAS B FT1S 5RIA 20 10,592 -
Dividends received 2R E 13,568 2,552
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMA RS TR (155,380) (304,463)
Cash flows from financing activities RETEH2RERE
Proceeds from borrowings BRETS A 1,224,575 836,198
Repayments of borrowings EiEER (1,286,537) (733,927)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHEFRITIFFORLD 25,314 53,289
Dividends paid 2RRE (136,335) (112,865)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BITEBRATEIE 17 21,583 75
Shares issuance expenses BITRMFAX 17 (209) ()
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing mEE (TR EE
activities 2R EF58 (151,609) 42,767
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERRESEWEN (HD)
cash equivalents HEE 978,472 (31,890)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FUIzRERR2
of the year EEY 825,717 857,803
Effect on exchange difference ERLEETE 20,821 (196)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year SR ZHERRLEEY 16 1,825,010 825,717
The notes on pages 79 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated — BN E79E 1838 2 M 3T AAAE A BT IRK 2 4HAK
financial statements. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2.1

General Information

Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) manufacture, distribute and sell motors and electronic
and electric components for electrical household appliances in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and overseas.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 3904, 39/F, Tower
6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors
on 10 March 2014.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

80

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group
for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

Amendment to HKAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’
regarding other comprehensive income. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities
to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’
(OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable
to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments).

HKAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ was revised in June 2011.
The changes on the Group’s accounting policies has been as
follows: to immediately recognise all past service costs; and to
replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a
net interest amount that is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability (asset).

Amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
on asset and liability offsetting. The amendments require
new disclosure requirements which focus on quantitative
information about recognised financial instruments that are
offset in the statement of financial position, as well as those
recognised financial instruments that are subject to master
netting or similar arrangements irrespective of whether they are
offset.

HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist
in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess.

Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

@

(®)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ includes
the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, structured
entities and other off balance sheet vehicles.

HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The requirements, which are largely aligned between
HKFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards within HKFRSs.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2013, and
have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKAS 32 (Amendment) ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’
on asset and liability offsetting is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 on ‘Consolidation
for investment entities’ is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.

HKAS 36 (Amendment) ‘Impairment of assets’ on recoverable
amount disclosures is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014.

HKAS 39 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement’ — novation of derivatives is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 ‘Levies’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

Management anticipates that the application of the revised
standards will not result in a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

82

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement (note
2.9.1).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

84

Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates accounted for using
equity method

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwiill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the income statement with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of
profit of associates accounted for using equity method’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

24

2.5

(a)

(b)

86

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”), which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of Renminbi (“RMB”), in view of that the shares of the
Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within “finance expenses-net’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other gains —
net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5

(b)

(c)

EMBRRME

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in the available-
for-sale revaluation reserve in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of the
reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i

=

all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

2.5

(c)

2.6

2.7

88

PRSI R R

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are up-front to acquire long-term
interests in the usage of land and it is accounted for as an operating
lease. It is stated at cost and charged to the consolidated income
statement over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-line
basis, net of any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

2.7

2.8

PRSI R R

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

2
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Estimated useful lives

fhET AT 62 A SR 7
Buildings tos 10-30 yearstF
Furniture and fixtures FKENERE 3-5 yearstF
Plant and machinery B K i ss 10-20 yearstF
Motor vehicles YRE 5-10 years
Electronic and other equipment BFREAMEE 3-5 yearstF

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction-in-progress represents the direct costs of construction
incurred and machinery pending to installation plus interest
capitalised up to date of completion of the construction of property,
plant and equipment less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until such time the
relevant assets are completed and put into use. Construction-in-
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other
gains — net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields, and that is not
occupied by the Group, are classified as investment property.
Investment property is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2.8

2.9

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of investment property is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their

estimated lease period.

Intangible assets

2.9.1 Gooadwill

%0

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Technology

Technology acquired is initially measured at the purchase costs and

amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

10 years.

2.9.3 Research and development

(@)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities (relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) is capitalised under the category of development
cost if the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete the development, and if the cost can be reliably
measured. Upon the commencement of the commercial
production of a product, the expenditure on development
cost amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of its
expected benefit. Research and development costs comprise
costs that are directly attributable to research and development
activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
such activities.

Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its
completion is recognised as an expense when it is incurred
unless it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset
to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally
assessed standard of performance and this expenditure can
be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If these
conditions are met, the subsequent expenditure is added to
the cost of the intangible asset.

Development costs previously recognised as expenses are
not recognised as assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised
development costs are amortised from the point at which the
assets are ready for use on a straight-line basis over their useful

lives.

2 FESHBEREEE)

29 EFEEGH)

2.9.2 #li

WEEH B VIZBER A & - dfhat A
FRER10FIABARER -

2.9.3 R F#H%

@)

SR IT 0% By LA BRE BT B0 RHE sl el
HMBLRM BRARS - HRELHRE
HERRFX - HEmRIIRF AR N
EEHARTE  AREBRMZER
NERTHRAE - BRG] S E
BRFAZELE (EFMNBMRERNR
ARBAAER) cAXRBEER - B
EmERFEELER  REKRENHER
RETEERER R B A B AR o B
EMRABERABRERRBMEZHN
AR AIED B ERAB I ©

FEEETRIRMREE AN EELER
ERAHAX  RIFRX AR EREEE
ERARAEBEN B ERAFERR
MR - AN RE R SRt B AR A
EBE - 6 Ll GHT  REER
BRI ABZEENRA

5T A HERR 3 B 32 2 PR B A A TR EL AR HAR
TERAREE - ENMCRABKABE
E R R Z B IR T AT (R S HI A
BHARVEH -

21

Annual Report 3 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10Ilmpairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

92

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available
for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position
(notes 2.15 and 2.16).

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the income statement within ‘other gains-net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part of other
gains when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement as ‘gains and losses from

investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement as part of
other gains. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

94

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

TEETHRMER)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)
TREERE

2.13 Impairment of financial assets 213

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (a)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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213

(b)

2.14

96

PRSI R R

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if not, the gain or loss from fair value change is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement within ‘other gains
—net’.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2

2.15

2.16

217

2.18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.20

2.21
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowings Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

(b)

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

() Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
and associates only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority

on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is

an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefits obligation

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefits obligation (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC make contributions
to a state-sponsored defined contribution scheme for the Group’s
local staff on a monthly basis pursuant to laws of the PRC and
relevant regulations issued by local social security authorities.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes are expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the
Group. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

] 02 Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:HBEHE(E)
(Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments (Continued) 224 DI AERNZMS(E)

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (a) UBmBZEURGEERIXE ()
(Continued)
When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. TEHAREEIT(H18 - ANABIZITHR o &HBR(E
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction M EERB R S KA WEH BT S R IE B A&
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share R(EE ) FMPRAHE -
premium.

(b) Share-based payment transactions among group entities (b) EEALRGEEFEHXS
The grant by the Company (or the Company’s ultimate holding AAE (A A R SRLIZR IR ) MEBHE A
company) of options over its equity instruments to the employees RIMB TR FHER T AEMEE  wE ALK
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital A - WHEETRENAAEE  22KEH
contribution. The fair value of employee services received, HWAREBEE  WETERAER  EAY
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised B ARIKERIEI - WiEEHTARRES
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary HERER -

undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.

2.25 Provision 225 #1E
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or HWAEERBEEHMER] LEATRIETE
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that £ WARREBEHAERETEBEML - i
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; PSS XBRE N SE(hEt @ B S RERRME o RIS
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not EE T RRE -

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that M8 ZIEEUETR - BERZESETEEUEX
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering AR E T Y S RIERR S A T o BEER
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if —MARIEERNE A —EB B EBIE R 2Rt
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in TTEEE 1R/ » INE RL SRR -

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures B TR B ERESERE TR UR A X
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate HECHENE  HRMERTSHSE B
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money FENZE T 2B TRER 2 - EIEEZR
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision Wz BEER AR SR -

due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

TEETHRMER)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)
RERR

2.26 Financial guarantees 2.26

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of associates to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. The fair
value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is zero because
all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms and the value of
the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee
obligation. No receivable for the future premiums is recognised.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under
such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience of
similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the
judgement of management. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated income statement within
other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of the associates are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment in
the financial statements of the Group.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of finished goods and raw materials

Sales of finished goods and raw materials are recognised when an
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans and receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

2.28 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.30 Dividend distribution

3.1

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and concentration
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposes to foreign exchange risks as certain
portion of its business activities are denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily with respect to the HK$, the United States
dollar (“USD”) and the Euro (“EUR”).

To manage their foreign exchange risks arising from future
commercial transactions, entities in the Group enter into
forward contracts, transacted with the commercial banks. The
directors are of the view that the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is manageable.

At 31 December 2013, if the HK$ has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$1,211,000
(2012: HK$1,340,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of HK$—
denominated cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and
other payables.

At 31 December 2013, if the USD has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$18,646,000 (2012: HK$21,598,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
USD-denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2013, if the EUR has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$7,467,000
(2012: HK$7,361,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of EUR-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
All the borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. During
2018 and 2012, the Group’s long-term borrowings at variable
rate were denominated in the USD.

The Group’s amounts due from/(to) related parties were issued
at interest free, and expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.

The Company’s amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries were issued
at interest free, and expose the Company to fair value interest
rate risk.

The directors are of the view that the interest rate risk is not
material as at 31 December 2013.

At 31 December 2013,
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all

if interest rates on long-term

other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$27,000 (2012: HK$20,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk

The Group exposes to commodity price risk, mainly due to
the fluctuations in prices of copper and aluminium, which are
key raw materials to the Group’s products. The price risk due
to copper and aluminium is reduced through the derivatives
market and through certain clause in contracts with our
customers to enable the Group to have the flexibility to pass
the increases in raw material costs to the customers.

At 31 December 2013, if the copper and aluminium price had
been 5% higher/lower with other variables held constant, the
post-tax profit for the year would have been of HK$9,876,000
(2012: HK$9,706,000) higher/lower, representing the change
in fair value of copper and aluminium derivatives at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits,
derivative financial instruments, due from related parties and trade
and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and derivative
financial instruments, the management manages the credit risk by
transacting with state-owned financial institutions and reputable
commercial banks. The maximum exposure to the credit risk before
collateral held or other credit enhancements relating to cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and derivative financial
instruments were their carrying value as disclosed in note 16, note
15 and note 22, respectively, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trade and other receivables and due from related parties, the
credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the credit quality.
Given the constant repayment history, the directors are of the view
that the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

For financial guarantees provided for the associates, the Group
monitors the credit quality of the associates by taking into account
their financial position and business development plan. As at 31
December 2013, the directors are of the view that the risk of default
by the associates is low. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the
balance of the borrowings before accounting for collaterals held of
other credit enhancements as follows.
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Group

rEH
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Face value Face value
HE EfE

Financial guarantees BEER

— bank loans drawn (note 35) — BIREERTTE R (FFE35) 613,076 540,141

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
balance, the availability of funding from an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HXEKRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EKEZE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEEEEEE)

TERAMAEENREMETHEESODHA
EER T BRI A B R AR Z#miﬁmﬁ
BERFEESRITEMBRERER - KT
REZSRDENRBRASRE -

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and net-settled financial derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The Group REE Less than Between Over
1year 1 and2years 2 years
10T 1EE25F 2F Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12H31H
Borrowings [=EN 347,571 43,552 -
Trade and other payables B 5 REMPERR 3,436,647 - -
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 3,017 - -
Financial guarantees BEER
— bank loans drawn —BREURTTER 613,076 - -
At 31 December 2012 72012412 H31H
Borrowings ﬁ?ﬂ 310,934 88,192 43,683
Trade and other payables 2 5 Rk EAFERR 3,116,101 - -
Derivative financial instruments @TEE@ AT A 8,913 - -
Financial guarantees BEER
— bank loans drawn —BREERITER 540,141 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3

3.1

(c)

(d)

3.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HERREE(E)

Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EKEZE(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEEZEREE)

The Company RATFE Less than Between Over

1year 1 and2years 2 years

1EU0T 15226 2F B E
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T

At 31 December 2013 2013%F12H31H

Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERRK 10,494 - -

At 31 December 2012 7201212 H31H

Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRK 2,285 - -

Concentration risk (d) EEE

Revenue of approximately HK$2,413,936,000(2012: B LB E2,413,936,0007T (20124 « B

HK$2,110,803,000) was derived from five customers, which occupied 2,110,803,00070) WA KRB HEEZEF {54

27% (2012: 27%) of the total revenue of the Group. SEBWAZ27% (20124 : 27%) ©

In the event that these five customers terminate their business WAEZIARPEIEEAEE 2 2BHEE - B

relationship with the Group and the Group fails to find new REEKREEBHE, - AR ge AN S E 2 BF

customers, it may have a material adverse impact on the Group’s B R EEBEEEERNTFIFE -

financial position and result of operations.

Capital management 3.2 EXEH

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the REBZ BARERHCR - REAREEIZHE

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3.2

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HERREE(E)
Capital management (Continued) 32 EXEHE(E)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital HERNEMAR 1k NEBRNAEREEL
on the basis of the gearing ratio. The Group'’s strategy for the year KREERHEBNRN o« REBEHZE2013F12H31H
ended 31 December 2013 was to maintain a gearing ratio under IEFERREABRIFERNAGR RENT75%3K
75% or had a net cash position. This ratio was calculated as net debt EREIR SN o b RIRRBE B F R AR
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less WBRERTE - BEFHEAEREEREDER
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. As the Group BAGZNESRELEEY - ARAEER
was in a net cash position as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, 2013F &2012F 12 A31 HERNFIREAMA
gearing ratio was not applicable. ARBELEERILEA -
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
72013F #20124F
12A31H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Cash and cash equivalents (note 16) ReRB2EEW(HIE16) 1,825,010 825,717
Pledged bank deposits BIIFIRITIE R 114,284 139,598
Less: Total borrowings (note 19) A B e (E19) (383,637) (435,902)
Net cash IR F5E 1,555,657 529,413
Total equity ek 3,874,976 3,103,254
Gearing ratio (%) BEARBELE(%) N/A N/A
Fair value estimation 3.3 AAREEMNE

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by

valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

TREREBMAEDE  SMERTAEZARE
B TEDRERMT

s HAEEXABZEEMSHRE(CRE
HE)(F—R) -

s KERESE-—MZHmEN BEXERE
ZAERER(AER) ME(ARA
ERE)BAER(E_R) -

o IWEREBAUEBERMSENMETIEE

KARIBABR(BITABEZHA
BRD(E=) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R ISR MEE
3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HERREE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AAEEME(HE)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and TREHNAEBENR2013F12A31BEZE AR E

liabilities that are measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013.

BFfEZ2MEENRAE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t E=R et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT B¥Tr B¥T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFELEEE
through profit or loss STABRZEMEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA
— Commodity futures contracts —HIEEREY 8,109 - - 8,109
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — SR HRA 4 - 18,019 - 18,019
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESRERE
~ Equity investments —BERE - - 111,959 111,959
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ Lot E=R wst
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT BY¥Tr BYTx
Liabilities afE
Financial liabilities at fair value RAREBESELESSH
through profit or loss fFABECeRAaE
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA
— Foreign exchange forward contracts —SNEREAA A - 3,017 - 3,017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 BBEMEE(E)

DR EEMEE ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are

TREHAEFN2012F12 831 BIRA R B

measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012. BitEvEERAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—H B B HaET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEETT BT BT BET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFELESE
through profit or loss STABRZEMEE
Derivatives financial instruments PTAESRIA
— Commodity futures contracts —BER ALY 8,214 - - 8,214
— Foreign exchange forward contracts —HNERHIE A - 6,783 - 6,783
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESRERE
— Equity investments —BERE - - 102,819 102,819
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B FEMm F=H wEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETr BB TT B¥TT A%t
Liabilities afE
Financial liabilities at fair value RAREBESELESSH
through profit or loss fFABECeRAaE
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA
— Commodity futures contracts —HERREL 59 - - 59
— Foreign exchange forward contracts —HNEREAE K - 8,854 - 8,854
There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year. FR B—FHEE—_FEMERTEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included
in level 1 comprise commodity futures contracts.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, foreign exchange forward
contracts) is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

] ]6 Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A PR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments in level 3

3.3

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments

for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013:

MK REEERE (&)
R REEMT(E)
(c) ZE=#HzHIA

TEREVHE20129F %2013 12 A 31

Available-for-sale
financial assets

AREESREE

HK$'000

BT T

At 1 January 2012 201291 A1H 97,307
Net gains transferred to equity FU R E s 5,518
Currency translation differences INEITE =R ©)
At 31 December 2012 R2012912831H 102,819
At 1 January 2013 #2013%F1A1H 102,819
Net gains transferred to equity RN BE R s 5,823
Currency translation differences INEITE =R 3,317
At 31 December 2013 M2013%F12A31H 111,959

If the fair value of equity investments would be shifted by 10%,

the impact on the net gains transferred to equity would be

HK$582,000.

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

HEAEIRE 2 DA BEERE10% - BlYEEs
s 2 R WS R 25 5B 15582,0007T ©

EEgHEET R A

T N HEr 2 FF e NEETT - I BKIRIBE
KREEMARERER - HhaRRRNY
RREMZRIETEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

4.1

(a)

PRSI R R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2.9.1. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of certain key assumptions (note 9). Changing in such
key assumptions selected by management, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash
flows for the CGU of GD Welling and Changzhou Welling had been
18% and 16% higher than management’s estimates respectively,
the recoverable amount of goodwill would be lower than its carrying
amount and impairment of goodwill would be recognised.

If the estimated gross margin of the CGU of GD Welling and
Changzhou Welling had been 4% and 8% lower than management’s
estimates respectively, the recoverable amount of goodwill would be
lower than its carrying amount and impairment of goodwill would be
recognised.

If the growth rate of the CGU of GD Welling and Changzhou Welling
had been 108% and 112% lower than management’s estimates
respectively, the recoverable amount of goodwill would be lower than
its carrying amount and impairment of goodwill would be recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and 4 BEETEHFRAEE)
Judgments (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4.1 EE€iH{4iRESR (E)

(Continued)
(b) Income taxes (b) Fri5HE

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for ETHSHRENEEELEEAHE - £
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which EHBIEREZIBET G NEAERR e 2
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of SRS HIENER - HEZSEEREME
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different HMIENERERVIRZIIEREESNE
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will B FEEBErEAEHGEREZ FAEH L
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in IRIERT B o

which such determination is made.

(c) Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments (c) TTERAMESHBTANIEE
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active WIFEERTISEE S 2 e T A (BT
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by STERE)ZRAREE  BFBHEERNEE -
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a REBFERBENEFEFREEHARZIBITHRE
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on BEHAEGREZB AW EHEBE - AEEE
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. The HWZ B IEEERT B S Z2ITES R T AT
Group has used discounted cash flow analysis for various foreign AALIRIRETREDHT ©

exchange forward contracts that are not traded in active markets.

(d) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investment (d) HHREERZRERE

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an REBFREE S ERFEI0HRMIES BT
available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This determination —IFRHHEESEEERRE EERAE
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group HERHET o (B BT - REFET(E(HA
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which BIE)FREN A BEERENAARRE &=
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial BE 5 ARERE QRSN R 52 A TS Al
health of and short-term business outlook for the investee, including = BETELRARRIA - RIS E D LKE
factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in M EIR e RERE -

technology and operational and financing cash flow.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

4.1

(e)

(f)

(9)

PRSI R R

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Useful lives adopted for the calculation of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment

The estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment was
made by the management with reference to the established industry
practices, technical assessments made on the durability of the
assets, as well as the historical magnitude and trend of repair and
maintenance expenses incurred by the Group. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in responses to severe industry cycles.

If the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
had been higher/lower by 10% from management’s estimates,
the depreciation charge would have decreased/increased by
HK$12,711,000 and HK$15,536,000 respectively.

Provision for impairment of inventories

Provision for impairment of inventories is based on the net realisable
value which is the selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses. The calculation of the net
realisable value is determined based on management’s estimates of
the selling price and variable selling expenses according to prevailing
market conditions.

Provision for impairment of inventories of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is HK$7,116,000 (2012: HK$9,141,000).
Fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using
valuation technique. Details of the judgment and assumptions have

been disclosed in note 8.

There is no external valuer involved. The fair value express the best
estimate of the Boards, and has been confirmed by the Boards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

4.1

(h)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

Management reviews its trade receivables for objective evidence
of impairment. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, the
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default or
significant delay in payments are considered as objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. In determining this, management
makes judgments as to whether there is observable data indicating
that there has been a significant change in the payment ability of
the debtor, or whether there have been significant changes with
adverse effect on the market and economic environment in which the
debtor operates in. Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgments as to whether an impairment loss
should be recorded as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is HK$41,750,000 (2012:
HK$31,360,000).

Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing,
distribution and selling of motors and electronic and electric
components for electrical household appliances in the PRC and

overseas.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, the board of directors, who
is responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance
of the operating segments and making strategic decisions, the
management considers the business from both business and
geographical perspectives.

Before December 2012, the Group was organised into two major
business divisions, which were micro motor division and washing
motor division. The Group underwent a significant organisational
restructuring with the merger of two original major business divisions
to become the new Motor Division in December 2012. From a
business perspective, the Group has only one business segment.

4.1

(h)

EEETHAR R A E (&)
BEEET RER(E)

EEEENEESRUGRE S EERESE -
BEBARABRENME - ERFAATBERENK
BB IR RETIGRE RELEE TER
BEE GEETRER  EEEFHHEEH
ERERBREBANERENBERES)
B LRHEBARBRENT S LEERERE
RANZENERNED - MARETEESE -
EIEEHEA DREBRELCERMAX -

REBEZE2013F12A31HIEFEMEZE S E
W FOR B B A7 141,750,000 (20124 -
7 #£31,360,0007T,) ©

7 EPE R

AEE 2 FREBRETENBINGE - D
RHEFRERIERNETERER °

BREARERITAAEDEER HHZES
BRBMIEHREIDRE 2 TRRERRNE
EEANHTBRE  BEERBAIREBR
HoIs R 73 T B E TSR ©

MR2012F12 AR - AEEHMEEZZEI
MR BB E A RO GEMEZE - K
EER2012F12 A BRI E# 1T T EXRA
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FED - MEBHERE ASEEE A
TEDEB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBHRRME
5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2IER(E)
The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from RNEBENFE - NEBE R A H ISR LB
customers located in the PRC and outside PRC are presented as 2R ZIWAZHINT
follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BB T T
Revenue from customers in the PRC REFEBRREF 2B 6,120,266 4,909,263
Revenue from customers outside the PRC REFRBIRINE P 2 WA 2,761,457 2,878,239
8,881,723 7,787,502
No geographical segment analysis on non-current assets is prepared REEBRIDEEMMAPE - WITEERIE
as substantially all of the Group’s assets were located in the PRC. BB EZHED BT o
6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights 6 FHELHR LT HFEHE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent NEBMPNAE 10 K+ 0 AR R ATEN
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are LEHERIE - REREFESNHOT ¢
analysed as follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Outside Hong Kong, held on leases of 10 to 50 years ~ Z&BIAS » LA10E50F 2 HERHA 221,288 219,722
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Opening net book amount FURMFE 219,722 171,367
Additions NE - 52,779
Amortisation charge BRI (5,259) (4,542)
Currency translation differences INEBITHE ZRE 6,825 118
Closing net book amount FRERMFE 221,288 219,722
At 31 December 2013, no leasehold land and land use rights (2012: M2013F12 A31H » WA E T R+
net book value of HK$44,937,000) have been pledged as security for {5 A (20124F : BREF{E 78 ¥ 44,937,000
the Group’s banking facilities (note 19). TOEBARE BRI TR 2 M (H3E19) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GAMERRNE
7 Property, Plant and Equipment 7 YE BERRE
(a) Group (a) *=&H
Furniture Plant Electronic
Construction- and and Motor and other
in-progress Buildings fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment Total
ETR
KEIR BF GAREE HERES AE HitRiE &t
HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1R
Cost AR 136,938 426,437 68,853 954,978 19,836 69,003 1,676,040
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE - (101,432) (41,675) (347,432) (8,091) (39,840) (538,470)
Net book amount EEFE 136,938 325,005 27178 607,541 11,745 29,163 1,137,570
Year ended 31 December 2012 %@20’1 2F12A31H
IHFE
Opening net book amount ENEETE 136,938 325,005 27178 607,541 11,745 29,163 1,137,570
Additions RE 122,177 7,201 7976 96,630 3,837 40,516 278,337
Currency translation differences  JMNEMEEE (39) (154) 42) (399) (19) 87) (732)
Disposals heE (855) (80) (191) (26,411) (538) (8,440) (36,515)
Transfers | (101,042 19,739 - 81,303 - - -
Depreciation ik - (21,195) (10,605) (74,800) (3,882) (25,194) (135,676)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 157,183 330,516 24316 683,864 11,147 35,958 1,242,984
At 31 December 2012 12012124318
Cost B 167,183 453,190 63,595 1,071,710 21,509 104,081 1,871,268
Accumulated depreciation ZETE - (122,674) (39,279) (387,846) (10,362) (68,123) (628,284)
Net book amount EEFE 157,183 330,516 24,316 683,864 11,147 35,958 1,242,984
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ2013%12A31H
ItFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 157,183 330,516 24,316 683,864 11,147 35958 1,242,984
Additions NE 95,109 4,800 1,430 51,766 4,263 24,685 182,053
Currency translation differences ~ JME B £%E 4,938 9,437 722 15,660 220 3,147 34,124
Disposals HE - - (4,090) (43,244) (704) (2,415) (50,453)
Transfers g% (134,482) 24,484 - 105,666 - 4,332 -
Depreciation ik - (17,974) (2,900) (81,892) (4,036) (33,017) (139,819)
Transfer to investment properties S AR & 1%

(note 8) (3te) - (56,635) - - - - (56,635)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 122,748 294,628 19,478 731,820 10,890 32,690 1,212,254
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A318
Cost B 122,748 434,090 62,080 1,179,918 25,661 119,944 1,944,441
Accumulated depreciation ZEHIE - (139,462) (42,602) (448,008) (14,771) (87,254) (732,187)
Net book amount FIEE 122,748 294,628 19,478 731,820 10,890 32,690 1,212,254

Depreciation expense of HK$123,776,000 (2012: HK$124,723,000)
has been charged in cost of goods sold, HK$949,000 (2012:
HK$136,000) in selling and marketing expenses and HK$15,094,000
(2012: HK$10,817,000) in administrative expenses.

At 31 December 2013, no property, plant and equipment (2012:

net book value of HK$53,126,000) were pledged as security for the

Group’s banking facilities (note 19).

EWERIF - B #123,776,000 7T (2012
F o0 B 124723000 ) EFFAHEE
§h Ak AR - 049,000 7T (2012 £ ¢ B
136,0007T ) 5t A S5 & Ko i35 HE B A 2 Se B HE
15,094,0007T (20124 : & %10,817,0007T )
STAITHES »

2013512318 » EERYIE - WFE MK

& (20124F : BRI F{E B #53,126,0007T) 1E
BAREEIRITIRE 2R (HFE19) -
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MR

(a)

(b)

] 24 Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 7 ¥ - BER®RE(E)

Group (Continued)

(a) F&£E (&)

Construction-in-progress as at 31 December 2013 mainly comprises MR2013F12 AT AMTE R IR X ERIEIEE

new manufacturing equipment being constructed.

Company

BRRR R R R o
(b) AT

Electronic and
other equipment

EFRHEMBE
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2012 7201241 518
Cost B 275
Accumulated depreciation REITE (260)
Net book amount BREFE 15
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE20126F12A31 B IHFE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 15
Additions A= 5
Depreciation e )
Closing net book amount FIREREFE 16
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A31H
Cost [B®N 280
Accumulated depreciation RETINE (264)
Net book amount EREFE 16
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F 12 A1ALFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 16
Additions NE 20
Depreciation e (6)
Closing net book amount FARAREFE 30
At 31 December 2013 MR2013F12831H
Cost BN 300
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (270)
Net book amount BREFE 30




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR
8 Investment Properties 8 REWHE
Group
KEE
HK$'000
BT T
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A31HIFE
Opening net book amount FYRmFE -
Net amount transfer from owner-occupied property (note 7) W E RS FE (T 56,635
Depreciation e (1,706)
Currency translation differences INEITE =R 653
Closing net book amount FRERmFE 55,582
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12831H
Cost AN 62,470
Accumulated depreciation BEINE (6,888)
Net book amount BREEE 55,582

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2013 was HK$56,516,000, as estimated by the directors
of the Group. It falls under level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. No
valuation has been performed by independent qualified professional

valuers.

The rental income of the investment property in 2013 was

HK$2,560,000 (2012: Nil) (note 24).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no unprovided contractual

obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2012: Nil).

KEAREBEERMHE  NEBREWHEN2013
F12 31 BH 2 2 EE & % 56,516,000
T BRARBERENE=H - BEUEE
R EEEMNTEAGEE -

2013F I EMENH L WA &E’E 2,560,000
JL(20124F « #8) (fg5E24) o

MR2013F 12 A31H » AEBFBARIEE L #

EAEARERBOERIER (20124 « ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A -
e BEmRME
9 Intangible Assets 9 BIEEE
Development Group
Goodwill  Technology cost Total
KEE
wE i BB R A &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BT BT BT
At 1 January 2012 #201241 818
Cost AN 29,122 30,925 5,727 65,774
Accumulated amortisation Kt - (757) - (757)
Net book amount RHEE 29,122 30,168 5,727 65,017
Year ended 31 December 2012 EHZE2012%12A31H
HFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 29,122 30,168 5,727 65,017
Additions NE - - 15,629 15,629
Amortisation charge BrE - (3,083) - (3,083)
Currency translation differences SN E = (7) (19) 51 25
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 29,115 27,066 21,407 77,588
At 31 December 2012 2012412 831H
Cost B 29,115 30,933 21,407 81,455
Accumulated amortisation BRG] - (3,867) - (3,867)
Net book amount REFE 29,115 27,066 21,407 77,588
Year ended 31 December 2013 EZ2013%12A31H
IHFE
Opening net book amount FYRMFE 29,115 27,066 21,407 77,588
Additions NE - - 15,863 15,863
Amortisation charge 5 lmb - (3,144) - (3,144)
Currency translation differences N =R 915 804 909 2,628
Closing net book amount FURERMEFE 30,030 24,726 38,179 92,935
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A31H
Cost [B%N 30,030 31,905 38,179 100,114
Accumulated amortisation BT - (7,179) - (7,179)
Net book amount RHEFE 30,030 24,726 38,179 92,935
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A PR

9 Intangible Assets (Continued)

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to arise upon
the Group’s acquisition of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) of GD
Welling and Changzhou Welling located in the PRC from the third
parties. A summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

BILEER)

REBRE=FIREUATHNERREN
MBEBENRSELSEMN([REELSE uJﬁﬁqu
CEAHRBE - MBRBETREE - g8
DEBEZ5MT ¢

As at 31 December

M2A31H
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BB T T
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ERBEESHEERRA
(“GD Welling”) (TEREE]D 25,096 24,333
Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BN ESREERR AR
(“Changzhou Welling”) (ITEIMNEED 4,934 4,782
30,030 29,115

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management

R EE B 2 AR RIS R RE R EER

TEE - BRGHE ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁmiﬁ\ﬁﬂ
(REEEEMEZ AFHRMBIBEE)EL - B
FEASNZ R ERE TR T XAl 2 fhFtig &

covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period

are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. SEHERT o

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

EREEFEZIERRET

follows:
Changzhou
GD Welling Welling
BRAE EMEE
As at 31 December 2013 R2013F12H31H
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) FEFER(FBEEFER) 12% 18%
Volume growth rate MR K 15% 15%
Long term growth rate REJIER R 1% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to BRHIE R (BRI RETER 2 FiAT
the cash flow projections) BHIR ) 15% 15%
As at 31 December 2012 R201212H31H
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) EFR(FBEERRK) 12% 21%
Volume growth rate HEiER R 15% 15%
Long term growth rate RHE R & 1% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to ABE(ARBEERETERZBA
the cash flow projections) ARIA XK) 15% 15%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

10

Intangible Assets (Continued) 9 BEEE(E)
Management determined the compound annual volume growth rate ETIEBEEERSESSMAETETENRNE
for each CGU covering over the five-year forecast period to be a key AEEHERREERET A —BIER:K - BEH
assumption. The volume of sales in each period is the main driver MEHEEEHRBARKANEZNRR - EE
for revenue and costs. The compound annual volume growth rate is FHENRREENBARBLEEEBEMS
based on past performance and management’s expectations for the ERONEL - MFEANRIGRERETERS
market development. The long term growth rates used are consistent AHITERIAE—2 - Fr{E A AYBLER K19 AT ATEL
with the forecasting’s included in industry report. The discount rates IR [ MEA K £ AR A IS E RS o 5 h R
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the Group. No NEEZEERE -
impairment is considered necessary based on the assessment.
Interests in Subsidiaries 10 RE A RINER
The details of the interests in subsidiaries of the Company are as KARRHEB AR MRS BIOT ¢
follows:
Company
¥ N
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Investments in equity interests fE &
— at cost, unlisted — AR - JE T 4,500,000 4,500,000
- subsequent exchange differences due to -HigFABER
translation into presentation currency BHEEIITEER
(note 2.5(c)) (FF5E2.5(c)) 626,925 470,508
Investments arising from share-based payments (i) AR (7 ST 2 B E A 2 1R () 8,348 8,236
Amounts due from subsidiaries (i) iGN E ) 532,340 496,874

5,667,613 5,475,618

(i) The amount represents share-based payments arising from
the grant of share options of the Company to employees of the
subsidiaries for their services provided to the subsidiaries.

(i)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
denominated in HK$, interest-free, the Company does not
intend to collect it in the foreseeable future, with no fixed term
of repayment, non-trade related and account for as quasi-
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 RHEB A TR (&)

The particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are: B ARIR2013E12A31H 2150 T ¢
Place of incorporation and Particulars of issued
operation/establishment share capital/ Interest

Name and kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital held
HEMRIREE BRITRE,

=L FROL 3t B % A TE R A B ERER AMEARZFHE Fiis R

Directly held:

HEREH:

Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%

liability company USD1 each

BEERBV)ER AR RERLHS  AREAERAR REER 10,000 FREE1ET 2

B

Indirectly held:

BESE
Changzhou Honglu Huate Electric Co., Ltd PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 75.97%
of motors RMB40,622,545
B INSA R R B A IR 2 R (i) B AREMELQF FLEREEE T E A AR #40,622,5457C
Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading ~ Registered capital 75.97%
Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Welling”) (foreign investment of motors USD23,634,600
enterprises)
EMBEEHEERRAR(TEMHED () B EREETAA SLEREE B FEf & Z23,634,6003 7T
(SNERZE)
Foshan Welling Electronic & Electric Co., Ltd.  PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
(“Welling Electronic and Electric”) (foreign investment of motors USD15,000,000
enterprises)
BT EE TEEARAA PR BEREEAT SLER BB #Ef & Z<15,000,0003 7T
(THEETFESD (SNERZE)
Foshan Welling Material Supply Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Trading of raw materials Registered capital 100%
RMB20,000,000
BT REMEHEERR AR FE - BEREEAA BEE R & A8 AR #20,000,0007T
Foshan Welling Washer Motor Manufacturing  PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Welling Washer”) (foreign investment of motors USD6,400,000
enterprises)
BT REEGRERELEB R AR HE AREMERF R EEBHK & 7%6,400,0005 7T
(TEESLE]) (SNEREE)
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (“GD Welling”) (foreign investment of motors USD48,810,000
enterprises)
ERAEEREEARART(ERRE]) HE AREERF R EEBH #Hi & 74848,810,000% 7T
(SNERE)
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MR

10 RKIE DA AV (&)

10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

Particulars of issued

operation/establishment share capital/ Interest
Name and kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital held
MR REE BRITRA
=t AL RN EE B R E R FEXH HEMERZFHE FRisRER
Hefei Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
of motors RMB50,000,000
AIEREBHEERRAF PR BREERAR SLENEEEH & A AR #50,000,0007T
Huaian Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company ~Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
(“Huaian Welling”) (foreign investment of motors USD25,000,000
enterprises)
ELRBEERELEFRAR(DELRE ) FE - BREERAA BEREEEH 1 & 7825,000,0003 7T
(SNERE)
Midea Welling Motor Technology (Shanghai) PRC, limited liability company  Providing technical Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. consultancy services RMB10,000,000
ENBBEERRM(LE)BRATF B AREMERF R AR RS FHE A AR #10,000,0007T
Welling International Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding and 10,000,000 ordinary shares of 100%
("Welling HK”) company trading of motors HK$1 each
HEEREEERAR(HESTE]) BE - ARAMEAF REZFRREERE 10,000,000/ G AR E(E
BTz LBk
Welling Macao Commercial Offshore Limited =~ Macao Special Administrative — Offshore trading Registered capital Macao 100%
Region, limited liability Pataca 100,000
company
HERFIE A ERBERAR BFVSRITHER - BREE  BERS #H & 4R F9#5100,0007T
A
Welling (Wuhu) Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
(“Wuhu Welling”) (foreign investment of motors USD17,680,000
enterprises)
BE (G ERELERRAR([FARE]) B AREERA FEREEBH 1 E 74817,680,0003% 70
(ONERZ)
Wuhu Welling Motor Sales Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Trading of motors Registered capital 100%
RMB50,000,000
HYREERIEHEBERAR FE - EREEAT EEEH FHff & A AR #50,000,0007T
Wauxi Little Swan Huayin Electrical Appliances  PRC, limited liability company  Dormant Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd.* RMB49,673,470
|G N RIGENEREGR AT PR EREERAA =% TMERARKE49,673,4707T

*

The company is deregistered during the year.

© RERERRHEEER -

The English name of certain companies referred in this financial statements represent management’s best effort at translating

the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been registered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR
10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 HMIEBARIMRER (&)
(i) Material non-controlling interests (iii) EBAEEBRERS
The total non-controlling interest for the year is HK$62,890,000, NEEWIEEREZELRAE
which are all attributed to Changzhou Welling Group, which 62,890,0007T * 2R BEFMEES
included Changzhou Welling and its subsidiary Changzhou (ER &N B EE R H BT B & Rl F M 3k
Honglu Huate Electric Co., Ltd. ERERERATIHEN) °
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with BEEAFZRBmINE L RS
material non-controlling interests BERBE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for ATEME N ESEE 2 &R
Changzhou Welling Group. 2o
Summarised balance sheet EEEBEREE
Changzhou Welling Group
ENREEE
2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT T
Current e
Assets BE 308,863 179,420
Liabilities afE (318,482) (145,810)
Total current net (liabilities)/assets REN(BE)BERBET (9,619) 33,610
Non-current JEMED
Assets BE 216,595 158,784
Liabilities afE (6,213) (6,794)
Total non-current net assets IERBNE EFREAEE 210,382 151,990
Net assets AEFH 200,763 185,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmERMET
10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 HMIEBARIMRER (&)
(iii) Material non-controlling interests (i) EXFERER(E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with HBEBAHZIRERLINTB L a8 5
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BERIKE ()
Summarised income statement KR REPE
Changzhou Welling Group
ENBBEER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue A 223,294 129,540
Profit/(loss) before income tax MBRFTS AT FIE, (B518) 32,632 (10,780)
Income tax (expense)/income FTERL(F%), A (8,587) 2,175
Profit/(loss) for the year FEMB(EE) 24,045 (8,609)
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to AT IR S FEEFRE
non-controlling interests (E18) 6,631 (1,890)
Other comprehensive income allocated to DB T IR Y
non-controlling interests Hfbh 2wk 1,809 (20)
Total comprehensive income allocated to ST IR R A
non-controlling interests 2 EEBET 8,440 (1,910)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmERMET
10 Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 HMIEBARIMRER (&)
(iii) Material non-controlling interests (i) EXFERER(E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with ABEEAFLZR B BINE L a5
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BEXHZ(E)
Summarised cash flows HEeEREHPE
Changzhou Welling Group
ENREEE
2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT
Cash flows from operating activities KRETH2HERE
Cash generated from operations IREELEVIRS 91,803 91,488
Income tax paid =ENIZIEST (20) (526)
Net cash generated from operating activities KRB EA 2S5 91,783 90,962
Net cash used in investing activities WETBMA RS TR (63,681) (85,480)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEFA RS F5 (29,768) (22,221)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEYRDFE (1,666) (16,739
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FYIZRe LB EEEBY 9,465 26,211
Effect on exchange difference EHERTE 840 @)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZ2/ERREEEY 8,639 9,465
The information above is the amount before inter-company A EERH B AR ERI S5 -
eliminations.

11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 ERZEARZERE
Method

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: EEBEBERNERSTENT ¢
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T FEMET T
Associates RN 296,259 271,669
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MR

11

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity
Method (Continued)

11 DESEZEARZRE(E)

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows: Wk NHER ST
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT
Associates i l/NG]| 22,405 17,322

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2013, which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. The associates as listed below are all unlisted, and held
directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business.

Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December 2013 and
2012:

Place of
business/country of

REEMN2013F 12 A31B A T 5B & a] -
BRESRAHANEBEEATZENAT - T
FE N R AIE EM AR AN B EER
g B sl EEEmE 2
FTTE ©

R20134F 22012612 A31 B 2 Bt & A R)i% &
M

% of
ownership Nature of the Measurement

Name of entity incorporation interest relationship method
RS
ERAaE MR MR ER Bolk  BREM RN E
Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co.,Ltd. PRC 49 note 1 Equity
(“Shanxi Huaxiang”)
IWPREMNEBBR AR ILUEER D A B3 1 A
Linkgo-HK Limited (“Linkgo”) Hong Kong 49 note 2 Equity
BABRMABR AR ]) BB Bt 52 A

note 1: Shanxi Huaxiang’s principal activities are manufacturing
and selling precise casting used for the compressor of air
conditioning and refrigerators. Shanxi Huaxiang is a private
company and there is no quoted market price available for
its shares.

note 2: Linkgo’s principal activities are investment holding. Linkgo
is a private company and there is no quoted market price
available for its shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 LUEZHEABRZIRE ()
Method (Continued)

Summarised financial information for associates BELGNBEERE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for Shanxi TR AR RS A ABRAY LU 75 2 2 K VRAR] 10 B 75
Huaxiang and Linkgo which are accounted for using the equity ERHRE -
method.
Summarised balance sheet EEAERNE

Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total

WFEER AT 4@t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS00 ~ HK§000  HK$000
BMTR  BETE  RMTR  BETRE  BMTR BT

Current E
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBLZEN 160,607 185,743 - 1 160,607 185,744
Other current assets HEfRgEE

(excluding cash) (TpiEEE) 907,395 691,271 - - 907,395 691,271
Total current assets BREEE 1,068,002 877,014 - 1 1,068,002 877,015
Financial liabilities SRIBE

(excluding trade payables) (TREESEMAR) (530,597)  (363,778) (22) (21)  (530,619) (363,799
Other current liablities Hipneas

(including trade payables) (BIEEBSENF) (544,546)  (435,339) (150) (124) (544,690 (435,463
Total current liabilities BrEas (1,075,143)  (799,117) (172) (145) (1,075315)  (799,262)
Non-current FRE
Assets EBE 810,719 785,699 44,286 46,688 855,005 832,387
Financial liabilties SRARE (160,010)  (262,424) - - (160,010)  (262,424)
Other liabilties AR (18,355)  (29.431) - - (18385 (29431
Total non-current liabilities BIERHAR (178,365  (291,855) - - (178,365)  (291,855)
Net assets BESE 625,213 571,741 44,114 46,544 669,327 618,285
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 LUEZHEABRZIRE ()
Method (Continued)

Summarised financial information for associates (Continued) BE LA EERIIE ()
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HKRERYE
Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total
LFEES sl @t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
BRI ARTT B®Tx  BRTr  BERTR AR R

Revenue WA 1,409,240 1,210,708 13,441 - 1,422,681 1,210,708
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH (80,854) (64,281) - - (80,854) (64,281)
Interest income FIBMA 1,122 1,936 - - 1,122 1,936
Interest expense IR (47,369) (48,125) - - (47,369) (48,125)
Profit before income tax MR EHATFIE 64,694 46,085 11,011 13,241 75,705 59,326
Income tax expense PSR (15,797) (9,580) - - (15,797) (9,580)
Profit for the year FERE 48,897 36,505 11,011 13,241 59,908 49,746
Dividends received from BB A TR

associate HRE - - 13,441 - 13,441 -
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MR

11 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity 11 LUEZHEABRZIRE ()
Method (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information Fr 2B R £ iR 7%
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to BT 25 BB 75 & R 2 B N B i AR (B
the carrying amount of its interest in associates ¥ ERER
Summarised financial information B ERBE
Shanxi Huaxiang Linkgo Total
WFER AT @t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
BRI ARTT B®Tx  BRETr  BERTR AR R

Opening net assets 1A1AZENEERE

1 January 571,741 535,246 46,544 33303 618,285 568,549
Profit for the period 2T 48,897 36,505 11,011 13,241 59,908 49,746
Dividend paid ERRE (13,908) - (13,441) - (27,349) -
Currency translation differences INEEERE 18,483 (10) - - 18,483 (10)
Consolidated closing net assets #HAFREEZE 625,213 571,741 44,114 46,544 669,327 618,285
Non-controlling interests IR (108,297)  (106,197) - - (108,297)  (106,197)

Closing net assets attributable  HEAABEEREERE
to the owners 516,916 465,544 44114 46,544 561,030 512,088

Interest in associates (49%, 49%) & 1\ E)RE (49%  49%) 253,289 228,116 21,616 22,807 274,905 250,923

Fair value adjustments DREERE 1,699 2,404 18,486 18,759 20,185 21,163
Currency translation differences SN E =T (1,278) (1,302) 2,447 885 1,169 (417)
Carrying value BREE 253,710 229,218 42,549 42,451 296,259 271,669
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A PR

12 Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

12 AHESHERE

Group

TEH

HK$’000

BT T

At 1 January 2012 201291 HA1H 97,307
Net gains transferred to equity F R T R 5,518
Currency translation differences INEBITE ZERE ©®)
At 31 December 2012 R2012F 12831 H 102,819
At 1 January 2013 ®R2013F1A1H 102,819
Net gains transferred to equity FU SR TR 5,823
Currency translation differences INEITE =R 3,317
At 31 December 2013 2013912 H31H 111,959

(@)

The available-for-sale financial assets represent the equity
interests in a unlisted company, Midea Group Finance Co.,
Ltd (the “Finance Company”), which shall provide a range
of financial services as approved by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”). The registered capital of
the Finance Company was RMB1,500 million while GD Welling
held 5% equity interest. The Group has no significant influence
on the Finance Company.

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets was
determined by the directors. A gain arising from the fair value
amounting to HK$5,823,000 (2012: HK$5,518,000) was
recognised in other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2013. The directors assessed the fair value of
the equity investment and are in the opinion that the fair value
of the Finance Company approximately its net assets as at 31
December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmERMET
13 Inventories 13 F&
Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Raw materials Rkt 220,163 210,586
Work-in-progress TR 30,293 31,026
Finished goods (note) 2K A (P FE) 626,273 461,919
876,729 703,531

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$6,544,347,000 (2012:
HK$5,624,032,000).

During the year, the Group made a provision for impairment of
inventories amounting to HK$7,116,000 (2012: HK$9,141,000).

note: As at 31 December 2013, the Group had finished goods
which were delivered and kept in stores at customers’
location amounting to approximately HK$322,310,000 (2012:
HK$241,186,000). No sales have been recognised for these
finished goods as the risks and rewards have not been
passed to the customers.

17 8 Bk 75 4 15.6,544,347,000 7T (2012 4F = #
#5,624,032,0007T) EER AR W AHE
ERmKANA -

FR - AEBELTERBERGEE
7,116,0007T (20124 : 7#%9,141,0007T) °

Mzt : M2013F12A31H * "EE X
REREREPMEORK DB
& 322,310,000 7T (2012 5 : & ¥
241,186,0007T) ° FF R & B3k R
HERTERP  WZEENGHHEEL
RIERER -
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MR

14 Trade and Other Receivables 14 B REMEWRR

Group Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T
Trade receivables (note (a)) B 5 YK (M) 1,232,725 1,265,739 - -
Less: allowance for impairment B ORE R
(note (c)) (Fft5E(e)) (41,750) (31,360) - -
Trade receivables-net B S WK — 558 1,190,975 1,234,379 - -
Notes receivable (notes (a), (d)) EWEE (@) ~ (d) 1,049,262 660,589 - -
Amounts due from related parties FEU BRR: 7 FRIE
(note (a), 36(b)) (Pi%E(a) ~ 36(b)) 478,010 880,436 - -
2,718,247 2,775,404
Prepayments SENES 108,581 204,005 485 485
Other receivables H ) FERR 70,209 131,348 - -
Recoverable value-added tax-net AU BIE(ER — F5E
(note (e)) GEG) 123,921 90,104 - -
3,020,958 3,200,861 485 485
Less: non-current portion B FEBNERER
— Prepayments for property, plant —FBNYE - BB MR
and equipment e (24,705) (3,281) - -
2,996,253 3,197,580 485 485

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair values of trade and
other receivables of the Group and the Company approximate their

R2013F 201212 A31H » NEB AR
RIZESREMEWRGZ AR EEERERAEE

carrying amounts. = o

] 40 Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14 ESREMEWRR(E)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, prepayments of the Company HR2013F 2012612 A31H » ANARIMTER
are denominated in HK$. Trade and other receivables (including HABBYE - B REMEUGE(BIERE
amounts due from related parties) are denominated in the following WG BEEs: 5 30T ) LA N B EETIME -
currencies:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
RMB AR¥E 2,367,387 2,444,964
usD e 477,288 551,969
EUR BT 175,398 203,081
Others Ei 885 847

3,020,958 3,200,861

notes: {hEs:

(@)  The majority of the Group’s trade receivables are with credit @ AEBRIESEZEWRZEERNT
period from 30 to 150 days. As at 31 December 2013 and 30HZE150H ° %2013 K2012%F12H
2012, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables, 318 - BHEWFERE - UL 5 %
amounts due from related parties and notes receivable TENEWEE ZBREBR ORI T -

respectively are as follows:

Group

rEH
Gross trade receivables: R Y AE 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within 3 months 31EANUA 1,021,925 1,097,885
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 200,378 155,762
Over 6 months 61E A AL 10,422 12,092
1,232,725 1,265,739

Group

AEE
Amounts due from related parties: FEUREAES H RUE - 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within 3 months 3{E A LAA 478,010 878,851
3 to 6 months 3%E6fEA - 1,557
Over 6 months 61E A LA £ - 28
478,010 880,436
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A PR

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(@  (Continued)

14 BEZRHEMERR(E)

(@)

(&)

Group

REE
Notes receivable: EREE 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 3 months 31E A AR 86,591 259,653
3 to 6 months 3%61E A 962,671 400,936
1,049,262 660,589

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the trade receivables
of HK$1,142,539,000 (2012: HK$1,202,092,000) are fully
performing.

(b) As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of
HK$120,614,000 (2012:HK$104,207,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no significant financial difficulty
and based on past experience, the overdue amounts can be
recovered. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

20134 2012412 A318H » E5 /&
W SR8 64 142,539,000 (20124 - #
#4,202,092,0007T ) EEVEETT ©

B2013F 12 831 H - B 5 EWK
75 120,614,000 7T (2012 F : B ¥
104,207,0007T) B @ HiERR(E « tE A
BEWEEAVHERENBELES - B
RIBBTEL - @EAFKIER FURE - 1t
LB HRIK 2 RE AT -

follows:

Group

REE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
3 to 6 months 3Z=61EAH 118,519 102,738
Over 6 months 61E A LA+ 2,095 1,469
120,614 104,207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(©

14 BEZRHMERR(E)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately (0 M2013%12A31H  EHEK AL
HK$90,186,000 (2012: HK$63,647,000) were impaired. The 7 1 90,186,000 T (2012 & : & ¥
provision in relation thereto was approximately HK$41,750,000 63,647,0007T ) BB > B2013F 12 A
(2012: HK$31,360,000) at 31 December 2013. The individual 318 2 A # B & 4% % 41,750,000 7T
impaired receivables mainly relate to past due receivables (20124 @ & #31,360,0007T) ° 1E B
from customers. There is no recent history of default for most BEERG T EER R EAEN R IES
of the customers, it was assessed that a large portion of the B KD FPEBWEHERGLE - B
receivables is expected to be recovered. The ageing of these FHE KB E YR FB EAHE AT I [E] o 55
receivables is as follows: JEUGR Z BRERUOT
Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
3 to 6 months 3%61E A 81,859 53,024
Over 6 months 61E A AL 8,327 10,623
90,186 63,647
Movements on the Group’s allowance for impairment of trade rEBEEFGRBFOBREREZ SN
receivables are as follows: Nk
Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Beginning of the year F47 31,360 35,266
Provision/(written back) for impairment — net BERE(BE) —F5E 10,926 (3,209)
Bad debts written off SRR (1,659) 675)
Currency translation differences INEITE R 1,123 (22)
End of the year Fix 41,750 31,360

The creation and release of allowance for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in profit or loss
(note 25). Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

SRR 2 IR ER T AR
B2 ITHBZ A (HE5) - HIEEIT AL
BRSNS + RIS AR AR 2 HE—
MRS o
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MR

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

©)]

(Continued)

The provision written back represented the subsequent
collection of previously provided impaired amounts.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity
periods within six months. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The Group has paid input value-added taxes (“VAT”) to the
State Tax Bureau for the goods purchased from its suppliers.
In accordance with the relevant PRC tax regulations, these
VAT can be offset with the output VAT arising from future sales
but are not refundable. The balances at 31 December 2013
and 2012 represented net input VAT after offsetting the output
VAT payable by the Group for domestic sales made during the
year.

] 44 Welling Holding Limited | BiBiZRER AR

14 BEZRHMERR(E)

© (&)

BOBERZRKREZETRERES

B o

g5 REMERT 2 HMER T EHEE

MEBE -
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BERERBAZ AREE - AREYLEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

15

16

17

Pledged Bank Deposits

Certain bank balances were pledged against bank acceptance
notes issued by the Group and these deposits will be released upon
the maturity of the relevant bank acceptance notes issued. These
pledged bank deposits bear interest at bank saving rates of 2.85%
per annum (2012: 3.06% per annum). All pledged bank deposits are
denominated in RMB.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

15

SEFRTER

AETRITESRIEAREBMATH T ZRITER
B ZER - MRS FEHERE L 2 BEERT
AN EBREHARR - ZEOEMRITFRIZ
RITIFHF 7 %2.85% (2012  FF%3.06%)
TR TAEEBRITFRAARBEHE -

16 RERBEEZEY
Group Company
rEH ¥ NNE
2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT BETT

Bank deposits and cash on hand RITEAR N FHERE 1,825,010 825,717 10,173 3,097

The weighted average effective interest rate on bank deposits was
0.73% per annum (2012: 0.83% per annum).

WITHERZMEFHERFFEAE0.73%
(20124F : H]%0.83%) °

Share Capital and Share Options 17 RAERBRE
(a) Share capital (@) B
Authorised
Ordinary shares
EERRZEBR
Number of
shares ('000) HK$’000
fRHEE (F) BT T
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and 7201241 A1H ~ 20124 &
2013, at HK$0.5 each 2013512 A31 B EREE
BI£0.57T 4,000,000 2,000,000
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

(a)

17 BARBREGE)

R (&)

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares

EETRACREAZEER
Number of
shares ('000) HK$’000
R ER (FR) BT T
At 1 January 2012, at HK$0.5 each R2012F1 A1H
SRR EEB0.57T 2,821,613 1,410,806
Share issued under the share option scheme (i) BERXESTEIT 2 A% 15 3£ 17() 100 50
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013,  R2012F12A318 &
at HK$0.5 each 201391 A1H
SR EEB0.57T 2,821,713 1,410,856
Share issued under the share option scheme (i) BERR#EETEIT 2 B 179217 (i) 27,494 13,747
At 31 December 2013, R20135F12A318
at HK$0.5 each HRREEB0.57T 2,849,207 1,424,603

(i) The share options exercised by an employee of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012, resulted
in 100,000 shares being issued at HK$0.785, yielding
proceeds after transaction costs of approximately
HK$72,000, which was recognised as share capital
and share premium amounting to HK$50,000 and
HK$22,000 respectively. The weighted average closing
price of shares of the Company at the time of exercise of
share options was HK$1.2.

(i)  The share options exercised by the employees of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, resulted
in 27,494,000 shares being issued at HK$0.785, vyielding
proceeds after transaction costs of approximately
HK$21,374,000, which was recognised as share capital
and share premium amounting to HK$13,747,000 and
HK$7,627,000 respectively. The weighted average
closing price of shares of the Company at the time of
exercise of share options was HK$1.76.
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(i)

HZE2012F12A31HILFE - AEH
—ZEEITERERE - EE0100,000/%
AR IR B BB 50,785 T 2 (BIR 31T
MR 5E1% 2 FTSRIELE 72,000
TG ° 9 B FE R A 7S # 50,000 7T M B
22,0007T 2 IR RARASHE o BEAR i
TR - RQEIRAD 2 T U T (E
B 27T -

HE2013F12A31AILEFE » &%
E{E 81T B R - B 527,494,000
% B& 10 42 5 IR 8 %6 0.785 T 2 (B 15 B¢
T HBRXSGBEZAEREBELE
5 21,374,000 7T ° 9 B HER B AW
13,747,000 7T J2 7% % 7,627,000 7T 2 %
REBRARE - BREBITER - A
NRIRLG 2 I H U (E RE1.76
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BN & PR#E (&)

(b) Share options (b) FERRAE

The Company adopted a share option scheme as approved by
the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 27 June 2003 (the “2003 Share Option
Scheme”).

During the year, the 2003 Share Option Scheme was
terminated before its expiration on 26 June 2013 and a new
share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 30 May 2013.

Following the expiry of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant share options to eligible participants as
recognition and acknowledgement of the contributions that
the eligible participants have made or may make to the Group
or any affiliates; and to attract, retain and motivate talented
eligible participants to strive for the future developments and
expansion of the Group and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the eligible
participants pursuant to the terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme include (1) any full-time or part-time employees or
potential employees, executives or officers of the Group or any
affiliates; (2) any directors (including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Group or any
affiliates; or (3) anyone who, as to be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to
the Group or any affiliates.

AR BIER AR AR R AN A B IR A 200346
A27BERITZRERERIAE Lt E 2B
AT 2 ([ 2003 AR HERTE ) -

FI - 20034 fE MR GBI 2 5 20134F
6H26 B EmATA I - TR 2
([2013F A tEEt 2l 1) E 201345 A
S0RBITZARRIRKBAFAG LEAR
A AR

2003 BRI EIE M 1& - AR AIA]
MAEERSHEERTERE  UEER
RYESERSMEHRNE B S
REIDER AR E B R ¢ PAR IR
S - BBERYEB NG ERSEE
RAEERRRERE KRR SRR -
W AN A AR RS B BUR AR 152013
FRERETESINERMEEB2EER
g E - 48E - BE - ®mE R SF
% o 2013 AT BN G B8 mE
BIEMNASEB L EMBB AR ZE MR
BRBESNERES - TTHRABHS
WEE  QAEESNTWEBARZT
MER(BIEENTES B LIENT
EE) RQEFEIRDERAER
EESTABBEARDIELRBIELE
B2 EAIATL -
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BN & PR#E (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) EERRFE(HE)

The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of 10
years commencing from 30 May 2013. The limit on the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2013 Share Option Scheme (being 283,724,682 shares),
but the Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the 2013
Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of such limit must be separately approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting.

Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme
to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or their respective associates, must be approved
by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(excluding Independent Non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant,
must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company.
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2013 R iR T EIEREE BA R
BEITR (D 4282 10% (B1283,724,682
fg) - EARRFARRERS LSRR
FRH/EE F2013F BRIEFTEI T 2 10%
PREE o

PR IR AN R 512013 6 B AR 42 51 8l R AT
fa] LA B AR A T B4R Y 2 B AR A A T (2
B - MER121E A BB 1T R G317
FTHRAERZEE ZRNDBE - T5
BBARNREEITROBE 21% « (£
a3t — P R IR L R B8 2 BE AR I B &
AABRRARERAE ESITHUE o

RE2013F AR EIM AR AIES -
EETHRABREZERAXHES G5
BARLBRE  BEARABBILIE
HITES(TBRESABREARAZ
BN IEMITE R ) HE o 1o - REZE
BHBS(BIEZB) ILEM121E B 5
B AARREEZRRNBIERTE
FHESAZEMNBEARLD ZEA
B - EAHBBAERRREBITR
MHBEZ01%RBERBERRAARE
BRE ARG TEE)BBAEE
5,000,0007T * AJIZBRA AR AIRERE
FERRERBLE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BN & PR#E (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) EERRFE(HE)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the
grantee with payment of HK$1 as consideration within 28 days
from the date of approval for the grant of share options by the
Board. The exercise period of the share options granted may
be determined by the Board and in any event, such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which
any particular share options are granted in accordance with
the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
grant of share options, which must be a business day; and (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
share options, which must be a business day.

As at 31 December 2013, 16,406,000 share options remain
outstanding and exercisable under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme. No share options were granted to any eligible
participants since the adoption of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.

ERAREZSHERIBERER R
HET28AA - U B 1TTZ REE
MR MERERER - IR BEREZTT
EHATRMEESET  EERNAZH
RS IBRE2013F B B L
EAAI4 T BB AR B HAAEET104F -

BREZTEEBRAELATIIZERE
IREREHEBREER(AREER)EE
BAaXZABERAR([BRM)ERRK
BRARZARABODKHE R R
EERHEREER(ARLEB)AS
E=ZERABIMEHRERARZIAR
B I RTE -

#2013F 12 A31H » RIK2003F B
T2 1575 16,406,00019 BE RLAE 15 R 1T
FE A FITEE - B2013F AT 21E
Rz BE - BETNEERSHEE
RREARIE
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BN & PR#E (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) HEERRE(E)
Movements in the share options granted under the 2003 Share REZE2013F 12 A31HIEFE » RIE
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2013 2003F it Bl H 2 B = BN
were as follows: o
Balance as Balance
Exercise at  Exercised as at
price 1 January during  Cancelled Lapsed 31
(note 1) Exercisable 2013 the year during during December
Name Date of Grant HK$ period (note 1) (noted)  theyear  theyear 2013
20135
e 1818 RER 20135
iE3)) A 5 3 BT RER RER  12A31A
#H RUAH B TES  (WE) (M) Bt BAH 28
Directors B2
Mr. Zhou Xiangyang ~ Emf5 %4 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 7,200,000 - (1,800,000) - 5,400,000
31/03/2017
(note 2)
(Fizr2)
Mr. Jiang Deging ZERRE 09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 7,200,000 - (1,800,000) - 5,400,000
31/03/2017
(note 2)
(M)
Mr.LamMingYung ~ #ERELAE 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 400,000 - - - 400,000
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
31/03/2017
(note 2)
(Fizr2)
Ms. Chen Chunhua & TEZL 30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 400,000 - - - 400,000
(resigned on 21 Oct (2013510 29/07/2017 (note 3)
2013) 21BFHE) i)

09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 1,000,000 ~ (1,000,000) - - -
31/03/2017
(note 2)
(Hizt2)

Employees
In aggregate

o>
H mo

N
p

30/07/2007 3.900 30/07/2007- 700,000 - - - 700,000
29/07/2017

09/01/2009 0.785 01/04/2010- 38,000,000 (26,494,000) (2,000,000) (6,400,000 3,106,000
31/03/2017
(note 2)
(Fizr2)

Total ait 55,900,000 (27,494,000) (5,600,000) (6,400,000) 16,406,000
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b) Share options (Continued)

notes:

On 27 May 2011, the Company implemented a share
consolidation on the basis that every five issued and
unissued shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one share
of HK$0.5 each (“Share Consolidation”). As a result,
the exercise price and the number of outstanding
share options granted under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme were adjusted to reflect the effect of the Share
Consolidation.

The consideration for each of the grants above was
HK$1. The share options granted on 9 January 2009
shall be exercisable during the share option period
subject to a vesting scale in four tranches of 25% each
and the achievement of the performance target of the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
the relevant period as set out below:

(@  the first 25% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable within seven years
after 31 March 2010 provided that the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2009 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the
Company is not less than 100% of the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2008 (excluding
the results from discontinued business) (“Net Profit
of 2008”);

(b)  the second 25% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable within six years
after 31 March 2011 provided that the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2010 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the
Company is not less than 150% of the Net Profit
of 2008;

17 RAERBEREE)
(b) FEAEE ()

i3]

B

M0 ES5A27H » KAFIEAR
NARARERABEONTZER
REETRABITRGEHE—
[RERBEOST 2 Bin o BE%
BITROEH(TROEH]) -
I AR AE20034F B A% R 5t 2195
i e AR AT 2 AR 2 TR B
HECIEAE  ARBBHLAE G

By 488
a7 X

—

2. EFEEHZREAEBEIT -
720091 BB & iH 2 Bk HER]
PERAEER D417 - BB
Bl AE#25% « MEEERT X
e B AR A AL
Mz RBBEE:

@ BETSERAZEI5%HE
¥R 2010F3 A31 B
TERITE - B E2009F
12A31 B IEITBFEARR
BEA ANEGAR (AR
BIARMEERNEMERE)E
T REZE 20084 12 A 31
HIEMBEERREEE A
EAEHF(TEEREER
IEgR 7% 2 22 45) (12008
FHF 1) 2100% :

() BTEERAZE2H25%
BERR#E ] 201183 A318
BEFANTTHEE - MHEEZE2010
F12A3 AT BFER
NAER ABGAET (4
RNABKRAEBRNERE
7 ) BT D 2008 F 4t Fl 2
150%
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17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b) Share options (Continued)
notes: (Continued)

2. (Continued)

(c) the third 25% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable within five years
after 31 March 2012 provided that the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the
Company is not less than 200% of the Net Profit
of 2008; and

(d)  the fourth 25% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable within four years
after 31 March 2013 provided that the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2012 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the
Company is not less than 280% of the Net Profit
of 2008.

The performance target for the four tranches had been
achieved. All relevant options can be exercisable by the
directors and employees respectively.

Ms. Chen Chunhua resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 October 2013.
She is interested in 400,000 share options, which were
granted on 30 July 2007 under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme of the Company, entitling her to subscribe for
400,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of
HK$3.9 per share, shall be lapsed on 21 April 2014.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the date on which the
share options were exercised was HK$1.73.
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17 RAERBEREE)
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BAERTF20124F3 A31H
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F12A31A L HEFER
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d BFEEABEAZELIH25%
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BAFANITEE - EEZE2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

17 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 17 BN & PR#E (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) EERRFE(HE)

The fair values of the options granted are determined using the EREERE, AREEFAIZER
HEER | ([ZEREDETE - ZER 2
FEREFEIIAT

Binomial Valuation Model (“the Model”). Key assumptions of
the Model are set out below:

Date of grant 9 January 2009 BRHBEH - 200941 A9H
Risk-free rate: 1.299% R R 1.299%
Expected dividend yield: 3% TEHEARR B % 3%
Expected volatility of the market price ARafgmmEs

of the Company’s shares: 52.34% SELIA 52.34%
Expected option life: 8.2 years RE RS 2 FEHAGREA ¢ 8.2%F
Fair value as at the date of grant R EEZ

(approximately): HK$25,229,000 AEE) - AB¥E25,229,0007T
Date of grant 30 July 2007 BHHEE 200797 A30H
Risk-free rate: 4.13% [ R o 4.13%
Expected dividend yield: 0% TEEARR B K 0%
Expected volatility of the market price RATROTEZ

of the Company’s shares: 65.38% SELI 65.38%
Expected option life: 5.23 years REAE 2 T EA SR HR - 5.23%F
Fair value as at the date of grant RIEHBEZ

(approximately): HK$3,453,000 AREEEOS) - E%3,453,0007T

The Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,

including the volatility of share price. As changes in subjective

input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,

in the directors’ opinion, the Model does not necessarily

provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of share

options.

ZREERAGATERR(BRERE
BKiE) c ARBATERRZEDH Y
NAEHBFERNERTE  REER
5 RERRDEAERREAREZ

ME—TRISETTX °
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e MBHRRME
18 Other reserves 18 HAihfEE
Share-  Available-
Statutory ~ General Enterprise Share based  for-sale
reserve  reserve expansion option  payment revaluation Exchange Merger
Group fund fund fund  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total
HRHA
EERE  -REE CERR O BRE O EBN  TREE
81 B¢ s £8 BE ARG EfRE EIRE  AURE ait
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O00  HKS000  HK$O00  HK$O000  HK$000
AMTT BT A%Trn  A%Tr BT A%Tr BETr AT BETx
note (a) note (a) note (a) note (o) note (c)
M WiEe  HEe Hizk) Hizte)
Balance at 1 January 2012 H201251 1R S 3158 123126 113978 26,187 - 4694 163606 (3,258,013) (2,823,274)
Share option scheme e
- value of services provided ~FiRERE CEBE
(note 26(a)) (Frr3E26(8) - - - 959 - - - - 959
- option lapsed -BRMBRE
(note 26(a)) (Frr3t26()) - - - (1514) - - - - (1514)
Change in value of avallable-for- AT ESREZEES
sale financial assets - - - - - 5518 - - 55618
Currency translation differences SN E £ - - - - - - 1,141 - 1,141
Contrioution by owners relating to B A AR AR
share-based payment (note(o)  HMEE(HEE(D) - - - - 19,423 - - - 19,423
Transfer to statutory reserve EEDITRE 2088 22,706 22,706 - - - - - 47500
Balance at 31 December 2012  A2012% 12831 A &k 5241 145832 136,679 25,632 19,423 10212 164,747 (3,258,013 (2,750,247)
Balance at 1 January 2013 W2013E1 A1R &S 5241 145832 136,679 25,632 19,423 10212 164,747 (3,258,013) (2,750,247)
Share option scheme R
- value of senvices provided ~FriRitiRis 2 B
(note 26(a) ([Hi££26(a)) - - - 147 - - - - 147
Change in value of avallable-for- AT HESBEEEEES
sale financial assets - - - - - 3,375 - - 3,375
Currency tranlation differences  SNEHEEE - - - - - - 8922 - 89222
Transfer to statutory reserve EETETEE 542 10,559 10,559 - - - - - 21,660
Balance at 31 December 2013  A2013% 12831 A &8 5783 156,391 147,238 25,779 19,423 13,587 253,969 (3,258,013) (2,635,843)
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A PR

18 Other reserves (Continued)

18 Hfhfwe ()

Share
option Exchange
Company reserve reserve Total
AT BRERE ELR#E &5t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T

Balance at 1 January 2012 20121 A1 &8 26,187 512,110 538,297
Profit for the year FEMNHE - - -
Share option scheme iR RT3l
— value of services provided — PRt iR 2 BE

(note 26(a)) (Hi3E26(a)) 959 - 959
— option lapsed — B R ERE

(note 26(a)) (Mf7E26(a)) (1,514) - (1,514)
Currency translation differences NI = 5 - (1,246) (1,246)
Balances at 31 December 2012 A2012F 12831 B8k 25,632 510,864 536,496
Balance at 1 January 2013 H2013F1 A1 &8k 25,632 510,864 536,496
Profit for the year FEFHE - - -
Share option scheme ERiERTE
— value of services provided — iRt 2 BE

(note 26(a)) (Fff5E26(a)) 147 - 147
Currency translation differences SN B =5 - 178,533 178,533
Balances at 31 December 2013 M2013F 12331 B &R 25,779 689,397 715,176

(@)

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to follow the
laws and regulations of the PRC and their articles of association.
These subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory
funds, namely, general reserve fund and enterprise expansion
fund, which are appropriated from net profit after taxation
but before dividend distribution based on the local statutory
accounts prepared in accordance with accounting principles
and relevant financial regulations applicable to enterprises
established in the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries are required
to allocate at least 10% of its net profit to the reserve fund until
the balance of such fund has reached 50% of its registered
capital. Such appropriations are determined at the discretion of
the directors. The general reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated deficit
or increase capital.

AABEFRZHERBRAETHEDE
BREEHR - URBBZAEMERA -
ZEMBARARRETEEESR 2
R REEESNEEERES -
BEBRERTRE DR Z AN PR
B o ZAENRERP BRI RER 2
SRR AR EER MRS ZER
EERBRE o WEPBMERRER
HAMZEM0%DEEFHEES BEE
ZARESHEHREEEEMER 250%
Bl WEBERHEENIEEE - —R
REZSEEEME RIERIGABIE
IR BIESIENER -
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MR

18 Other reserves (Continued)

()

Midea, the intermediate holding company of the Company,
implemented an incentive share plan for core management
staff of Midea and its major subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2012, under which Midea Holding Co., Ltd
(“Midea Holding”) (formerly known as Foshan Shunde Midea
Investment Holding Co., Ltd), the controlling shareholder of
Midea, transferred its equity interest in Ningbo Meicheng Equity
Investment Partnership (“Ningbo Meicheng”) to the participants
to the said incentive share plan. Ningbo Meicheng holds an
aggregate interest of 3% (representing 30 million shares) in
the share capital of Midea. Further to the arrangement of the
incentive share plan, Midea Holding transferred 3% of its equity
interest in Ningbo Meicheng to two executive directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Jiang Deqing
on 22 November 2012.

Since the Company has no obligation to settle the above
share-based payment transaction granted by Midea Holding,
the difference between the fair value of the shares transferred
and the cash consideration paid for such shares amounting
to HK$19,423,000 was treated as an equity-settled share-
based payment. Award of the said shares were vested
immediately and this share-based payment were recognised
as expenses in the Group’s consolidated income statement.
The Group accounted for the shares granted to its directors
as a contribution from its ultimate holding company and
credited it to share-based payment reserve. The fair value of
the shares transferred as estimated by management using
market approach by referencing the market capitalisation and
Price/Earnings multiple for the listed and unlisted subsidiaries
controlled by Midea respectively.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the acquisition under common control,
and the aggregate nominal value of share capital/paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group contributed by
the owners of the Company.
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18 Hfhfwe ()

HZE2012F12A31BIEFE - AQFA
FREZERARENAEARS KEEKE
REAZLEBABEBITEREBERET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBHRRME
19 Borrowings 19 B
Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Non-current
Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured — K 43,083 129,188
Current
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured FEEASRI TN — R 340,554 306,714
383,637 435,902

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable

as follows:

MR2013F 12 A31H « AEBRITERZER
R

Group

rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Within one year 340,554 306,714
1to 2 years 43,083 86,125
2 to 3 years - 43,063
383,637 435,902
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19 Borrowings (Continued)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

19

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

B (&)

REME 2 R MR EFE R A D ER
EERHMT

Group
KEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Borrowings with fixed rate as: TESMER
6 months or less 6fEA A AT 254,388 49,328
Borrowings with floating rate as: EEER
6 months or less 61E A AT 43,083 214,323
6 months to 1 year A AZE14F 43,083 43,063
Over 1 year 1F A E 43,083 129,188
129,249 386,574
383,637 435,902

The effective interest rates of the above floating rate borrowings
at the end of the year were 3.38% per annum (2012: 2.42% per

annum).

No leasehold land and land use rights (2012: net book value of
HK$44,937,000) and property, plant and equipment (2012: net book
value of HK$53,126,000) have been pledged as security for the
Group’s banking facilities as at 31 December 2013 (notes 6 and 7).

The carrying amount of bank borrowings approximates their fair
value, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The fair values
are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the
borrowing rate of 2.22% (2012: 3.12%) and are within level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy.
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RER - LillZBIERZ ERFFE 53.38%
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& REIFEB 53,126,000 ) fEARITIR
B2 BRI RT) -

MR IRTEER - BITERCEEEREL
RAARERE - DABETIREBERNE2.22%
(20124 : 3.12%) ' KBS R=HRHH -
I 57 N EEEE2MR A (ELRHE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20

e EmERMET
19 Borrowings (Continued) 19 ER(E)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the B2 EREEN N EE5IE -
following currencies.
Group
KEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
RMB AR 254,388 49,328
usD ES 129,249 293,015
EUR B - 93,559
383,637 435,902
Deferred Government Grants 20 EREBATHEEL
Group
TEE
HK$'000
BT
At 1 January 2012 201241 B1H 23,282
Credited to income statement T AMEE (473)
Currency translation difference INEBITH ZERE (7)
At 31 December 2012 R2012612H31H 22,802
At 1 January 2013 ®2013F1HA1H 22,802
Receipt of grants e 10,592
Credited to income statement T AMEE (483)
Currency translation difference INEBITH R 1,043
At 31 December 2013 72013512 H31H 33,954

The amounts represented subsidies granted by local government

authority in the PRC relating to acquisition of leasehold land and land
use rights amounted to RMB19,260,000 (HK$23,757,000) in 2011
and high technology research and development program in 2013

amounted to RMB8,589,000 (HK$10,592,000).

The deferred government grants will be amortised to other gains from

the point at which the relevant assets are ready for use on a straight-

line basis over the assets’ useful lives.

EASED BIIER EE BT 20114F
AUREETE L 1 & 4 0 B R R 20134F &
SRR IE A R 2 - 2ESRIAA
F2#19,260,0007T (##23,757,0007T) R AR
#£8,589,0007T (7##10,592,0007T ) °

BRI SRR B E A A 2 B
BEAEAFHNRERERHE MU -

Annual Report 3 2013 ] 59



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN =
e BEmRME
21 Trade and Other Payables 21 EFREMENRK
Group Company
TEE AATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T
Trade payables (note (a)) B 5 RN (M E) 1,449,210 1,163,759 - -
Notes payable (notes (a), (b)) e ZiE (K@ ~ b)) 1,609,364 1,409,466 - -
Amounts due to related parties e R 5 0B
(note (a), 36(b)) (B47E@) ~ 36(b)) 60,815 139,614 - -
3,119,389 2,712,839 - -
Provision for staff welfare and bonus & T 18 Fl| Kz fE AT s 144,589 153,699 - -
Accruals FEIREA 22,494 30,713 - -
Advances from customers TBRERFERK 18,600 4,025 - -
Other payables HAbFERR 131,575 213,777 10,494 2,285
Others Hi - 1,048 - -
3,436,647 3,116,101 10,494 2,285
(@)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables and notes payable @ AEEEZFEMNREREMZE(BIERE
(including amounts due to related parties) of the Group was as TRAES T I8 Z BRI D ATEA T
follows:
Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Within 3 months S1E A AR 2,169,132 1,616,613
3 to 6 months 3%61E A 917,813 1,038,878
Over 6 months 61E A AL 32,444 57,348
3,119,389 2,712,839
(o)  The balance represents non-interest bearing bank acceptance () BEEHBAREBREDL 2 TR BRITH
notes issued by the Group with maturity periods of less HER - DEER AL R6ME A - 42013
than six months. As at 31 December 2013, certain notes F12A31H » & TENEEURITER
payable were pledged by bank deposits of approximately #4974 % 114,284,000 70 (2012 FF « B
HK$114,284,000 (2012: HK$139,598,000). 139,598,0007T ) 1E R
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MR

22 Derivative Financial Instruments

22 fTEERMIA

Group
HEE
2013 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE aE BE B8E&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BETT BB T T
Commodity futures contracts (a) EmEEE D) 8,109 - 8,214 59
Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) 7ME &= B34 49(b) 18,019 3,017 6,783 8,854
26,128 3,017 14,997 8,913
(@  The Group has entered into various copper and aluminum @ AEBSIYZHEREMRPESL
futures contracts to manage the fluctuation of copper and EUAEBMLEERES  BTFE
aluminum price which did not meet the criteria for hedge BIREE AR RIE - IEEH P 2R
accounting. The fair value loss of the non-hedging copper REHEEN AR BEBENEY
and aluminum futures contracts amounting to approximately 6,850,000 T (Ffi5E24) - RERELZE
HK$6,850,000 (note 24) were dealt within the consolidated Wi RANEE(2012F A BEKE :
income statement during the year (the fair value gain of year 7&1£24,042,0007T) °
2012: HK$24,042,000).
The notional principal amounts of outstanding commodity R2018F 12 AT H M R&EHEE
futures contracts as at 31 December 2013 were mEHEENZER RSB AAE
HK$224,125,000 (2012: HK$220,222,000). & 224,125,000 7T ( 2012 F : & #&
220,222,0007T) °
(o)  The Group has entered into various foreign exchange forward (o) AEBEDFZZIEINERPEL - FEI

contracts to manage the fluctuation of foreign currencies
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The fair
value gain of non-hedging foreign exchange forward contracts
amounting to approximately HK$42,251,000 (note 24), were
dealt within the consolidated income statement during the year
(the fair value gain of year 2012: HK$20,124,000).

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts as at 31 December 2013 were
HK$1,825,876,000 (2012: HK$1,129,844,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the

fair value of the derivative assets in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

EIEHINERE)  BRFAERELYRS
ETERIE o FE{EETHR ZINERBRIG N2 A
o BIEUR ZS 478 % 42,251,000 7T (B 5%
24) - RERNELFE KK NERIE(2012
FRREER - B120,124,0007T) °

R2013F 12 A31 A M kR & BN E
RG22 ER B RABE
1,825,876,000 7T ( 2012 F : & #&
1,129,844,0007T) °

K& RRZEAEERBRRITEEEN TS
MR ERZ AR EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

23 Deferred Income Tax 23 ELEFTBH
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences B SRIEBAEEANEEE BRI ANERE
under the liability method using taxation rates applicable to the TRARERAZREREEE -

companies comprising the Group.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax BEFESHEERBELEMSHEBEZ oMM
liabilities is as follows: Nk
Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFMBHRARE
- Deferred income tax liabilities to be released after — 218 B &R 2
12 months BIEMBHAE 76,827 67,761
- Deferred income tax liabilities to be released within -~ — R 121 A NEKR 2
12 months BIEFSHAaRE 33,863 26,641
110,690 94,402
Deferred income tax assets: EEFTBIEE -
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered within -~ — M 2@ A AU E >~
12 months BREFSTEE 38,392 39,567
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MR

23 EEFREH (&)

23 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during

REE BAERBH ADEER NI H A ERAT -
BEREMSHEERABRFAZEEHIT

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities: IRIEFFEHREE -
Undistributed
profits of
PRC Fair value  Revaluation
subsidiaries gain of assets Total
#
HEARZ DREE
RO IKF B iz EftEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ok BT BB BT
At 1 January 2012 720121 A1H 63,465 2,519 7,565 73,549
Charged/(credited) to consolidated Rir el RN
income statement Mk (GEA) 27,682 (268) (773) 26,641
Payment of withholding tax B EINH (5,838) - - (5,838)
Currency translation differences HNEEST B =R 56 @ ) 50
At 31 December 2012 #2012 12318 85,365 2,249 6,788 94,402
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RERE MR A
income statement ng (5t A) 33,075 1,576 (788) 33,863
Charged directly to equity BEENERNR - 2,448 - 2,448
Payment of withholding tax BN TEIH (23,186) - - (23,186)
Currency translation differences HNESHT B =5 2,829 132 202 3,163
At 31 December 2013 201312 A31H 98,083 6,405 6,202 110,690
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23 EEFREH (&)

23 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets: ELEFIEHEE
Deferred
Impairment Fair value Unpaid government
losses losses accruals grant Total
DREE AR EEBUF
REER =] BR fHaL &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT AT BETT
At 1 January 2012 20121 A1H 9,804 36 23,192 5,821 38,8583
Credited/(charged) to consolidated FA474 WzE R A
income statement A (k) (2,925) 1,297 1,378 971 721
Currency translation differences ~ SMNE T & #58 (12) 5 © 1 (7
At 31 December 2012 20124 12A31H 6,867 1,338 24,569 6,793 39,567
Credited/(charged) to consolidated FA474 IWzE R A
income statement A (308R) 261 (913) (3,308) 1,576 (2,384)
Currency translation differences ~ SME & 248 221 28 723 237 1,209
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31H 7,349 453 21,984 8,606 38,392

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$1,411,000 (2012:
HK$29,000) in respect of losses amounting to HK$5,645,000 (2012:
HK$116,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Such losses will expire in 2018.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of all subsidiaries after the deduction of relevant
statuary reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

24 Other Gains - Net

24 HtpWis — 8

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Government grants received (i) BB EA () 43,586 15,479

Amortisation of deferred government grants (note 20) & ZE Bt fiF i B 84 (H1520) 483 473
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRTA

— fair value (loss)/gain on commodity futures contracts

not qualified for hedge accounting
(note 22(a))

— fair value gain on foreign exchange forward contracts
not qualified for hedge accounting

— I REERIEE A RE S

EmEBAEEHNAREE

(E518),/Wezs (MisE22(a) (6,850) 24,042
—AHEERIEE SRR

SNERHIGH A EERE

(note 22(b)) (Mf7E22(b)) 42,251 20,124
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets 7] it & 4 &l & & 2 I B U A 6,982 2,552
Exchange (loss)/gain X (F18), Wk (14,989) 7,065
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - E M &E 2 18 (10,653) (5,485)
Claim from suppliers RERERNERE 4,818 5,726
Rental income GO 2,560 -
Others HAth 684 1,672

68,872 71,548

The Group obtained government grants and recognised as
income amounting to HK$43,586,000 (2012: HK$15,479,000).
Majority amount is under the condition that the Group is
obliged to enhance its operation and development under the
terms of this government grant.

7 5= B ERAS U #6687 15 43,586,000 7T
(20124 : B#15,479,0007T) W FER B
Wezs o &P KA M RE B R R AR
S BBIR R FZ BUT # B &0 165 N 5e EL
BRERE -
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e MBHRRME
25 Expenses by Nature 25 BRUMESEZEAX
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing STABEEEMAAR -« S RTSHERERAS T
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: B 2R
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Cost of inventories recognised as expense (note 13) RAERSEZ 2 FERA(HFE13) 6,544,347 5,624,032
Employee benefit expenses (note 26(a)) 1B BEFIFHZ (KizE26() 968,780 828,425
Depreciation (note 7) e (M7) 139,819 135,676
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights FHE £ b [2 4 b (55 A M 4
(note 6) (Mi3E6) 5,259 4,542
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) G EE S (M5E9) 3,144 3,083
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of trade B S WA ERE,(#E)
receivables — net (note 14(c)) —FE(FIFE14(c)) 10,926 (3,209)
Reversal of impairment of inventories-net GFERERDR—F58 (2,025) (7,671)
Operating leases rental for land and buildings T RIEFLEHEERS 9,978 13,032
Auditors’ remuneration IZERAT BN & 2,980 3,431
Research and development costs 9T R BB R AN 10,337 8,507
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A PR

26 Employee Benefit Expenses

26 EERMBAX

(a) (a)
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Wages and salaries Ié&%ﬁ/ﬁ 786,402 653,007
Pension costs-defined contribution plans()) RIS R — BEE (R EGETE) 51,555 42,599
Medical benefits-defined contribution plans EEEMN B EHRTE 24,049 20,106
Share option scheme-value of services provided — BERRHEETE| — FTIR RS 2
(note 18) EE(M5E18) 147 959
Share option scheme-option lapsed IR ERT 8] — B AR B AR
(note 18) (FfizE18) - (1,514)
Share-based payment granted by the ultimate IR A B H AR D B
holding company (note 18(b)) AR (H3E18(0) - 19,423
Other allowances and benefits HAbERL K EH) 106,627 93,845
968,780 828,425

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group companies (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions from each
of the employers and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,250 per month and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered and operated by the
local municipal government. The Group is currently
required to make a monthly contribution equivalent to
15% to 28% of the employees’ salary (subject to a floor
and cap) as set by local municipal governments to each
scheme locally to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

FEEETHEESREESNAEESE
2l o RIFwESHE - SEETEHEA
AI(EEX) REEBEREHMAEESE
PIRE - BARBEB AR Z5%IERE
EMER - BEXREESBZHRERA
§ABKA1,2507T - BB RBREHEK -

REBURPBEZHBAR ZIESEE
L T T B IR MBS 2 BE 4
RKEEE - AEERETAXNE
MHARESEE A EAETE - HER
BE A#H15%228% (A L TRE) >
HA - UAEBERSEIRMES -

%‘ \23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBHRRME
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 26 EEEFMEX(E)
(b) Directors’ and Senior Managements’ (b) EERESREEAEME
Emoluments
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 ZEEREZE2013F12A31HIEFEZ
December 2013 is set out below: & -
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses scheme Total
BRSFEZ
2 ne e kg et &t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BRI BT T BT T BETT
Executive Directors Yi7ESE
Mr. Zhou Xiangyand (i) Elplya() - 1,086 2,615 9 3,710
Mr. Jiang Deging FEELE - 827 932 9 1,768
Mr. Lu Xiaoji (vi) BB 5 () - 490 1,855 9 2,354
Mr. Li Yang (i FIHE ) - 468 1,713 9 2,190
Ms. Yuan Liqun Rt - - - - -
Mr. Li Feide (ii) FRAB I (i) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Tan Jinsong ESRTE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEABEE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Cao Zhoutao(vi) ENRE L (vi) 35 - - - 35
Ms. Chen Chunhua(vii) BRETE 2 (vil) 145 - - - 145
540 2,871 7,115 36 10,562
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A PR

26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued)

(b) Directors’ and Senior Managements’
Emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2012 is set out below:

Name of Director Fees

e Be

26 EE®EMBX(HE)
(b) EEREREEAEHE (H)

Salary

e

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEENEHE2012F12A31BIEEFEE Y

B #&FIAT

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary Other to pension
bonuses benefits (i) scheme Total

BiRgstalz
BEfEL  AtER) EEER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HTESE
Mr. Zhou Xangyang (i) BB L) - 617 2409 11,402 8 14,436
Mr. Jiang Deging ZBERE - 494 2,082 9,244 8 11,828
Mr. Lu Xiaoji (v) REEEEV) - 367 870 - 8 1,245
Mr. Li Yang (il RN - 394 870 - 8 1,272
Ms. Yuan Liqun Rt - - - _ _ _
Mr. Li Feide (i) TRE i) - - - - -
Mr. Cai Qiwu (iv) BEREEW) - 859 3,011 1,157 5 5,032
Mr. Qu Fei 1) ERELN) - 3% 482 374 5 1,19
Mr. Li Jianwei (iv) FiEELEW - - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Weikang (iv) BRREEW - 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chen Jianhong (v BREAT % () - 3% 1,108 - 5 1,449
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
Directors
Mr. Tan Jinsong EONLE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEBLE 180 - - 85 - 265
Ms. Chen Chunhua BRELTT 180 - - 85 - 265
540 3,642 10,832 22,347 47 37,408

(i) Other benefits include leave pay, share options and
share-based payment granted by the ultimate holding
company of the Company as disclosed in note 17(b) and
note 18(b) to the consolidated financial statement.

(ii) Mr. Zhou Xiangyang and Mr. Li Yang was senior
management of the Group and appointed as executive

director of the Company on 12 December 2012.

(i) Mr. Li Feide appointed on 12 December 2012.

(i)

(i)

HiEfeEasiy Bk
RARRD B &EIZER A G ARG
N H (MR A B R &M FE17(0)
K HFE18(0)PTH%EE) -

ARG EEREGEEAEER
MR EEE - R20129F 12812
BEZTARARNITES °

FRE A N2012F12 128 &
BEME -
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e EmERMET
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 26 EEBFFEX(E)
(b) Directors’ and Senior Managements’ (b) EERESREEAEME ()

Emoluments (Continued)
(iv)  Mr. Cai Qiwu, Mr. Qu Fei, Mr. Li Jianwei and Mr. Zheng (iv)

Weikang resigned on 12 December 2012.

(v) Mr. Chen Jianhong appointed on 15 March 2012 and )
resigned on 12 December 2012.

(v Mr. Lu Xiaoji appointed on 12 December 2012 and (Vi)
resigned on 15 January 2014.

BEHRAE BRELAE  FEE
S M EYME R o E 201212 5
12H BT ©

PR AT S A R 20123 A15 B
BEE - WHR2012F12 A12 0 &
£ o

BB S A 2012512 A12 A
BEE - WHR2014%F1 A15H &
f£o

(viil  Ms. Cao Zhoutao appointed on 21 October 2013. (viiy  EMNFZETR2013F107218E
BEE -
(vii)  Ms. Chen Chunhua resigned on 21 October 2013. (vii) FRFIERZ TR 2013F 10721 HE
£
The remuneration of the key management for the year ended HZE2013F12A31HILFENTES
31 December 2013 is set out below: BAEMESEIIOT
Group
KEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other employee benefits HeREMESET 22,243 22,782
Share options granted by the Company NN B A BE AR 132 712
Share-based payments granted by the ultimate AR B RAR PRI A B H A
holding company of the Company M BER T - 19,423
22,375 42,917
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e EmERMET
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 26 EEEFMEX(E)
(c) Five Highest Paid Individuals (c) EEBEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEEEENRELZSHMATEER
Group for the year include two directors (2012: three) whose #(2012%F : =R)EE - A2 EHR
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. XD c REEEMNBT=%(2012
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2012: two) FmB)ATZBIEIT

individual during the year are as follows:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, BEAX¥ - BEER -
share options, other allowances and SR - AR R
benefits in kind EMFE 7,104 3,320
Contribution to pension schemes RIREETEIHR 139 74
7,243 3,394
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B BATAR 2 ABAT
Emolument bands Number of individuals
B <48 51 AE
2013 2012
HK$1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 78 #1,000,0007T —
7&#2,000,0007T - 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 7B#2 000,0017T —
75 #3,000,0007T 3 -
27 Finance Expenses - Net 27 MEMRS-FH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT TEEETF T
Interest expense FEFAX (29,471) (15,046)
Exchange loss IE VB 18 (20,851) (16,777)
Finance expenses BER Y (50,322) (31,8293
Finance income — interest income on bank deposit BB A —RIT RS F B A 8,949 6,192
Net finance expenses BhE RS FEE (41,373) (25,631)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

28 Income Tax Expense

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Macao and British Virgin Islands profits tax

The Group has not been subject to any taxation in these
jurisdictions for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at annual income tax rate of
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 16.5%).

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Group companies registered in the PRC are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”). According to the new CIT
effective from 1 January 2008, all PRC enterprises are subject
to a standard enterprise income tax rate of 25%, except for
enterprises under specific preferential policies and provisions
are discussed as follows.

Welling Washer has been eligible to high technology
enterprises CIT incentive starting from year 2011 to year
2013. The applicable preferential tax rate of high technology
enterprises is 15% for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: 15%).

GD Welling and Wuhu Welling have been eligible to high
technology enterprises CIT incentive starting from year
2008 to year 2013. The applicable preferential tax rate of
high technology enterprises is 15% for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012:15%).

Huaian Welling has been eligible to high technology enterprises
CIT incentive from year 2010 to year 2015. The applicable
preferential tax rate of high technology enterprises is 15% for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 15%).
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28 FREHIRX

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

B REBELFESHED

AEBREZE2013F 12 A31 B L4
EHBHMIL S AR EMFIE
(2012 : &) o

BENEHR

REZE2013F12A31HIEFE - B8
TS YRR FEEH M E16.5%
$2(2012%F : 16.5%) °

RE RSB

REBEP BFMA D RASNTH R
ERER(TREMSH]) - RIZEH2008
FIATRRERFPEEEMSH
B ERERIA TR EEETRE
FIREIN - FrE B R RZABMN25%IF
EPEMFHE -

Bl B SR 2011 F £ 2013 M/ & 10
¥ RBpRETEe R R
MERIER - HE20135F12 A31 B IH4F
B affEcEzAAREREA
15%(20124F : 15%) °

[ BR ek 2 B 4 Bk B2 B 2008 F 22013
FRMECEMSHEBEETESH
BHE R EFERIEE - BIE2013F12 8
JNALLFE SRR CECZTAESR
TR A15%(20124F : 15%) °

HEL L E BH2010F £2015F M/ & 1
¥ HRBpRETEe R REE
ERIER - HE20135FE12 A31 B IH4F
B affEcEzAAREREA
15%(2012%F : 15%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A PR

28 Income Tax Expense (Continued)

28 FriSHiFZ ()

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Current tax RERTIE
- PRC corporate income tax — RIS FTIEHL 129,376 121,750
— Hong Kong profits tax —BRFEH 1,463 -
130,839 121,750
Deferred income tax RIEFTIS 36,247 25,920
Income tax expense FriSfifsz 167,086 147,670

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

applicable to profits of the entities as follows:

™

REEBRTATAE 2 HIRE R A B RN HE
RZ PO EMEE 2 EmR B Z RN

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit before income tax ER TS H AT 959,216 786,036
Calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% BRBAER R25%E
(2012: 25%) (20124F : 25%) 239,804 196,509
Effect of difference in applicable tax rates BRANEEREZZE (95,835) (64,391)
Withholding tax on attributable profit FEAEFIETBIOR 33,075 27,682
Reversal of overprovision (a) B[O BEE R (a) (7,400) -
Income not subject to tax BAERT 2 WA (5,466) (15,359)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes AR 2 1,526 4,135
Tax losses not recognised as deferred income RERBELEFTSHIEEE Y
tax assets MIBEE 1,411 29
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FRBERERBIEEE (29) (935)
Income tax expense FriS Bl 167,086 147,670

PRC corporate income tax is provided for at 25% (2012: 25%) of the
profits for the PRC statutory financial reporting purposes, adjusted

PRI PRSI IRP BRI S 2 AE 2
25% (20124F : 26%)&H1E » W A A st E
for those items, which are not assessable or deductible for the PRC DEMMSHIBRSI R CBEEL TR -

corporate income tax purpose.
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A PR

28 Income Tax Expense (Continued)

(@  The amounts represent the impact of change in PRC corporate
income tax for one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Huaian Welling,
after the completion of the registration of high-technology
enterprises preference tax rate at 15% in respect of 2012
with the tax bureau. The previous tax provision was originally
provided based on tax rate of 25% and the over provision was
reversed accordingly.

The tax charge relating to components of other comprehensive
income is as follows:

28 FriSHiFZ ()

@) ZEEETRCEMEHESHARE
B2 B A B R BN 201 25 FE TR %
BEEEAREEEERE15%2E
RRRELZZE - KRIRNARERAE
R26% 2 TR ETTHR - MAREERREERA
B UL T AR )

BE A 2 E Y B 0 AR R BRI SR #5I

2013
Before tax Tax charged After tax
FREL AT BEX W BRBi%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHHESREERE AR
financial assets BE 5,823 (2,448) 3,375
Currency translation differences INEE AT =5 91,031 - 91,031
96,854 (2,448) 94,406

29 Profit Attributable to the Owners of the
Company

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately HK$222,157,000 (2012: HK$152,496,000).
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RAREE ARG EMSFE

AR AR B RER 2 AN QR HEA AE(LF
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A PR

30 Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted

30 BREF

(a)

xR

BRERBNTVRARBRE AREF
TR AR E 21T BB 2 IR

o
ars e

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2013 2012
Profit for the year attributable to the owners RNATER ANEIFEFE
of the Company (HK$’000) (B®TIT) 785,499 640,256
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR EERERETF 2
for the purposes of basic earnings per share ERAL R S E(TAR)
(000 shares) 2,835,694 2,821,614
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERZF GBI 27.70 22.69
(b) Diluted (b) #5%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, diluted
earnings per share were calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive
potential ordinary shares of the Company are performance-
based share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

H E201345 2012412 A31 B 1L
- SREERNDERFHRDEHITY
Rz METHE - UWERRETEEY
BREDEEBRTE AREZETE
SHLIBAR AARIR AR 2 AR - 5t
BREME - SR ARITEERERM
R BB EEEITE  UEET
BRARBEEARBDRN FHFETS
REET)WEZRMHERB - Ll
ERTE 2RO B E & RERRERREE
TEMED BT 2 RSB 1ELLE -

2013 2012
Profit for the year attributable to the owners NRABVEE ANEILFEF)E
of the Company (HK$’000) (BT IT) 785,499 640,256
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR ESRERET 2
for the purposes of basic earnings per share RN S E (TR
(000 shares) 2,835,694 2,821,614
Adjustments for share options (‘000 shares) IERR TR (T %) 7,741 15,000
2,843,435 2,836,614
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) BREEZN GBI 27.63 2257
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FEMBERRME
31 Dividends 31 RE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Proposed final dividend of HK8.5 cents per ordinary &3 R A% B A% 3@ A% 8.5l
share (2012: HK4.8 cents) (20124 : 4.8711l) 242,183 135,442

At a meeting held on 10 March 2014, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK8.5 cents per ordinary share (2012: HK4.8 cents). This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
consolidated financial statements.

The proposed final dividend for 2012 by the directors in March
2013 was HK$135,442,000, based on the 2,821,713,000 ordinary
shares issued as at 31 December 2012 of HK4.8 cents per share.
Subsequently, 18,600,000 shares was issued under the share
option scheme before the approval of the final dividend at the annual
general meeting of the shareholders in May 2013. As a result, the
actual final dividend paid for 2012 was HK$136,335,000 based on
2,840,3183,000 shares of HK4.8 cents per share.
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MR2014E3A10B T2 8% L ESEETE
AR B BT A AR8.58 1L (20124 : 4.8
FEL) o HIEEHER B RIEZ SR A VIR
RARBAERARE -

EEN2013F3AREFE Z2012F REIRE R
75 #5135,442,0007T (Ep2012F 12 A31 H 8
77,22,821,713,000 A% & i Ak & M2 4.8 ) -
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Re EHERBIRE 2 AT 18,600,000 4% %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A PR

32 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax

32 FEREREBRMTE

(a) MBRAAEHANBREEEE

to cash generated from operations: ZEESHIRR :
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit before income tax HRR A4S B A1 7 959,216 786,036
Adjustments for: TR
- Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment  —¥1% - = MR EITE
(note 7) (PfF5E7) 139,819 135,676
— Depreciation of investment properties (note 8) — B EITE (H5E8) 1,706 -
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use —THE b e Hh{sh FAAE
rights (note 6) 35 (M5Ee) 5,259 4,542
— Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) —EREESH (M) 3,144 3,083
— Deferred government grants (note 20) — EIER A AL (T 5E20) (483) 473)
— Loss on disposals of property, —HEYE - BEX
plant and equipment RiEEE 10,653 5,485
— Share option scheme-value of services —BERRRERT 8] — PTiRE RS 2
provided (note 18) EEME18) 147 959
— Share option scheme-option lapsed — B E B RN
(note 18) PR RE(MEE18) - (1,514)
— Share-based payment granted by the ultimate — E AR A IR B LA
holding company (note 18(b)) BRI (M3E18(0) - 19,423
— Share of profits of investments accounted — G LA EABR 2R E
for using the equity method (note 11) FME 1) (22,405) (17,322)
— Dividend income from available-for-sale — A ESREEZRE
financial assets(note 24) WA (P 5E24) (6,982) (2,552)
— Interest income —FLEMA (8,949) (6,192)
— Interest expense —FEMX 29,471 15,046
— Impairment of inventories —FERIE 7,116 9,141
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of trade — B DGR,
receivables-net (BE)—F& 10,926 (3,209)
Changes in working capital: LEES Y
- Inventories —FE (180,314) (99,621)
— Derivative financial instruments —tTESmI A (17,027) 10,468
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 R E MUK 216,986 (486,794)
— Trade and other payables — B NEMERNTK 320,547 (26,330)
Cash generated from operations BREEFCERS 1,468,830 345,852
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e EmERMET
32 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 32 MERERERMTE(E)
Cash Flows (Continued)
(b) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and (b) HEVE BERREFMEBR
equipment comprise: B
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Net book value disposed (note 7) e Z REFEFIET) 36,515
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% « BiE kR EEE
(note 24) (Ht5E24) (5,489
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  BEK
plant and equipment RAEFTSRIA 31,030
There is no non-cash transaction during this period. HABEFRERS o
33 Contingent Liabilities 33 WAREE
Except for the financial guarantees discussed in note 35, as at 31 PRt sE35 5w 2 B & HEIRIN - FR2013F &
December 2013 and 2012, the Group and the Company did not 201212 A31H » AEE KA FIBLEER
have any material contingent liabilities. ERAHABIE -
34 Commitments 34 EIE
(@) Capital commitments (a) BAEE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year is as REK ' BFJHCEARBAZWOT ¢
follows:
Group
rEH
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided B ET#1{EREE Z EAE Y 98,268 120,267
The Company does not have any capital commitment as at 31 H2013FE K 2012F 12 A31H » KA 7]
December 2013 and 2012, PR ARAT AT B ARIE o
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A PR

34 Commitments (Continued)

34 FEIE(E)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments of the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(b) HEHEERE

AEERBTAIHE L EEHEMNAR
REN 2 RIEREFREELT

Group

rEH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Not later than one year THBIE1F 6,006 5,879
Later than one year and not later than five years BiB1FETEBIB5F 3,520 7,027
9,526 12,906

The Company does not have any operating lease commitments
as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

R20134F & 2012F12 A31H » &AA A
BT A4 & T R o

35 Financial Guarantees 35 FMELER
The Group and the controlling shareholder of the associates AN R (B I B N B4R AR AR B (R R M B B
have jointly and severally given guarantee to banks in respect T AR B N R A A B 942,508,000
of the banking facilities extended to the associates of the (20124 : #)8%719,571,0007T ) Z $R1TI%
Group of approximately HK$942,508,000 (2012: approximately EVEIEIR - R2013F 12 A31H » ZSHE RN
HK$719,571,000). As at 31 December 2013, bank loans FIERBEARR AEROBITEROREE
of approximately HK$613,076,000 (2012: approximately 613,076,0007T (20124F : %97 #540,141,000
HK$540,141,000) being guaranteed by the Group to associates JC) o RIBHBREZERE OGN - ~EE K
have been drawn down. Under the terms of the relevant financial Bt A RIIE AR AR SR & BLATHE (R EG & & Bl OATE
guarantee contract, the Group and the controlling shareholder of the RITEFREERS - BEEEERA ©
associates will make payments to reimburse the lenders upon failure
of the guaranteed associates to make payments when the bank
loans are due.
Terms and face values of the liabilities guaranteed were as follows: EREGZEFREENAT
Group
AER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Face value Face value
HE [Efi=)
Financial guarantees BEER
— bank loans drawn —BERIURTTER 613,076 540,141
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A PR

35 Financial Guarantees (Continued) 35 BEER(E)
In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these financial EERL  ZERMEREROLQR BERVIATE
guarantees are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors REFWTER - MR EHEBEHR A EL 28
consider that the possibility of the default of the parties involved is MHER - At - REREDIBEFREBEREER
remote, accordingly no value has been recognised at the inception of EREE -
the guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period.
36 Related Party Transactions 36 BEARXS
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been RAREEMBARRZRZERGERE R
eliminated on consolidation. Transactions between the Group and HiH - NEEHEEMEAR T NEAN RSB
other related parties during the year are summarised below: [N
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHEBEEBEA 2B
The following transactions were carried out with related parties AT B SR SR X A EMTE 2
in accordance with the terms mutually agreed between the BHETZR S -
respective parties:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETFT
Sales to related parties: EIEEE A HE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — AR AR A ml R 3,626,658 2,660,827
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder —HSEERARZ
of the ultimate holding company F 2R RIE - 13,456
3,626,658 2,574,283
Purchases from related parties: o B B 5 BR S
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — R AR AR A E R 21,125 228,648
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder —HERRERARZ
of the ultimate holding company F ERR T - 188
— Controlled by a close family member —HREIER AR EBRERZ
of the ultimate holding company’s TR
substantial shareholder 136,641 3,056
157,766 231,892
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MR

36 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36 BEEEAIRZ(E)

(@) Transactions with related parties (a) EERAEE S 23X % (4E)
(Continued)
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Other transactions with related parties - HEMA cHMRS
Controlled by the ultimate holding company  — B & & =8 A T34
(i) Logistics services received from related parties  (i)[A1 A H 5 BN Y7 AR S 7,093 -
(i) Rental income received from a related party (inra) Bt 5 EEE MO AR 2 WA 2,560 -
(i) Rental expenses paid to a related party (i) BAESE 7 ST R S B - 2,489
(iv) Sales of intangible assets to a related party (iv)[m e 7 HENEREE 895 -
(v) Share-based payment contribution VAR RER O A E R - 19,423
(vi) IT and management consulting fee paid to a (vi) ) R B 77 S AH R IT Kz
related party EERLAER 10,481 -
Financial services provided by the Finance B RS AN B IR A9 B RS AR A
Company - Controlled by the ultimate —HRARER D TEE
holding company
(i) Short-term borrowings received ()ER1S52 HAfE X 690,664 234,308
(i) Short-term borrowings repaid (MEEZEEEBER 690,664 234,308
(iii) Issues of bills (iNFE 2 2 1,908,776 602,602
(iv) Discounted bills (VRRIRZE & 790,424 188,651
(v) Interest income on deposits received (V)HCERTF 3R F1 2 A 3,756 4,491
(vi) Interest expense and bank charges paid V) ZRFLER S RIRITE A 17,413 5,572
(vii) Settlement of foreign currency (Vi) INELEE 251,831 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR
36 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36 BEEHLRH(E)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EERAEES =4k
Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Due from related parties included in trade EWRELIRE SFESRE
and other receivables: 2 FE U R -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — BRI A B 478,010 880,436
As at 31 December 2013, the amounts due from related R2013F 12 A31 8 » FEUKEEE 5 308
parties including notes receivable of approximately ©HEBIEEKEE LN AE38,101,000
HK$38,101,000 (2012: HK$410,580,000). J0(20124F : /&#410,580,0007T) °
Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Due to related parties included in trade and  FEfEEBAHIE - BIEEERE
other payables: 2 FEAS TR -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — BRI B 6,869 137,419
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder —HREERARZ
of the ultimate holding company FERRRIE - 247
— Controlled by a close family member — BREREERAT]
of the ultimate holding company’s FERR ZITHRIEH
substantial shareholder 53,946 1,948
60,815 139,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A PR

36 Related Party Transactions (Continued)
(b) Balances with related parties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the amounts due to related parties
including notes payable of approximately HK$23,309,000
(2012: HK$36,293,000).

The balances due from/to related parties are denominated in
RMB, unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.
No balance due from related parties is past due or impaired.

36 BEAITXS(HE)
(b) EEEAEETS 2 AR ()

MR2013E12 A31 R » ERTRERE T 708
SHEBEREEMNERY AE123,309,000
JC(20124F : B#36,293,0007T) °

FEU,FEST RARE T5 A5 BRA A RIE B (E -
W AEER - 2B AANBREEE -
B B W B 5 A ISR E -

Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Other balances with related parties EREARE S 2 i ek
- Controlled by the ultimate holding company  — B4R A T3 H]
(i) Short-term deposits in the Finance Company ()RR EATE A B2 58 BifE K 1,364,811 355,411
(il Bills have been issued but not yet due in the (O NCITRG R,
Finance Company BEARDEIEE 1,113,966 352,288
(iiiy Discounted bills receivable not yet due in the (i) B 752 R 2 B3R
Finance Company B AR 2 ERFE I R 4R 366,517 115,861
(iv) Short-term deposits in a related party ()R BB 7 2 55 BRAE K 17,940 -

Save as discussed in note 10, the Company does not have
other balances with related parties.

37 Ultimate Holding Company

The directors regard Midea Holding, a company incorporated in the
PRC, as being the ultimate holding company. As at 31 December
2018, Midea Holding held 68.99% of the Company’s share.

BRBRET10PTALSN - 7822 7] B2 RRES J7 #E 4
Hit#tghk o

37 RARERAT
BEREMER (PP R 2 AR A%

LAER A T] o FR2013% 12 A31H » EAYENR
B AN F)68.99% KA
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LEMBEREE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BT BT
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
BEZ LTIz KB KEZ LEZ
Results E4E
Revenue 1 ON 8,881,723 7,787,502 10,490,373 7,235,360 4,960,958
Profit attributable to the owners ZNA &R A
of the Company FE(EFI)E 785,499 640,256 607,563 532,338 353,823
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BB E 7,891,778 6,839,053 6,162,452 6,331,676 3,799,041
Total liabilities waE (4,016,802) (3,735,799) (3,610,278)  (4,356,372)  (2,599,888)
Total equity B 3,874,976 3,103,254 2,552,174 1,975,304 1,199,153
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